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TV NI FNDY NPNINNN MIANN YWY NHANN DY MPINNN Man owan ony  .2.11

INRNNDN
Magic Software Enterprises Ltd
Israel
oruixpn (IT) vrn niaynao mne Mmam nanna
NetEffects, Inc. Xsell Resources Roshtov Software
(shares held by Inc. Industries Ltd
Coretech (shares held by
Consulting Group Coretech Consulting
LC) Group LLC)
[[s0.24% I 81.15% l
' —CommiT
Comblack IT Ltd Technology
Solutions Ltd

Asseco Poland 1120 M29¥10 NN NPV NMNN NOYA, 07NN Y10 MNPN 29 DY ,NI12ND NY>T> 2095 2
25.82%-52 INNNDN TYIND NPRINND LPDI9 ,NYIND TIY MO DDA NINDIN INND MIAN L (MPON) S.A
,172NN DT VMY Y5 DX IPONI DLV HYA PR INNND TN )12) ,172NT DT 20D .91V NPINNH
P 3) TSS Europe B.V (TSS”)) : 1pOR H¥ NN PMNND NPINN DYP2TNNN N1IN Y2 NYAIN 1IN DII»P
Nationale--y ,(10.01% -5) Adam Goral Fundacja Rodzinna ,(9.99% -5) Allianz OFE ,(24.84%-2 9Py
197INY ©39) 2025 712VPIRA 1 0P ,NIINND NYT 209D GO .((5.03%-D PPYY PIWIN3I) Nederlanden OFE
IPONI NOMWN NVYWHTSS -1 Adam P2 DNMIY NPIN YY1 DOON

INAY OTIND 1NN DY NDOW 1N DY NPV NPMNN MTD IN/A NN MIAN PV NI2ND DY NYMNHNN 99 ¢
NPDA NIN ONY NIIWND 927N PRI ONNIVN JNND 21T KD 1D, WITY .ADMINN NYT DI1pow 19 D IR
(TP2POW IN NPAPN) NN NPV NPINI/NA-NT2N I : ININD YNINON JNNN PRYY .DPYT TN INIIV NI 1ID
, MDY PPOYY TINIWAYA THPMON XN 1D NNINI IMDND I (TOIN) NI/MDIdONY IN» N 5% Hv
M55 192NN IN MPPYAN DIND DY 2711 POLININ
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Magic Software Enterprises Ltd

Israel

2,12

Roshtov Software Industries Ltd. F.T.S. Formula Telecom Solutions Ltd
—> Israel Israel
80,05/80,05 (80,05/80,05) 100/100 (100/100)

Magix Integration (Proprietary) Ltd
Republic of South Africa
100/100 (100/100)

Magic Software Enterprises Inc
USA
100/100 (100/100)

Pilat Europe Ltd
United Kingdom
100/100 (100/100)

Magic Software Enterprises Neth. B.V. Magic Software Enterprises (UK) Ltd

Magic Software Enterprises India Pvt.

BridgeQuest, Inc.

Pilat (North America) Inc

Netherlands United Kingdom — India USA USA
- 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
v
Onyx Magyarorszag Szsoftverhaz Hermes Logistics Technologies Ltd Magic Software Japan K.K. BridgeQuest Labs, Inc. Comblack IT Ltd
—> Hungary United Kingdom Japan USA Israel
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 80,24/80,24 (80,24/80,24)

Magic Software Enterprises Spain Ltd* Magic Beheer B.V.

Magic Software Enterprises (Israel) Ltd

Allstates Consulting Services LLC

Comblack Municipal Services - CMS Ltd.

> Spain Netherlands —>| Israel USA Israel
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 70/70 (70/70)
Magic Software Enterprises France SAS Magic Benelux B.V. AppBuilder Solutions Ltd Coretech Consulting Group Inc Shavit Software (2009) Ltd
—> France —1 1 Netherlands ] United Kingdom USA Israel
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
Magic Software Enterprises GmbH Magic Hands B.V. CommIT Technology Solutions Ltd PowWow, Inc. INFINIGY (UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED
L Germany Netherlands — Israel USA United Kingdom
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) | 76,07/76,07 (76,07/76,07) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
2
Complete Business Solutions Ltd Knowledge & Solutions Software B.V. CommIT Embedded Ltd Coretech Consulting Group LLC INFINIGY (US) Holdings Inc
i Israel Netherlands Israel [ USA USA
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 75175 (75/75) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
DataMind Ltd Intrabases SAS Skysoft Solutions Ltd Xsell Resources Inc INFINIGY Solutions LLC
Israel — France Israel e
90,1/90,1 (90,1/90,1) 100/100 (100/100) 75/75 (75/75) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
Mobisoft Ltd Minereye Technologies Ltd BA Microwave Fusion Solutions LLC INFINIGY Engineering LLP
— Israel Israel < Israel S USA USA
98,52/98,52 (98,52/98,52) 55/55 (55/55) 69,38/69,38 (69,38/69,38) 100/100 (100/100) 99,9/99,9 (99,9/99,9)
Menarva LTD. Comm-IT Technology Canada Inc. CommIT Software Ltd Futurewave Systems, Inc OnTarget Group Inc.
—>| Israel Canada > Israel — USA USA
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
Appush Technologies Ltd. CommIT Al Ltd Quickode Ltd Fusion Technical Solutions LLC OnTarget Labs, Inc.
— Israel Israel < Israel < USA USA
100/100 (100/100) 70/70 (70/70) 100/100 (100/100) 49/49 (49/49) 100/100 (100/100)
v
Appush Inc. Al Team Software Solutions Ltd 9540 Y.G. Soft IT NETEFFECTS INC MagicQuest Labs LLC
Israel Israel Israel < USA Georgia
100/100 (100/100) 85/85 (85/85) 60/60 (60/60) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
Sanjer Al Ltd Aptonet inc. OnTarget Labs LLC Russia
100/100 voting rights / equity interest as at 30 June 2025 (in %) Israel <~ USA Russia
(100/100) voting rights / equity interest as at 31 December 2024 (in %) 26/26 (26/26) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
!
[ subsidiary company Autonomy Al Technologies Inc Stockell Information Systems Inc. OnTarget Labs Latvia
/7 associated company USA USA Latvia
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
* company in liquidation
Valinor Ltd enablelT, LLC KM.T (MH.) Technologies
[N Communication Computers Ltd.
Israel USA Israel
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 60/60 (60/60)
Dario IT Solutions Ltd Enable IT Consulting Services Canada Inc. Expim Ltd
> Israel Canada Israel
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (0/0)
Twingo Ltd The Goodkind Group, LLC Goodkind Hospitality, LLC
—>1 Israel USA ’ USA
60/60 (60/60) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
COMMHIT USA, INC Theoris, Inc. Goodkind Services Group, LLC
g USA USA USA
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
Comm-IT Technology UK Ltd Executive Life Ltd
— United Kingdom USA
100/100 (100/100) 100/100 (100/100)
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DOVN VIZYA NYIPY MIVIN MMV NYWIHIH DN ININND VIO NAY PNY

Intrabases D¢ NN PN XIVN DX NIANN NWIT 2022 XD wTIN2
NDYDIY MXNOLIN) NN XMPY MPaY (7Intrabases”) SAS
TPNNOIN MONN LIYON DIY» ,NIONT NNHNNN NN ,VINIA
NN IYIIIN PI DNNPNN NPIMNIN YN MDY P2 DN OV
AT YD 3.4-5 DY TO2 YN NNNN NDDO

The 5w nynn PN XN NN NI2NN NWII 2022 LOMIX YTIN2
NP NN MY Npav ,Goodkind Group, LLC ("TGG")
,DYD19) NMINNIYN YN NMONINOV MY ,07ITHN PN N
TGG 0”039 DXMPYY YN YANYD IV [ 1OVNT TN
npaon TGG .7NINMPYS NYIOIN MNINS NHNRNNI NNHNN
, DY 2992 DMIPD 01N MM \NON YV DMINNA YD
PNONT NPND NN 5, NPOYN DY OONN NPT
NNONDN NYIIN NN (continuity) MAPNT 1NIOM NMNORM
DN A9YT PO 8- GYUND 9T 1N 11.6 -5 HY Y5 oY
DNV NN ONOWY  DNTI DIDWNI NI NIION NYL IV
.2024-1 2023

MOV MPINN NIINN NWIT 2023 %)Y WTINY 2022 920N8T wiNa
,("Mobisoft") Mobisoft Ltd. -2 maNNN2 24.77%-) 3.75% Sv
NRTPNN MIDN NNNAVYI HY NOMNIM PIPY ,NMN9I NPOIYN
SN NNAND NTYYHNN NN MPOND MDY 5D
NI IN DD ,NLY INNI MYNNNI DIINON DMNININDY NPNRIVOP
,11790 01N DY RN D112 1N NIVANRD NNNOVIIN .NNN
DY NINDN TINNOPN TIN,NNANX PIT2 MNPY MPYY 71M2) NN
wxa Mmyoin (BI-y ERP,CRM 115) NN y11R0 mMovn
INNOY J9IND ,IDVT PO 6.2-3 DY HD1D TOA NNHN DVWN THID
.Mobisoft N 98.52%-1 NI2INN NPIINN NN MV

SV PAnNN NYINN PN 60% NIANN NWOY 2023 Y wTiNa
KM.T. (M.H.) Technologies Communication Computer Ltd.
,0”09 DXNVIIND PY SMPY SV ORI PPao (“KMT”)
,VoIP |ICT »¥m Y X9 PN NYINNN OO I OONDN
Nwo7 KMT .2wnn nynwn Sy 02y 1N5M NNOv 15N
.POYN NNOYN NYA IXIVN NNDIVY 9T 1P 16.2-5 NN
DYOWANN DT TN XY KMT-v 955 ,npoyn NN 9 Dy
2023- N9PNY NNWY 1m0 MIVON DY) 2022-2025 DMWY NNND

:MNINNN

.2.13.1

.2.13.2

.2.13.3

.2.13.4

213



-12-

NINNN DX PINNY DN YIAT (DXTYa T0IY ROW DI 2026
NYIN MNI DX RN PN ,NND X IPON ,1IMNN
-2 172NN NPINN NYYW NOTHIN IP) DWW PNNY DN NIDNIY

(yapyw mannn Y onnna KMT

NMSY22YW NAN NN NMIYNNNI ,NIINN NWIT 2024 TN wTINa
Noyaw N1an »03) ,CoreTech Consulting Group LLC ,nN90N
5N 11.8-5 YW TOO NIHNA ,NPIAN MNINA IT >MPY DINna
DINNA D02 NYDD NYIIIN .DNY WIDY M HY NNWNY IOVT
2 LIT - nvnvm mnvy ,n7Vpnn 0NN DY Y XMV
.D>T2Y 250-5 NVYOP

Theoris ¥ NN NN 100% NI2ANN NWIT 2024 D>I9N wTIiN2
NIN NP NIV O MYPY 1NN NN ,("Theoris") Group Inc.
P2 ,MNMPOY NY8Mm 27NN NOoav NonNMm I[T-n onna
NPSPVAN MM ,NPPVYIN ,DNN) M1 DMPY N
Sv H9Y0 TOY NNONON NWIDIN 1) NYDIDN NNNINN .PY IVNHD)
(2026 Y112 31 DYDY DY N ODVYNN PON) 91T 1PN 13.1-5
NI DX0) NYIY DIDN DY NIANN NHNNN 2024 XD WTINA
#Adam Care” YTIYON DI9VN YPOY DY NIOYINN MDYN XN
NN Ny Meida Computers Software Solutions Ltd. n92nn
YTV MPav Ny Adam Care .99y 1990 1.5 -5 5w 7021 NH91D
YANVNY DMNIVPN MININD PN NPODNN INIYIA NPIDYM NN
DYMIPY MY ,0MPOY MNIPHDI NPMIPN NPMIYID NN IR
MavM 9DV 517 ,NDIDN NNLVIAN PNPIOYN DOV ONYPN
DNV YPDY DININN DOVIND DO TV NI 21D

NIN NN MYNNNI) ,NH2AND NPOYN 2024 VPN YTIN2
N7 NN ,(CoreTech Consulting Group LLC ,nN90N nmbyaavy
,Executive Life Ltd. S¥ y395m pannn nymn P 9o
7Y ), TN MDN NOMNSN DY Poa YY) NHan ("Executive")
PN MNIYD OV >MPYa NN Executive .(370IN)
DDA, MIRNIYN ,PIVY YN NMNONOL 1M K910 0NN
LOPP0NP Y MY ,PAY PR OSIMNNY TP N NN NI
702 NNONON NYIIN NAY NOION NNNNN .IMINDOP) DOPL
ANTIPOIN 1.5-55v

KMT nHan mysnxa) D1ann Davpnn 2025 X vnina

212>72) ¥I9)M PANNN NINN PN DD NYDIY DO0NA (NNVOVIY
NNNNNN PY 2112 NN L("DXODPNY) DY DIADPN DY (NXON

.2.13.5

.2.13.6

.2.13.7

.2.13.8

.2.13.9
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MNIVPIN INDN MINNX NINN 191N NPADN NNV 1N NY MY
-39V 702 NOD NNNNA,NORD MYYIRNM 712N 129D NNVIANX
DI 16.2

9901 SY DMPINN NYYDT NN MPDWN 2025 DI9X wiNa .2.13.10
LAY DMNTNOV NMININD OV PN DIP NIINT VIV NN OYa
DXMPYY MNINS MM NPOWN L("0MIP”) VNP NXIPN
(embedded computing) ¥IWHN WNH L IT-N ,M>INN mINN2a
NYOIN NNOVYN DY .VIMPA DIPMPINND NYIY  NNYPM
-99 68.15% - VIYMPA PMPINN IR NN NIAND ,NNIND
NOD DT 0P DY YINM PN NMIND NN 79.32%
97 50.4 -5 DY TDA NNONON NYIIIN NAY NOIODN NNHNN
Y

("§9Y7) XIMY NYON PAD PN P ONN 2025 92H2N vTINa .2.13.11
DY WP ,PNNN DOON (72009 PYaAMP’) KN7ya (2009) PN
SV (NNNNNI) YT IX NINY WY THIXAIN / 9910 TIXNIN NN
("IT P9amPr) N7ya HOON PYAMIPA XMV YW PRI Yo
NMSNN VI P2 NNNNN 2009 PONIP MYSNNI MPIMND
(N)-D YN NI2N MY 97y AVIND ,PNIYN 29D WD IN 10N
01 Yy IT PHanmp Hv >navin )yonn NNIN YINHD NN
DMITOPN DMWY (8) NMNNY DDA DY IVINd WX THIND
PYANPN NN MDPYIN NYIDT P NG Y910 KXD) DMNINKD
IN 9990 NMNN WINA NYTIN NINI 1Y TN TP IWN (2009
IT P5amp Sv 0PI1ann O»IDIN MMTN 29D ,NNNRNN YOI
-1 ,1772NN YW DXTMINHDN DMODIN MNITL WNRVINY DNMN 29D
VIO DY NIPNI) 7.6-2 IR (100N TPNIMN WIdN DY NIPNR3I) 7.4
SV PoN X GpWNnn DD (1) NADIN ,NNRNNA ,(WIIN MINNIN
TY A0V NPIYND OMININ OXNNIN NIN TO DNIND NN
NYTIN NN’ I TND OTPY MINTIOPN JIYAIN DY PINKRD OPY
ININNI) OPIVN PN NVN NPOY NNROVND N .IIIN
VINMID MIN NINN NNINRI NPININDND NNX D ,(1OND 3.3 Pyl
.DVUTIN 6 YW NOPN TYNd

NN MNPOY NIaNN PN MYPYn .3

JP7TONIY NN DDA INDND MMV NIINND NN DY 2 Pyoa XD .3.1
72NN SY NPINN NN NMYPYN IS XD ,NT INDND TVINDY 2024-) 2023 DNV
ToNN2 MNRPOY LYND ,N2 PRYN DY XT> TPNMINI NPMNI MIXPOY WA XY
95 ,(0TOM TINN) NN PANY NYYIY MDIYN NIINND T DY P TONIL INDNN
N2 NDI22Y P7TONIA NIAND SNIPTI NNTY
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DYTAIW DYOMNY T HY ISPINY 172NN DY OXPNRN TIY MM MTIN DOV 3.2
LDYMIVYN MMTY 15 NN INY ,N¥IAPA

NPOY DY P2 OPXILVN DY DIDNA NIANN NIYPNN ,2025 92HINa 3 OPa .3.3
192NN Y'Y Y197 PANNT NN NN KIZN NN DPIIVN YIDTIN NNNDNI NN
INNY PAY NADNN DN’ HY DDIANNA ,PIMN YIIWN NVH DY TIT2 NON N T1a
YI9M PANNN PNNN 31.125%-52 192NN NPIN DY IPXIN> NPOYN NPHWN
NN 92 OPIIVN MMN IPIINNY NINN DY) 5 NON N15T2 OPIVN DY
DO0N Y09 .RIN ND1TA OPIIVN DY YINM PINNN NN 68.875%-D 1PN
INDND YN ,0PMIVN MDY NONRN I NIT NINDNA ININND 01N NN
172NN TIONN ,NININND NINN NPOY NNOYNN NIRNIND D NI INNN M
NI OHYIA 1297 NIANN NN DY, OPIIVN HY NRDN MDY NPVII NIAND
Rvip2alvjan!

NPT 4

DDPVT RPN DIVVTN 4.1
9 OY2 NMOTY WX ,DXTITT NPIYN NPPTN NN NN 2012 MV
192NN PYNN ,MOTIVHN DXTITITN NPIDN NPPTHNY OXNNA .2017 LONINA
YPIN NMIMNN 75% TY DY TITT 2IYAT IN XTIV ONN PV D01 DY 7MY N
PNOPPT LPTN MNNIND POOIY [, NINT DY VATV .71PNMN IOYaAD ONYHn
IN/Y TITTN MPIPN NYY NN NNV, NY HIINYT NPIW 29 DY PRYI NIINN
NPPTH NPWI DN P2 NNYI-TH NVINND ON P2, TITT POND NoW VONND
STY0aN INYT NNPOW 29D Do -

DNPVTMPWN 4.2
DYMYA NI2ND NP OYID DT MPIN MTIN VP NP P
s DMINND

0.30 SV 702 TYT2>T NPIYN DY NIANN NN 2023 XN 9 DM 4.2.1
20 DY DWWV ,ANT I 14.7-5 S D51 TO ,IND T
;2023 99N32

Y TO2 YT NN DY NIANN NION 2023 LOMINA 14 DM 4.2.2
DY OOWY ,I0T PO 16.1-0 DV 551D 7O ,1InND AT 0.327
;2023 920V902 13

0.204 v TO2 TYT2>T NPIDN DY NIANN NN 2024 O8N 16 OP2 4.2.3
Y11 11 0P DNVY 0T )P 10-D DY 5515 7O ,1MNnd AT
;2024

12 OPYIVA DY YIAM PANNN NINN PN WNRYN PRI 219771 DPIIVN DY ¥I9M PINNN NN DT 1D 5
TYINA OPXIVHN NI PN MNMPN NPNIRD T3 Wi DY MPOUNND NNINA ,NDNN DIO0N DY NINND TNND
NPXMIND WIDINN IRNIND MNPIIN NINN 19010 IWNRD ,Cashless Exercise YW 11002 NN 050N NNdYNN
OTIPN INDNN DY DINA OPIVH NN HY NDNAL NPWN WY DA DY Net-Exercise NOVOW 290 2NN 9NN

2PN DO0N NNYYN TYIND
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SV 702 YT NPYN DY N12ANN NYION 2024 72H2n1a 18 OP2 4.2.4
8-2 DWWV ,A9YT YN 11.6-5 DY Y910 DAY, A0rT 0.236
;2025 AN

0.327 5V 702 TIT2T NN YY 172NN N5 2025 ¥11N2 11 0»3a .4.2.5
YNNI 7-2 DWW IWN ,IDVT DI 16.1-5 DY DD TOY ,110IND AT

.2025
SV 702 TYTT NPWYN DY NIANN NN 2025 LOININA 13 DA 4.2.6

-2 02 TUNR ,ANT PO 14.5-0 5W H1D T0) 1m0 9917 0.296
.2025 120PINa 22
MMTY 18 1IN D) NI ,NI2NN NPYINY DITITDT DY IWPA DD DXV
.D»MVYN

NPIPNY BN DN

302 YDA ONITIND) NPIVND OMINRIN DXNNIN NN ,2025 712 30 DY NI
MNIT2 NI - 270N AT )P 111.1-5 DY TOY NNONON ,(MHNN PN
(79993520 MNYT) NN DY DM O»IVIN

TITT NPIYN DY MY

NPIDNN MN2NA NTNIY DY YYD PN NININD NN DITHITDT NPvN
.1999-VVNN ,MI2NN PIN OWNIAPN

PON2 172NN NI DY WAYND NMVY TUN NPNYN MON PR, INNND TIND
DY 1190 MMIYPNNL IWIAPIV NPDINS MY NN DY IWP OYND ,THITT
A9ND 19.2 YDA VNN DMV DMDIVS DI

NPIZND YIN2 NP2 MINNN AN PA,O910 NDNN DI0N D, I Nt IWpna
DY SNN ,NPNN 00N DY NINND NXYTPNN NNPNA NN YT DY THITT
NI (7% PRN NAPNNY) NN DI0N DY MIPNND TYIN TY) 2024 120NT 31
NN OO0N NNOVND NVND 050N NINN TN PIY D»IN NNPNI
VN9N) NIANN DY TITAYTN NPIDN NP TID DNNNA YIN ,(7Dr93%aN NAPH")
NOOPONN NI NITI ININDDY DIDN HYIAPIY DXADN MOINI DININD) (DOYY
A2 9MNNN N IRNN YN NIOOON

4.3

4.9
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N Y7999 - 2Y DN

NNAPN HY MPIYON NN 22)D 2909 YN
nuwY NVOYO 2024 MWD 2023 MIYY NI2NN DY DMIDIN DMNMN MTIN DOVID
NMINNONNN T2T2 \PNVPPTN 201D 191 ,2025 12 30 DY MWANONY DOVTINND

A9ND 29 PYD INT ,DINNND D1IDON DIMNNINND THN DI 1DNY DNV

NNAPN MPIYO Yy ©INYN 0199 NYIYN 1YYV HaaD

TOYIOI-MIPRNPM NPHYON N0 NPIPYY NMNNANMD DWNPR ,MNHIN NNON PND
V>, N72NN NIV NI 20D TN ,NT DY DPINNN DX TIRNN NIAND NOVID NIV
2V NMNNANNN IN NPPOYN MNNIND DY THIMNN NYOVN ONY NPNY MNOY N 0D
.DNYMOOVM NXIAPN MDY YPOY

WN YD NN NA0N NNINM VAN MDY MDIND MIXXIM NXIAPN MDY POy
DYNIPN DIV PNRN 191,001 NN 7D MDY 2IMANNDNI DIV NN 1DPWUND?
S5 MYYON MINNIN DY DOWAWNT DI DY GO 1PTY .ANNAY I2¥a ,0MDONRIION
A9NY 27 Y02 N0 ML T INT,NNIAPN

HNIYI INDNIOVN IV MY DINTNH NI 6.1

SINIVIA (M&A) MM DONTIN QYA NIY MDY NN MNINKD DNIWA
MNPOY2 MTPNNND N2 11D NN PPARNNT ,7PNINIVN YA V9
7179¥2 TN D101 MXPOYN 190102 T2 INTN I NNHN .OPNMYNHVN D92
TINTONP YO0NN MYNIN M NYHNIY MIIN IWUNRD 905N 19P>)N2
VI DO NANIN OMINNN JTIYN PIVN DYD NPHNNI NPIVIVON MWD
YVINNNNN MNTNN IDIN ,NNT OY .OMPNINDPA DXPNYD NPTNN NPNRYM
DM DY MYIIIN NYYTH O PN PV DY WIVND PYNN H935oM
OOMN OMPYN SY DX DYDY NV MRPOYN MANY D ,DPNINDPI
NONIVN NY L ANY OY T AN DPHNN ONPD NI (Earn-outs)
NN DY NPHY TN ,NDIVIN NI I PRY TR WY POIN YINRIWYN

LDPMYNYN D9PINA NPHIVIVONX MYPYN DY NN NN NMIA NIYTN

NIN NYINN NIV DIMIYWA NNIAPD MNIPY DY NN WDV OIDINIDMDY 6.2
N8APN MDION DPNNNI MWD

NIPOY2 Y2 MININKND DMWY NNIAPN YW MIOND NNIN NYWA NPIPN

MDION .0V NDIONN 22X PAY DN ,1NT ,MDIINN DPNNNA OMNPYN

MINY) DNZIN NINHNNY NPINNN SNV DOIMIP MIDIN NNPYI NPONN

Y N0 MNPV NPONND MDIOND DN INY DAY MIDN NN SNV

V79,799 DRNNA NN NP OIMPY IN OONEPN [T O MPYN) DOWIOHY DI TTN
MDIONN NYVA N DOWHY DYTTS DY MM MPoNn YV >ondn jpbna

.XAPN DY OIIONN NNIN NYWIA NP RIAND DI1DY DONSPN IT rMPYn
901 TIY MY MNIND DY aNT DO IMNPOD NHANN N8N ,)0-IND
NMVPLIIN DN XY MY (Cloud Services) PY NPV AN P2, 0099151

7YY , SaaS- 7aynn ONND MNPY SMPY 1T HHD2) DWW MIONN NI

.5
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Alliance Lead as D187 MINMPY MDY MNYN YN NPPAD HYW O»Ha0PIND
NYNWP OMIPVY (Cyber & Information Security) Y70 HNVIAN ,a Service
NYN NNIAPN 90N .LITVINRD NDADY DPN NININD (Connectivity)
Amazon Web Services, :D2>2100 YN YPOD NVOY YW 1Y NOMVY
AWS (Amazon Web Sv "PREMIER, MSP” namv ; Microsoft Azure ,Google
SaaS, Migration, Data & :DNan DMIONN) MINDN YIIX DY Services)
oy ,GCP (Google Cloud Platform) Sv »Premier” Nomv ; (Analytics, GenAl
Dy ”Solution Partner” nn92 Namw Infrastructure Specialization 112000
Infra and Database ©’5919N) Microsoft Azure Cloud -2 Specializations NY2IN
NN PINNND WY .migration, Data & Al, Security, Digital & App Innovation
CommlIT N2 NH2N MYSNNI PYA 7MIYN NOMYY ININD DXIYD YAV NNIIAPN
.Technology Solutions Ltd

NPNYN NNPN L,PSDINTIN NN DAY DVPNIN 17 PO NXIIAPY
DXMPY PADY NY DIVANNN SaaS & [oT VPN A/ML >OPMIY , MYTN
MSP 15H0N0 Nbya NN NXIAPN SNDIN PYA OMVYN DININN DONINPN
DY9919N PYN MNPYY 24x7 NN MPY NAOWM (Managed Service Provider)
T DXPION PR MNIN .DevOps, FinOps, Billing & Operations, Support
DTRYIY MNINGM OXMPYN DDA GON XMNN 2T DNNN ORNND) 0N
NPNYNOL DINN PPN PVDINN MIYN PO NY IWINRNN NPIINPYD NIANN
DANX N NNP DND NNYPNM IVNNN ,NPIVNN MMNN 15 (IT) y1nn
2N DYVPMI9D) DI TTHINNND NXIAPN HY NNDID NN 137 19INA 19VN
DINNA D25719) DXPPN DXVPNID NN YMINNT NTHYN NN PIND 91
DMNNN NN YN OPOYN 1NN L IT-N

PIMNIPY DY PON 72N DY NOPNA 2T TPIN NNDNN NXIAPN DY NNPHNIN
959 D133 N NPIYTN NMMHIVIVON DIV NTIAY YOMY DY MISDVNIN,PYY
CommlIT Technology SV )yN >NMN SY DM .MXHM NMDY SV
TINVIITIN OIONN NYNLN ,NNVPYIIIN XMPY MO Solutions Ltd
,72»0 /SaaS, [oT-2 MNNNN DY ,MYTN PY MXA0 NP MNP MOIYN1
YMYNYN NIDIND MINAN NIANN NIIYND IWNR TPMONRYN NP2 NONT M2
JPMNIPOS OMNITPNNI PY SNV MY MM MDY

Google (GCP —Google Cloud Y¥ 1yn N2>202 NNNMYIIM NXAPN DY NNYHDIN
,Google Cloud S¥ N2 NOMWI NTHYN NX MIAPY 9N NIVIN Platform)
MNIPYS NY»ON NOM ,MNIMPYY DPNDNO0 MNIND DXMPY NPIvNN
YMYNYN NOOND NOAND ,PY2 NTIAY >N H¥»Y Google Cloud Sv 019
NXIAPN . PY 0D DXVWTN DMWY DMWY NN PYI YNV NMIDYI
Y MINPMVMN DIDPN) DXAINND DIIPN DY NIPN PN NVINI NY»ON
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MNTPNNN NPDLIANN PMONINT NIAN MDD MYNNINI MNP PY MND?
.Google Cloud v
SaaS AWS, NN NNYXNA NP NPXON NN ,N2Y2IN MNINKD DNV
PL-YN MY ,0PTIND DMPODY DIVN PN MHaN Ny GCP-Y ,Azure
.DYDI)9) MV, MNXNIVNHPI NOYYN ,DIR-DINVD)

IT YTRD NYNINOV P MM .6.3

MY 112 YRN NPNINO0 DINNT NPNIYN MNIND MITIN VI XA PND
DOYNIVN IT-N Piva D) MV PY IND TUN ,INNND DIV TN 2024

IV MUYYINND NYIND NONN NOSNY MY NN 2024 MY .6.3.1
29721950 NYNOVN

MNXNIND 4.6%-D DV D) NN 2024 MY NN 6,700 195 .6.3.2

WA IT >ny vy 191NN MINN AWUNRD | NPYNYY INDNOLVN
JSNNNNA,3.6%-21 11.5%-2 SW NN

IMNIAYY NIDINN OINN OY ,7.7%-d 7PN 2024-2 D¥yTHN 7,70 29D .6.3.3

AT-n m 1w 5.6%-5 YW NNIXY 12%-5 5¥ NNMIN INID DN

,Data Centers-n DINNA NNV NP2 NDYTHIN NNPNONN IV 9D

DIV I GX NOYTY INMIN §,2024 NIVD 39.4%-5 DY NNMIN DY
L,MMINKN DMWY NNMIN OINKA 5PN IWR) PYN IWNN OINN2

NN WX [aaS-n DINNA TN1HNIY 2024 NIV 19.2%-2 HW 51 T) DY
Data Centers-2 197710 RXY 9Y1)HNY 012010 V) 2.21.3%-32
Y9N NI ©2-PC -1 DMOVINNDDI NYNIND MTIVINNN YN
(Al Optimal Services) AI-n >nwn 70% .Al Optimal Services
.Hyper Scalers-y m7w >pav »1 Dy 0w
YMYNAVYN 19IND WAVIN 2024 MV DRI IT MRHN 9PN .6.3.4

MM ,STKI 295 .1191n MAHIN MXTIN-INNDI YOINNNNDN ANNIN
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LOPNVINT 035953 1IN IN/) OINIPY , 9997 )23, 59905 13793 , 998977 JOINI IWUPII
2303 DNV, NP1 NIIND 1793 I TD2 11390I0 519103 IN/) IV ININS DIV
II5359-09PND SOV , 099039977 DIPNVUI DPNTIN IIPNA IN/ 25395971 959597
IN IN/) D997 OPIVIVON MO IMIUPNA D007 503 M35 1901
IN/) 193N7 TNTIVO 2NN DIODNI DIINN 1033 IN/) SNINNA IINNINA , OV
T D3NN BIDMIA 2T 5Y WITIT I PIVA IN 509 N7 D73 O9NYa
7139997 INIINA IN , J1IV/ 5193907 39 5Y 21120 IN/) TIIDIYD TUNAS BIVY9177 979139
NIP0A ISP 1IN IN TIUDANI DIV DIIIN) TN OINNDII DI PNS DHI3

JINDNS 27 Y03 D II9ND
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MY MINH 29V NIANN IPOY NNIN - SYIYY Phn

02389 (IT) Y119 NNV MY BINN 7

Hys 7.1
DY 2.6.1 PYDAHHHI VI NI
MPYIN DINN DY IO YN 7.2
Y5 7.2.1
YT ©27 DNNINA YN MIIWYN DY MO ,MNINRD ONYA
DYNWM 720 THNN WIDdYN NIND AN P2) SMIYNIYN 19INA

available enterprise) DONN YN TNXY OMININ

OPOY MNTPNN 291 DNON NP 15 Ty ((applications
TOMYNYN MOV NPPOYN MYINI DY ,TMNIN MNNINM
MA579N2 DY) DY N NN L,NIAND NN .NPIINN NV
DNMNINI VIDWUNY OGN DY . TNV D) TYNIND NN YHN MWD
MYNIAN NMINIVTN MOWN ,DXNIV NI DPNYNOV NI
12°202 1517190 M2AINNN 227 PN 2T INN NMY MION M1
NAYN )NIND DY TIOWIND MWD NX 217 19 DY NN N
DONIN TYUND MDY NPPY 1AM MLINN NYIAP 20NN
19N TN8Y IT Y00 MPNNA XITYD P70 ,NNYD DXWpan
TPOYN N0 DNPYI MWD N DXVTN DOPDY 0¥ONNI
MNANTN NMA) MAINNA NNX KD OWPNI ON ,1PNVONIN N
LDMITIVN N DWTN DPPOY DMV HY 1DOWA NYNLvNA
L9012 .MM NIPYY 29 AT, DIV AR DIWINT NON DYONN
09N ’aN92 MNAN 2972 ODVITN NPWN ANPA NNNN NDN
DTN DNININDA ININ NPHVT NN INM AN DOYNT NIMPD
MYNNNI OMTHN NANM DY) DOYNT 0N ,0XPDY DXVIY ON
PINNY IR I2TD Y520 PNRT NINPY MPY IX NNONX YA ONDTY
NP DOOVIPT NN DXIANYT OINNIN DTV D) .DINN DIVIND
NON DMNNONY DD MNID DY WI9NT .0NOY NTIAYN MMpna
WVINTN NPYN MIVN NN DXWI NNLPY MNTY MIANY DI
DMMIN NP INY ,NI12NND NIIWND ,TIN NN .OPN ITO UK
PYNY YT IOVT NPIYIN N0 NP GTYNDY YINRD 19708

V0 DYTAIY DI DYDY DD DOONDN NPNYY YMIND NI
VIDIWD I23N 20N RIN YYD DY WIUND G0N SMYHYN DI
NMNTPNN NPNTNOV XWX TED I NPV PY IWNNI
N2 T NN .DVMTI MDIN YODIN OOXMPYY VIPYAN MANIN
YONN MNNYNNN POND 2024 MYA NRY N2 NV MY
N2 MDY NYAVNDY ,DMDAIDN MIOVLINTN NINNNIDINVN
JO0NOV DINRMN DOV ,OMYTN OMIPYY  MNPOHN
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SY AN PN NISY PY DWNND YN DY NYAND DN
YV DXMIPYN DD NININ M0 ,MYTN NPPOY NPINTIN
MNINND DNV .NT OINNA DD MNIND NN MMPYD Wb
NI2YNT Y09 Y NDNN TN DININ TN NI MNPND NI
92yNN POND Y NIADY OPPOYN DIHNNM NDON MIIWYN

AN DD DI, DINTPNN 2IWNND MNNYY 5910
TPMYNYN NIINN NIN RN DD G NPNDN DTN ,D2IpNna
MAINNA,OONTPRND MNIA NMOYN NYINN 120N MPN ININI
Y NNPYI,TON NINNIND .DYOPIND DMIINN MDD MOPNNN
MYITI MNINM,I220N 2NTDN DWANN DMNIDDY NYWNN NNI2
NNVIAND YN PIVNAY NV ,NNNA DI DXANWYNI WPWND
,9201 MNPNX HY DNIAONNY DIPINA TYHNNN DTN DY
OMYNYN OYY D21 NPOLIDTN NNNN MDWN N T8D
MNINSD WIipday) Y PNRN NNLAN MDYND OININ NIYTINIA
MNP ON DNPXR DY MTTINNNY  DNTPNND  DPNIONOV
DYD DWPIAN PPOYM MNDSN NN 0YYO1) 0V DINDNI
,NINN NPNDNOV PA DADWNN DXPN NNIN DIDNNN DOXMPY
YN NNVANY IIPDN NNVIAX OINN .MNTPNN NP NVN
OPNYA )N IMIPHNN PV YN ,PNN AP NNANND YN
VTN NPNITNOV NNMYYNI 2T NNMNIN YN NN 01O
LS(AT) PMONRDNN NAN DINNA HPMNN MNTPNN O) NYN 90N
OpenAl, nonT DMV OOV DY ONDNID OY IPKYD

PINY MIPY MYINK PN NPNDNOL .0>INNY Claude, Gemini
TPMONONT NN THYN NX MODDINI , D09 DMNNIN 1AV 19INI
T NP MOONN NYAP ,THIWAN MDY NDYS 315 DD
VIPA 9% DY) OV ININRD MV ToNNa .wIn Opoy
,DYPOY DMWY MY, MORYD NP2 dDDIN MNIND
DOMPY PNINPYY PADY NONN NIANN .OMDWIN DOVITIN
,DY0NN 19V NIVN TINND TPMONDN NP DXIASVN NN
TN GO TI PIYNDY ,INVINT MIMVIND MDD NN PIND
TYNND AN 1T NN ,NNAND NDNIN NOIWNY . PIINPYY
PN NN DNIND NOMH NN ,MMIPN ONYA ININN
Y2989 DNNNNN TIN,NT DINN NYISN NOIY MNINSN DIMPYN

MY NPNONOL M0 PMMPD
DXMPY DY NI NN NXIIAPN NPADN ,MININNDD MNIND NIYND
q9P°02 XN MNP OMPYI MINN DINNI DINTPNND DONNPNI
YMPY NN NPOADN 1N NNDN .1ONLN NI M O
YMPY ONTNOV X DIV NN  NPNIYN NYNRLM NN

TP ,272m ,(0wdsm M) DevOps , 0950007 MNINg ,N2Nn
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(Business Intelligence - BI) n»poy ny2y Big Data mn» ,mns
VNN YMIYY 7270 YN NNLAR ,Mainframe N30 PVIIN

IT >»myw D1ann NPson ,310 md .APIs-) omw» noMad yy
MY NNHMIN MHAN 0595 ,NINPY S 2N D DndHwn

NPNXPMINND MHaNN 1,000 bv pmv NndvA) #Fortune 10007
T DY NNDIVNNY 19D ,JTPMDION 29D NINNTHN ,INP2 MDVHN
onnNa NNy 95 (Fortune Business-n ONPMNXD - PWHINN
T ASMY NIVHNDY ,NIPN DO NVYIATIN THINSPHRN NPNMINY
MNNANNY YPDI NIND 2 51702 MNIPON MY dNvHvn
PPOYN DMV NNMINY

D22 25NN PVINNNNN ANND NONPHD NIADN NAIVN NN
YAPPN NIMYYY DINANN ,VI9 DNV MNNVIAN AN ,9902
MINN .NNNM PNVLIIN MDINNT MO MI2NN DY MDY
YIVNVN DYTNID NN TINMIND-PAM NINNRD MXTNN 0N
.DNYY NNTNN 1Y 9702 DMNHNVIL DN DY NMIYPNNI
DINYN DOPOIWN MINIPY T8N 920 VI I8N , TN IRNIND
MNNNA SNEPN IT I MPYSYT MNP XMPYY 0»HINVIA
DYVINNNNN OXNNNN NIIND ,272APNa .2IWNHNM 7PNONOVN
MMPY ONNY NDODN MNI2 IMHYY NN DDA DN
NININY NNNN TO) 210N NN YHRN DNVIAX ONINN2
9N DIINNA DOMNNPN DINTPNN DIXMIYY VIPIaN

M2 MW NNV THNRD 12X TUN ,NDIMY 2NT) PO N¥IIPD
MO DV VONMNN oMM (IT) yPHN NPNONOL DINNI
NNND NAYNI NHAND NN DINND DMVLMDIN NPNDNOLN
NAPN TYNI DT PIYA NDOYS N ,9v2 MDD MINHN
DN NMMPY DY AN TIvNn NOD NIY NIDNNA ,NOVINN
;70NN DPNYHRY DMDN MVPYN NN TND [ PYYN PO
PNMINPY DY DMPOYN PIVP DX PIRYNIDY 1YY N DIIWIND
WNRLNY PMNMPYY NYPDN NXAPN .IMPWS NN NI
TOVINT MPNNIODIIV NDD NI TINXY MNTPNN NPNIINOV
, Y N300 72¥N MIAIT - NI ININ MY YINT 751 NN
NNLVIAN NN NPPYWY ,TPMONIN 1)) DINM VIDOIWN NN
DYONN MNPV T NNT ; DININD MDY MMNOP YTV YN
MNIN NN NYNNN NXIIAPN .TPPOYN DNNMNIY NXND DMIYIN
N2WAN INTPYY NNYTNN MM 100N NMNOY NV TN
7905 M LY ,NNMVYIIY MNNAVYON DY TN ,NYY DMIVIVONN
SPTINPOS YUNN TV 2IPY 19N
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N NPV 7.2.2
XNV NI2YN DY DO TYHNND DI 9% NININKD DNV

YVTRN NPNONOL MMINNA (Outsourcing) NN NPYH NNONNI
BPO (Business Process Y¢ D»Tna wvimdwa 5y maid

DMVIND 79002 7MMHYa NNLVANH B NI .Outsourcing)
DXPADN DOWINN DMPYN 9 N NN NIND  OWPIANND
92N NPPOYN NN MNP TPNNND NIV TIND ,0MNNN
VI3 Y10 9000 12,00 DY TONN DIaNn DMy NN
L9012 .NYN ©DINN2 NMDOYS MIANINND NI2ANN DY 7PIPYD
MM DY NOYANY NINAN STNNND PON NIV DY NN NNNONND
MTIY) PPOY MK NOVIAND NIVNA ,IRIYD INY NPNDNOV
N2 1Y TONN NV MDY IN DYPN DY NINPNI D) MOIYIN
LMY DMIMINY) DININD NHANND DY MDYIN 9 na DY
D) MAX) I MNNINNY DaAPNa ,NINY DY .NNPN NN VIN
9PN NN DN OVPIANN ,NMMPONN PON 19P2 NDIDN NN
NIYN 015N MOY»MNN MIONN YN 0NN IT-N POPMNI9
970 P2 yan N WY (Insourcing) MDY OOMPYN O PON
DOTIND NNV MNINY 4PN AN DOVPNII DY NDXANN VNN
NNINY NNV NP DNLP ,DXTPIIN DXVPID DY 1N DIV
192NN SY MDY 9PN DY NNSNNND NYIYN NPND MUY 1N
.0»NMONN IT-N >NYPY HPINNa

SV POV DV NNIAPN NPIDHY NIND NP MDY
MINNA (17NN APOYR) DN INAWI DONNPN DOMPY
;MM VNN OWVIN DY APOYa PN NTIaYa N NNMpon
DIV ON YMIPY,NIDIN NN, NPNVI NPADN) NION YDINNA
DTN MO HOMPY NPOYN NN YMPY NNV \y»

N2V IINOYIY DN 7.2.3
YNPY MONON ,NPHIVIVON NMOMY MV NYPWH 1IN

,Microsoft, Salesforce.com, SAP, Edwards JD, Oracle Dy N2wo
Sy DOWYKINN MNINN YY1 NX 19¥O N7VNA SugarCRM-) IBM
YAMVY DY MIVP PIVND RO NI2NN ,NNT NNDNA .INIAPN I
NYIRY NOTYY OWPNI MANNVYN MYNNIND MONR 0”0 IT
DYy DAY H9INYW Magic xpl NOY NPNIVIND NNV MMANND
M0YN DY INMY 935 29 990N

11 DOINN DMPYI MPYIN ONN MIAN 7.3

MON PO OPPXID OIMIPY SY AN ) TNNN 25N PIva IT-N rMPY DINN
PONINO0 N SY DWW NON OMIPY DIV MN’D  NPNYN NPION)
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DINN2 DOWINPN DMPY G0N .DOHWN IN NP SMPY) NN MY
MY DINN .D¥DDNN IYM) IXIN NOTIN YMIPY ,MDN NNVIAN D99 IT-N
9210 V1PN : TININKD ISNINY NPTIII MNHIN NN OY,P1y MW 2w IT-N
D157 DXVPNINL D) TN ,NVNT 12 MNINAD D) 10, PV 92210 I0IW»H
NYNMN NNT DVWNT DMV DNV LIT YW PN NOLINY NN S INY
TN I2Y MIN YODIN IT NIy HY D1DIPL DIVPI DN .INY DM
TIN,MNIPON MDIWNA YHLNY AW INTNIVY NN SYNND MNIND IO
YO0 NPV OIT DY WITIN MNND IAYNN .DXIVNNND MIANYHD MDY 1NN
0) 19 ,PIYY 9N PN NOND PYNNA TNSN - IT >MPY nwo »ooNna
MM S NP N9TY NYOVNY DONoan LIT-N MPONNI DOYINND DXIARYN
57N ONDNN NYIDIN PONND 1IN , NN NVINN DY NPINID NPPOY
NN MPY NN 0) 72 IT >MPY S¥ X\INn NP n DY >NNONN DXPoyn
99N, MNP TYNRD NI %90 DOMPY NYIIT DTIND NOIP 19D DOXMIPY
outcome-driven ) MNXNIN OYNN OOMPY INM ANV DOVNT ,DOMPYN
PNV MY ,NION P INY NPITH MINIIVIN DY (managed services

92YN PN P2 ,00915 1Y MDY DINNA NNTH NIANNY MNINY DY
NN VIO MYYY DIVPINY DNNIN,I1IYIN TN N2 NOPOY NN NOVIND
N TNNN (DN YT SNNND MNIND 11122TN) PIIND MIW»/IT »02
MIND TINT OMPY) YN DY 9ayn IWanNY (Enterprise mobility) 170N
P Paas ,Saas XMWY Iay0 L,(27P0) PY ,912IN D) MY MDWN P2
D912 DINNN YT DY MM TIDY ,NPNYI DMNIND 120 TNY,0ININA
MPYNDY NPMYNDYNI NMNIND WINY NIN DY ININ DNDMPN (NONT M) DT
NN NN YW XVOIRY SNXPN IT IyN H2yn ,0OMIND MNIN
MNY NPPOY MTN SY MANYNI,T252 IT Y10 XMV NP TIN DPMNONOV
NNV NYIDT YNNI

Mva NYHRNYN IT-N MIRINA 5.6%-D DY NYDD NOHY MY 00N 19 Y
9 DY .3.6%-51 IT >MPYY 10.5%-32 21THD M9 MIDIND DN IWNRD 2025
,2025 M NYRYN IT-N MXXIND 9.8%-D DY NI9D MDY NN NV
.9%-52 IT >IN PYY 14.2%-52 D1THD NAY NIDIND 1IN TUND

N2A0NN NWAVIN NPNY DOWNN 2024 Mva IT-N1 MRIN ONIWAI
,STKI 5w MT19 5y 5200 ANINNDI %595-1I1PRNDN NINTIN TDINY HOINNNMN
N2 MYWIRNN NN ,.2024 NIVA T292 2.95%-5219T) YNV IT-N NINSIN
SN IT-N MNXIN ,DO¥D 6.3.5 PYDA VNOND) 2025 ToNNA IT-N MNHIN2
MOV PIVN ONIND NDY MAPYNN NPYY ,8.17%-51 2025 NIV D¥1TID NN
.Opoyn oIN2

19990 YNV NYN DY MDOYS DINNA NIAND DY NN NMMVIVON NI
MY PNRNY OND YO ,PIMMPY MNAY (one stop shop) TN MY
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P90 NPANIN NN DXTHNY ,NPMINNN NN I9YD T YDVINT (MINNINIDITV)
NPNMNI VIDOY DYIY NIaNND ,TD TINA YN OYYAD NHYP N2 T
NN TPMIMPOY YOO »TD NXIAPN MHAN 1IASY DO TINMT IIDINSPNOM
; DVTN DMWY DAIXIN MM NPT MY ,0MPDY DXNNN DY NN
MINA DIDPN ; IMDY 1IN DY TPISDDVNN ; MPY TMNINY MO DY
; TNVIAR NI PNDPD NNNON ; MOLINN NYAP MNWY DINNI DIN) ; WK YINWYNI
;Y DTN MPA (migration) PY MDY DMAYHND TV NPOM INY
N8P .D2INNDY DMION MNNAVH DIIXII DY DIYIN X DY MPSVINT
DY2N DMNIN DY WINY NIVNI MOVINT N NNIAY PMMPOD NYON
NI2YN MYNNND DYNY ,MDIDNT NNMINY MIVAN Y NDY DY DXOPIDNI
920 NNVIAN MDY, TPMONIN 13722 YINIWI DD DN DIN )Y DN
NMNONI) NNDM9T YIDY NVIY NXIAPN TV PIRD 7INI2 MINMP 1IN
MNINAVLAN DY TN ,NOY NPPOYN NMAMYN NIYTNN MDD ,1PON0N
DAPY IDIN TIY TPIIMPOY A8 ¥ T DY

MoWHN ,NXNAPN DY NPMNNT MDD NN MIHANN DY MPINN DOWIND
D595 2,11 PYD INT - T NIDOYH DINNA

39ND 28.3 PYD NI, MY MMIND 9D ,NXIAPN DY MIAN NMHaNN HDo nHavh
MM OINN 2Y DINN BXTNN BDINPINY NPPN ,NPPPN , MIN

A9N9 21 PYO IR NXAPN DY DXYNN NP NPYPN MYIN MTIN DXV

MYYN OINN YY NOMNN WIYND 31D DN WY DINITNIV DMPY
NYNN NN OMN DXMPYN DY 1INDOV NPIDTY DY NNIYY NIpn N
DXOMVYY DYPOD DY DINODNA IWPNND IN NN NN MR ,MNINMPYD
NPNINOVN NPINNANNT AXPA ITHYY MNIN MWD DY WP DIOPOY

MNPON 2782 DPTNN DMWY [T-N DINNA DINPWN AP, MENIN
,022 NPIVTNN NPNDNOVN NMNNINNN INK THNN IPYN NYNIN NXIAPN
DYVDIIIND MIIN 2V DY PITN PN IYP MYNNIND NN A¥P MYNINDN
NN DY NTMD 1D ,091¥2 DIDYTIN MIDINN MIN DY D1NIIVN DPNDNOVN
MIPHRNN PN 2N XIND OHN PMNPIN NPV NPNINOL
Y015 N INMYNRVNN YYI90N HNONIDION MDY MPMNNT NMPNYNOVA
DXNNND YN NV 5I¥90 NOOWNN NIAND .TPPOYN NMIANIND TUNNY
MOIN NNPNL NV OITY KA GN DIINDN DIPNA TYUR) NMYTN NPNTNOVI
DMVYP N2 I L(D9IYA NPNDNIVN NMINNINNY DXNNA ,DOWTN MNNNN

.DMYTN DNIND DNINI DDA D¥DX2INN DXPIDN DY DOPOY

(Generative AI) NINY OMONIN N1

,TOUYNN M9 NXOMNN 19INL MWN (Generative Al) N8P NPNIONONN NN
MDA MPNNI NPY NN DNVNX OY TTHINNND DPOYD NIVIND)
Mo MNYN ,Amazon-) Google, Microsoft 195 ,01NN2 NPIDIN NPIPNY

MO AWS >mPdY M27Y - OMONDN NP2 YDDXIN DWO PN P

7.4

7.5

7.6
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95w DIV IWN - AWS Lambda-) SageMaker, Amazon Bedrock, Amazon Q
NOM NNAPN FPMRNIN NN TPPOYN MDY 517 NN 19V MYy DNOY
11210 DY DXNNANNN DIMINNL DMIYTN NN JNND TIWNY THNN 19INA
ChatGPT, nm)Td 0»2>07) DTN DY DNMNTPNN NN VI, NMMONRINN
NN DNMNINY DPOY Dy DNYIVN WX ,0INNY Copilot, Midjourney, BERT
DY), 7Y DRNNA OPOYN DWW TIMONRINM NIAN NNIIN NN NYNNNI NIDN
POY TIY DXNN PMININ N2 PDDIN MNIND VI TUHNNN D1T1)
TOMIRIND 112 DD OIYDION NNINT NPOONA NYNN NXIAPN OV
TYNNY NIAPN MINODA .ANINN GN) TVIN 1T NN DNV ,dNINPHD
, OOV TPNNNADIION ,NPMONDNN NN MINNA NNV NN PMIYND)
,ND MDY DY MPSITITING 1O ,92»01 YY) [oT-n ,Data-n ,yn Yy

9N DYINNA 521070 NTHYN DX SMINND NNIN NN PINY 7o)

DDA DXYNN DMWY MY DINNA D1VIIPN NNINNN M9

172NN MY DN - PO TONNPN 1NNV NNVTN 7.7.1
SV NTHNN MYTNNNA NXNI THININOL MNNANNA PPINNN
,NNADY VNN NN MDD NIANN NNDNN .DMSVIT NMININD
MY, ONTPNN DPPOYY DPNTNIV MNINY DY PN

oMY L(AD) PMONDN 12 YOOI MNINS )Y OMPY

My LloT-y Data »mmans ,8muvix ,DevOps ,0%0nmn
MIVINN AXPY DXMPYN PMNNI N0 NN NN OOXNNDY,MMINPY
950N

NN - POSPY DSPH_MNIND NN DIMPY IV IINNVIN 7.7.2
DMV DY a7 DYON PADY NN YN NHANN YV YONN
TIT ,D1MM AN 2DWN NN L, DNKR D NNP IND MININD
NYNN DIAND .UV MPOM MPXTAN |, NYNLNN ,MNPIN
Y OOTINMN DYIIXY DINRMNT DPVDINN MNIND PNNMPOD
TPOIYAN M NNVIANY YPOY TIY IRV TP IR ,MPY 9
2NN PN ANNN TN

HYa - DNV OYNTNOL MNTIYA DINVN DIMIPY NPION NI 7.7.3
NYION MBDYN NNMP L PYD MR MNPY DY 92100 2ynn

Multi- N1INS MY, 0NN PY XODIAN MNIND PADY N2
Microsoft, 95 ©»59n ©Pav rMPwa mnnnn 7N ,Cloud
DXPADN MNIN P2 AOWH NN NN .Azure-) AWS, GCP

599 INNN ,NNPY NEPN DNDVLPLIN OIMPY PID DMWY
.NDVHOPOYN NNNY NNNDXND YOIP

7PNIMPOY PIOS MO NI2NN - MIINN PIVPYD ,MPYD MDIN 7.7.4
DN MIYINN M MPNT TN POMDN) PHONR PPN MPY

7.7
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2N Y DD NIANN DY MIPINM PNV TIVI .NMIPIN 1II8D
YIIXD OMININM OIMPYN NHRNN N DN Pwn DY Ny
NNYXNN DIDPN IWANNT 19IND ,TANRD DWTN DX MMPY

.DMYN MDOYHN MMINNL MDY NANIN NOPOYN

OMNNN OTRN MDY NN MDNX - JWNRND NI DININ MDIN .7.7.5

D>19% DXIANYN NYPYN NIINN .NI2AND NNINNA 215D DI
NN DINPNI DMWINPN DITIIY NI NIYIN ,DP) NN
INYI DMPN NONNN NONY .HDH2) HNIYA ¥ PHRN NONYNOV
DNV NaY 2024 MY NIYAYN IR VI DNMNYH D>TWI
, DM DNIDNL INPYY DTN NYOWI TIMYNYN NMOY
MIPOM NIVINN ,DPIN MONN NN DIXRNNY NI2AND DO
TYIN OITP ONLON,TIYN NMONN DY VT NNOY TIN ,NON DNIPYD
PIVN OWY NMNHD NPDIYIIND DN MNPNR NANIM 009

PNPIDYNN NPDVPIVNRN

POINND NN NIAND - MHNIPY_ N PIY_ MDD L, PYININ .7.7.6

P2 M9INNA NDX21 MPODY NAYNN YNV IT-N PIva OD1In
DMWY MITIN NPIYPI T20XHN MND .DINNNN DIXMIPYNI NIND
D02 NN INYY DY DIVAND DMPDY MMPY DY an7 PN oY
NN NINDY ODOY NN INTPY NN PXRYND ,0»PN MNPYN
PN ,NIAND NHTN NOIWND .DVWTN MNP DY IOV
OMNNN L, TONSPNRD DMIPHNY NN MPYN NN T8O, NNIND

.M DINNA DMVIIP INDNN DI

MYN DINN HY DMIPIYN NNONNI NN NN

OYIN,TPON> DY) NDID MIDN) N2 MINNA PRI NIINN MDY OINN
mMavnwno 191 ,0INND TPNMYHYNY MIDOVPIN NDND ,NIINN NIIWND
N7V NTHRY NINN LDV MIMPDY OY 990 MIANI MDD NMIYPNNI
DIV 72080 PO PTINM MNNPN YT NPIAN MIAY OOPMNN DININ HY
N1 NN ,NPDIVI NNTPN YNNI NPNIIOV INMINNA OMNITPNN MNIND
MONON DY PIVP 191 AT TNIRD MNPY NV 921 YINT DOVPNID VINI]
9PN MYN DAPN WN DNIN DM NPNYNIV OPID DYLN MYIT)
;79200 Data MNIND L PY OMPY PO OMNTPNN DMONONOVL  DIMINNA
OYINPN NIV WITI DN ,TPMONIN 1372 NN NDY MDY DY DINTIITIN
IMPOT NS MYAYD YMDINY PPN

9POY2 DNOINMY ,DMNMINN OPN NIAND NIIWND NN MIDNY IWNA
TN DIWAITIN DXANWYNLY PAT THXD DIMPY INND MNP NN NMAPNNNI
.DMP NPV POD NASNN TNXY MMpD

7.8
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0N2 DXINN DMWY MWD DINN MININD DXINN

YT DY DIPNDNN D1HOHNN DINIPY DIV NXIAPN NN MPIVNY DINYPYD
DNMPNIN ,TPMNPNN ONNI,MIPVN 9PN, 008y PIAD 01,0357 ,0INNN
.D»PONNN DXNPYIA NMIN TINDNOV NNYTN)

12 DYPNN DMWY MOYN OINNI MINNN MIAN

NONY NN ,PTN NN TPHNPT ,NTY MITINNA PIOINND NIIND MY OINN
DTN Yoy MY IV .DDIAY DNAWIAI 12 DOHNDN DY DN YW DNdP
, DDA ¥IND YU dHH5D Asnn  MNNIY NPNONOV AMNNININD NI
NN NN NI YN ,N1PDDI NN MY, DXWTN DOPNY DY DNYNNI)
2 MOVNIN MIINN DY DIV ONTIA ) )AT THIRD YN0 IV MINNN NNA
YMPYY MNING NPADNRA DOPOIVN DM DY MY MIYY DO HNIWA
P2 .9 NPHINDI) NPHNIY MIAN 0HDI2Y 01171001 NI YN NONYNOV
NN ,NNSY DPILVN NXIAP IR NNND N NIINN NI DM DINNNN

NN, TINN VNN NNN O TYOR N, TSG NN ,00N-0910- 120N N¥ap
mHan Mavy 18 IBM Israel-y Kyndryl ,pon190 ,HMS ,)2NX05 ,SQLink
L9012 .NYANN MDYAD DY DIMINNA MNHNNT NIODN MIVPI NN
MPODNI KNIV MDY NN MMM (Big Four) MDTHN NAWNN ORI MNP
MINN ONNNN OMNN - P ERP, CRM ,972»0 ,BI 105 0ynna oonmyvy
MOLINN YDAPNY NON MNP LY 1NV MDTI NN P°2,172NN MDOYAD NP
NNV N2 G D19) DD DINNND DTN .DPONINIVIO MNIPY 17P2 D01
INPIINND PIYY DN

DMVYN DNPNYN YW DN NI DTN NYIVIN DINNI MINNN D PINd
TPNMOVPN PN Time to Market ,71PNI2050 NNWTN PPOY GO TIY WD
N NNP DNN OOMPY DY ANT NN XMIND NNNN ,MNIND P2 NNTPNIN
25NN 1PINT,INNND NI MY DINNN MNIPY 2792 DDMP,90102 .DNNX
MPAvN Y DINMPYM NPIDYN MIAN DX NTHNND MDY 99WY NN NN
Y 1V0 IND) DINNA (M&A) MWD DNV DY NNDIN NI NININKD DNIVA
DIPNY NP PIYN DY I MINNN MIAN NOWY NN IUN (DY) 6.1 PYD
Private 19 YV MYPYn MYXNINI 0) NININN 1T 0D .INY DINNN) DN
DXANVYN YMVYIY MHRym IT mHan mwo Awr PN MmNy Equity
.9V TMINNN NPT NN MNOXYNI T2 ,07NMYNYN

DN - DMONN MMNIMN YD NN NIAND , DM MINND NN GX DY
MO PPN NONIN TN ,DNY 29 11D ,0°IN2) DINVPDAY DAY NNMINHNN
LDVNVINY AN NININD YO (utilization) NMIAY NIDIWON NN PPN DTN
NNINNA TTINNND NI PIN THYN N2 DNIPN - NI PYINNM) DI NN
MNIN NP 0’27 DIAXRYN NYPYN NN .PIVI DINYNN DININD DY
DYINMNN OMYTN NMININD XIINIY MNNONHD NPNZNOV N, MYTN
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NN MY M) POY TIY DY MIYN 1NN NOVLIND TN DY ,PMIMPY 1IINY
9N 11 Y0 IR DD DXVINT .JIT TIIND XNINNN NTHYN

MY DINNI DXMPYI DIININ

DXMPYY MNIND OV PPN YO 1IN ORIV HIIIMPOD NPaDNn NXAPN
DXNDID) OONEPN DONNY O DY DIMN YN DMONONOL MMNNA
LDINWNRN PIVN OMANNDDYT MPIN YDIXY MINRND TIN )10 PNY OPNONOV

2PPNDY DMIPIYN MDY MMINN NN ,INN P2 ,D9910 N¥IAPN YT PY

NPYOIMPY NPADN NXIAPN - NOIVINT MINNIOIDIIVI 1Y XY
NPNNNDY PYD 92¥NN 2PDNN DNNIND INTNOVI YPOY NP
N DM DMPYN LOPIMIND PYN DWW DY NIV
PN L PYY 92YN SUPNI DI L PY MOIWN DY NNLPVLIIINY
WEB mooian moawyn M ,py mooan DR manao
YDNPN DWW MIPAIMPY 191, DevOps MY, 1INIVAN MINPIVINY
NPYN M0 KO DNDN NN OO N MY (FinOps)
DINNA DXNNMINY OOTIY» DINNY MYNNINI NYXIANY NI

299N MMNXaN ,NPNYNN
NPY MNING NPADN NXIAPN - DINRTPNN NVWNHN NPAYN IMPY

Infrastructure ) MW PY XMV 197,01 NDXN) DXHNNN , D09
N8YAPN MY Py NXON IT N220 NHYSNY (as a Service — laaS
,DNTPNN NPONXOIMPY YT NNVINY NNVPN XMV D) NYDD
YMPY ,TPPOY NPOWNN MPNT NNVIAN ,DMNN) IMNNYY NI
oMM NPNYM Big Data DINN2 NMNIND D) ,INPONIVI

DN MPNY

,DMNTPNN PY OIMPY NPIDN NXIAPN - 201N PY NPNIVYN XY

DNPMNN OMITM (Data Centers) YT 3070 TINND DO
NY NPNYN ONPY 1NN NOYIN MNP NOND 1’ MDY HNIWAI
MYVIRND >MPY [ (Infrastructure as a Service — [aaS) MPWO
19 ,(Disaster Recovery as a Service — DRaaS) m7ow> 'ONN
oM PYN (Backup as a Service — BaaS) mwd M) MY

(SMB/SME) 02 D)LUPN DXPOYN TN MMPOD DNIN)
TOEOWAN MYNN MY ,MPNT MLIND DXTYPN DNV
NNVIAN NNT DY NPNRY TIN ,NPINVIRD YTNRN MIIWYN DY M)

.DYPNNN DNPNA DRV NDTPNN YN

DINND OXPN OIXMIPY NPADN NXIIPN - 121D YT INVIN

Managed ) DOYNINN DMPY MY ,H2O0M YR NNVAN
"MpPY (Penetration Tests) NN >pTan (Security Services
MDD DI ,NVAIND NI YOHNN NNPPNA NNPY DN

7111
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NTHRYY NPMY-1T NN NPOIN IMA ,NPODN NIvIvA
ISO 27001, ISOX, HIPAA N T D»NINDA DNPNI NPNONIA
SOC) DTPNN NP NV DI NP NP ,90N2 .GDPR-)
72NN,V OMPY PIoNN (— Security Operation Center
NV NNIAPN DY 120N TN .NNKR 32 DN (IRT) O PRD
2NN NYIN I TNSD NIMONDN 12 YODIN DY VIV
NPRNND NNNY MINMVIN MDD AW ,DNTPNN DINIPND

MPON MOIYN SY NOWNRNN

N NP OMPY NPADN NIAPN - DIINNHN DMV IN NN

NIN2 DY) OOTINA IT DIy9M 21wWNn MTN SW (Outsourcing)
MPON NN DONNN DMPYL(ONRIYIIY 27NN IPOY) DN
N2NMm Mo >MPY  NOC moIyn %wan  ,pinin X
NN IPNNI NIV dNIPY NPADN NXIAPN , ONL .TDDVPIIIN
NPNVLIIN TIVN D7/NN NIy O1NOWNNT DNV OIINNA

9N2) XIND, NPHNVLIAN NPVYNM
YMPY NYONN NNAPN - DMININ_ DMV MOIWN NPV
NN’ MY, 7PN DHRNNI NMININ MDIYND NINOY IINNOVIN

Web, Smart Client, DevOps, -1 MN2wa MNTPNN NPNNOVI
WY D) DYND OIXMIPYN .Mobile-) Continuous Integration, IoT
Open NYNYNOVA YWHNYN YPYNNMY DMNIN DINXR MM

M) Data NN NNTPNHN MY A5 wWwN N DINN .Source
LDMNIND DYDY DMIVTN NININD NP TN OMONON

-1 DINN2 MNIN NN NNNPNN NNAPN - Al-) Data, Analytics

NMOLPLIIINY PONN YN, NPMONRINPN DA Data Science
DN NN DXY9ID DIMPYN .NAVIV NN DIV TV DINN)

Business BI) npoy n»2>09119 ,(Advanced Analytics) OTpnn
Machine Learning ¥ D57 M9 Big Data-) (Intelligence -
NPNYNOVI YINOYW TIN ,0MMY» (AD) TPMONIND N2 NN

221 PY MNNOVY9Y MNTPNN
NONT NMVIVONR NPNNNY NIV MY NPNYN NNIAPN 90N
DOMIND TIOND DN YPDY NIVNI ,DININD NNVPVLIIINY
Sv MNNPNNN 1999 .(Data Driven Organizations) 0N Y00)AN
2 NPNZNOV 2OWN) NN THPMINRINM 12N DINNA NXIIAPN
mMao ,M>yan NN Y951 (Generative Al) NINY 1PMONIND
ChatGPT, Gemini, Claude, NONTD DYV YODIIN DOVPNIO

.SORA- CoPilot, DALL'E

.7.11.5
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DMTPNN DMPY NPIDN NNIAPN - NNVINY MNN MP>T2 .7.11.8
TPNMIVIN MY, IS MPITI NOIWHN MPITA,MIDIN MP>Tad
mMp>72 3191, DN DOMY MPPTA ,NPXTA MDONN DY

OOV PN 0NN OMPYN .DevOps N2201 MIAWNN
-Mm  Testing-N NN DXNNY  DINYP MYNHNL |, OM”PDY
.Automation

MU0 APHRYN DNIAPN - OONDIOV_DXNNIY NWD IMIPY .7.11.9
NONYNOL OMINN 992 DOWNNPN DINDII DSV 7PIIMPY
DYV DN YN NNVIN MY  NPNVYN M0 ,Y1HN
DXPAuNM MMPON MTIVNI DMIANWN NN ONYY .OMNIN
,NINYAPN DY NTHNND TOVINPN NN TSY 112790 TIDINPI MVI)
MMPOY AWANND DT MPY YT N MM NIV MIID
DMYOINY DRNNA MNYNOVN DTINN MO NN DINYY N NIND
MOONI NMTNNY NN TONXPN DT DY NPNRY TN ,019IY9NN
MPYn

MMPY ; MY¥ON DINNA DMWY DXIIN NPHNT MDITN M’
%9 5y NYNIANN NI YR NPNDNIV XMWY MINING DINNA NP MY
PNHRA NTIAY 200N (K) : DIPOY DTN MW NPIIVPNNT MIMINNN) PN

NPAONRN YTV ,DINNN ,NTIAYN NN 0T 0N (Fixed Price) y1ap
Time &) 70XMM Y37 DTN 95 NTAY IO0N (2)-) ;N991ON NN
NIPNND DXNNA DYIHA NTIAYN MYV 29D NAWIND NININD ONINONA (Material
PV NON NPIVYPNNN MYAN NXAPN MOION M .DXTINN P2 Yapw
NNINA NN WP NN OINDINNDD DOVPNIIN YW DPYN DIINY ,7D7IIN
Managed ) D970 DXNMPY DY NNONNA DNIN) DXMPYNN PON 90N .1»YY
,UNIND DM TN (Statements of Work — SOW) N1y »0191n D01 DY ,(Services
Y N2202 DXPADN DIMPYN DMINDN DMIPNI)

DINN MINRXIND VI ,NT MDD DINNA DNNOIN DIMIPYN INDI NPININ VA
GUN DT OXMPY IN DN NXIIAP NNV NPNX NIAND L JINY MDY
191 2024-) 2023 D©M)WA NXIAPN MOIIN TON N N 10% 17N ONN MOIINN
.2025 "2 30 D2 N1PNDNY DVTIND NYYI

10% Sy 11N NN NXIAPH MDIDNY MPPYAN OINNA TAX MPY O»P NI2ND
,2025 THYS DNY2) NIINHDN MNPNNN INY IN NNNI NNAPN MOION TON
(N7 95N DN PNY N2V VNN ,(NINXNN NAPNN M DY YON’ 19N

7.12
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9’
092 NNMNUNY NIYY | 31 01»a NNPNDIY MIYY ,”,:3‘0”2:;': 1’;‘:,":"1; v
2023 4a2ny7a 31 2024 4ansTa 2025 !
MMpo

NV - NYY NYY -
modNN mMOMINN | MOIHNTO | MOHIIN

amann | MO naann anann | 9N

11.2% 220,302 9.2% 188,437 7.4% 79,103 (*) N MPS

.(NM5552 172NN SY) 19N 9 PYD DY NT IWPNL N (%)
nunInHNay  .7.13

27,0 MDYH DINNA NXIAPN YV 7DD MMNNA DPNd ORNNA ,0Y05
NYTIND NDIDNN DINNXD IN DIVID NN PMIMPY DY NNIAPH MMIVPNN
Y200 NTO YN NIAND PR ,NNND NMIYPNN DY DDLVN .MPON DY URIN
MY, NNT OY TN .51V NNNN NNNTNY TYNI MMPON HY NN NMMOIN

DMINN PN MNNTHN MNPNA NXIAPA NMIVPNNN DIV
,2025 9312 30 DPO MY DINNA NVNTINN IAX NNSINN MTIN DOV POND
PMNITA NI2AND MININ IAXD ORNNA ,NMANN NIINN NMPN 29D NNOONNA
9YNI) (D»9DIN NINYTA MDIDNI IIDN DIVY MAMNND M XA DY) D1IDIN

(N
30.6.2025 019 MINTH 43y 98N 1IN N95DD NN
83,822 2025 MV YV OWwHY )y
74,441 2025 MV SV Y17 ) wa)
110,333 2026 MV
32,019 ToONY 2027 TV
300,615 210

MYO NIANN DY OINMPNN NITA NN, 2024 1207 31 OPY NN 1YY

: N2 NWPa 2024
https://www.sec.gov/ix?doc=/Archives/edgar/data/876779/000121390025043
.459/€a0241007-20f magic.htm#fact-identifier-1442

3005 YN VOND IINTAA T3 PISID 33 1739 - TAIY 330 ADNY YT NIAIN
199 INDDA TING 1933 AT OININA YN DINNIA DIV 5Y 19307 DIIYA
DIVY DNIDIAL O3 1395 ,79307 37 58 1WAV DI TIINI T2IY7 DD 5Y
NN SVIBY IINA TINPYT IS TINI INYVN 79933 TN 153907
AP YTD LTI 99993 DINIINVIIAD 7V TINY 33D 998 Y107 51IN33 199773, 5945
ATIAYA DNN TN DI3I9Y 19IN3 13 AIPPI 17 193, UPPNAY NIY 1Y
T3 55939 ,00MIVUA NPOUNT) INDOY NNA5 IWATIY 09INI IINI53 IN
5U 1003 IN IV TN VI 1N 3995 TUN) SINIAA WD A8 15N
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NONFNG ONNAI ,(PIY THNI I 9387 DISA JOIN , FIONDAD) 513919577 IV
DNI3Y) 021995 TONINA TINNA DNNPNS N3 395 ,N59197 0721997
0759 19303 02255 DIIN 719N O9N) .0 DIINY 09930 00N 195N
NUY NI 138, NI )3 109 . ADIAI 79975 BININA NEVIA LY AoV
DY MIVPNAA INID 519003 NP7 SI0237 IS DN 5193 INInVAs
LYY 1ININTY IINIIVO7 DDA SN0 MIIVDN 979175 ONIAA 199 , IINP51

w714

LN P2 NIYAYIN OOINPN NIDIN SIMIPYN NIINN MDIdN .7.14.1
MYV GP>00) DMNYN DXVPI9 DIPOYINN MINPHN FWIN 19001
MODNNY INRD .DINPNN oI MPY D35 MXPIIN NTIAYN
D1Y292 N NMNPNIAY 1IN, 592 MPYN G010 IPPY2 Ny
APY - DMINN DYDY INNYNA TN NTIAYN D> 790N DAY
995 7772 N5 - DINN O1NNY DD IN MITININ MYAN , 00N
MNP NNVIYY ,OOMNPN DIMPYN MDIINN PPN NINIT N
P2V NV YT NINA N NYIVN AN M) NTIAYN M 1901 NIV
DN DH1VIA NN, NTIAY MYY D01 DY DINDINHN DXMIPYA
AMIVYPNN OPD IN MYTH NPIYPNN DY 1NN D D90
P

MY SY WA NYN DMYII ,ONIVA NHAND MPPYAY DNda .7.14.2
q9P°N2 NP2 IRVANNY ,NPNAN TPNNY NYOWN NNPYI 2024
9N DMIYAN2 DNAW DN 11D APy, NPONONIVION TN MYV
D1Y29N DMAN NA DIV TD,ND22 NPT NIN 298N 2025 Nva
MIWANN NTIAYN 9P NN INY DXVYON NPND A WD
ND ,11720 MYIND NN MDOYAD DN .13NHND MITNIN MOINM
DT HY NNNND NN MNTY N YD DX ,NPNIN NPINY NI
Sva POya ,NNDNNAY TPNNRND MYN N TPPOYN MY
qona .(New Year-y Christmas) mwn 910 %N N9PN Nyawn
DYNNN DIYIPRD D) DIMYD NYIVIN NIIND ,DMNNYN DINDIND
NIPY K O1ININIVIA DMIMPN MNIPIN YDNPN DY DIWAVUN
MOIWN NPT DEPN NYOIR TN NI - NN IN DNNININ
DOIN NNNNA NINT NMONTD DN DMWY NONX DINPN .MPN2
MDIdONA NIDNN NIY DY WYY 511 ,0X0PNI9 NONNN
MY ToNNa
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NDIND MNINI OIND

[oph)

MNYN MIDIN DY NPPIDIY NNNND NOND NXAPN NT MY DN NNDN2
P2 INNVOINI DMPOY DIDIYD MM MNMAVYY (K) : DMIPYY DOND
Selected Packaged ) ©>IN23 D»TIY» DI¥NVPOD MNN MNIND (3) 197, MIIWYN
.(Vertical Solutions

NI MY DY SNTNDN JIOINT NNYY NXIAPN NYPIA MDY MY TIND
NVITIN) NN DY DWW NN NNV - NNYNIN ,OMIPOY INDNOV
NONRT-RVN DY NODIANN (Magic® xpa Application Platform owa ow>
0N H»21)) DISYIY-2170 DOPOY DWW NOMM MN’AY (metadata)
NOMAVIY - WM TINR SINN pwpn MysNNa Low-Code nN2°202
,Magic® xpi Integration Platform Dwa 05 NYITN) DMIWYNN NONNOIN
(iBOLT own nnn 2003 mwa NNIYRIY 1PNy

n92nn AppBuilder MNY9N NNNOLVYS NN NIANN NWIT 2011 HANNT WTINA
NI IT SY NVIITIN NININD DY N*2 NP0, Ltd Solutions BluePhoenix.
,MMAd NPN OV MNP PNYN MMM AppBuilder .(Legacy It) o1y
129 MOIYN M2 HY DO ,q7>7->2NT DININ DY HYW NPIRNM NN
HN9VYoN (IBM Mainframe, Linux, Unix and Windows) MMy nynwm
NIWaNNIN ,(Model-Driven Architecture) 9T NODDI2N MNA N NHWMNH
NIy AppBuilder SVNMVIN PIN DIW1N NPXN NMAY NOPOY NN PION
Platform-Independent ) 1HM2V592 MMYN HNYA OMPDY DIVI NIV VINOY
JINT-12 M0 190100 DMWY NPAN NIVANNDN (Business Rules Language
N92N»n SmartUX MINPaN NNV NN NIINN WY 2019 59N wina
Low-Code MD1n OMNIND 992 »M» Mg nnmovds PowWow Inc
MY ,MI NION NIYINNDY ,TARD OOWNXPN) DX22IN DXNNIND DX TYPHIN
.MNNAVLI-ININ DNPDY DI HY NPNN NYHVM

MNNAVYN NN MO NIANN (NNN) INNAY NMNNAVIIN ,INNNIN TYIND
:MINAN NPIPOYN

;19N 8.12.1 YD IR - Magic® xpa -N NNV -

;19N> 8.12.1 YD NI - AppBuilder -nN NNV -

;PNY 8.12.1 PYD INI - Magic® xpi -1 NNV -

;1PNY 8.12.1 YD NI - FactoryEye -1 NNMoavds -

3onY 8.12.1 YV NI - Magic® SmartUX -1 nNI9VYL -

DYRNYY MIDIN PN HY NINT YN DININ P9IN MUNYN 1IN NNV
,D2191 N2 MY 50-52 ,(Magic Software Providers - MSPs D) D))
LDMMMPIY DOWNNYNRN IN2Y NIDNN MNIND MM

8.1
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NN NIAPNY OOTIY DNVPDY NIINN MNIND ,INDNN TYINY ,qoN1
: DYNIN OMIPOYN DIMY1N NN DO (NNNANY)

;9ND 8.12.2 PYY N - Clicks™
;19N 8.12.2 PYY X - Hermes Cargo
;19N 8.12.2 Py X - HR Pulse
;19NY 8.12.2 PYY NI - MBS Solution
oNY 8.12.2 YD W - Mobisale

NDM9 ,MINAY PNIMPY NN DOWAYH NNNSND NXIAPNY NIDIND MNIND
YPYNIA,L(NMPON NPNIVN DY) NMMHIPN N22202 DOPOY DINIY DY TPNHNVIN)
DYIVAND PN MNIND ,q0NA .91 MDY MPNNIA L,PY N0 D»N
Sy DMYN DYPOYN DIWM NNIINN NPAON PONN NN PINND OININD
MNP YT HY DPPOYN DIV NN I9YDY ONOY DO TNYM DPNONN DIDINN
YMNNNY MO ,DMPOY DN DY TPNODNY NPNN TINNLINI NDNM)

.0

MYYSN OIND DY Y995 YN

DYMVYMN I90N TPMYNYN MDY NI NIMINKD DOV
9P>N2 9 ,pva o (Enterprise Applications) D»)1)IND
DMININ . ININ DI TINA NONX O DY NHYINM DINN ,WIdIWN
DMNIN DINIY HY ANTINNI TIHNN NI NN D1 DY) D)
NIVIVI DIVAN ,WNIN SARVND D177 11D, 07N IN-D9 DYDY )1 -
DY MYPRIVIN MY 07NN OPPOY DIIIND )M ,NPION
99%) 5YTNH0 NNGAN N NNIN .DMPOY DNV DOPID ,mMNpY
DMWY D) PYNNY MDY XX, NPNININD YR MOIVN M52
SY MPOYN MNNANN 21DYY DXNPYD NN 1T MAINND .NINIAN
2WANN NMDYA SYTHDY TPLIVANN MYINIT DINNNY [ DMININ
NMAY - DIMIYHM MNMAVYAN ,MIIWNN N .NAPRNNM
DN PN - NMINHD NPNDIOV 2) DY) MNY NNON MOV DOMdYY
YDONN DY NYPNI ,D¥ONND) YT NI I8P 912700 NI

LDMMNMIND MOLONNN NYAP
YD) DY NITY IN NOTY DIOY YSID DOWPIN DNNIN IUND 9N
IN DOWTN DMPOY 025NNY ONPRNN OV (IT) y1n nrndnov
DMIVY» DY DAV YD NNN XY 992NN ,0ON0HNT OMINYD
AP TVINND 257N PONN NN DXITIVN X DVTN DOPDY
DYION DMV VIDWN MIANINN YPI DY NTTHNN 1T 70N
YN MM YN DMPOY MNIND NIPINNN,MITMI MNINOVI9)
,(Future-Proof) mmny mmny »yn (Device-Independent)
JNODM VIV [, PNN JPINT D1 MY NDMY DIIVINDN

Iy (Cloud Computing) pYn 23WNN NPNONOL [ D¥apna

.8.2.1

.8.2
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NN MVYNI) DMWY NDYY DOININD MYTN NPNNTIN
SY MADN MNNNNA TN NIX PN NMOYL SMyNUn
0NN [T-n "mw» mdvn

PNNNMADIIVN IIONNT TINDW NIND NI 20 qom
NNY D8N MNP DY .DMNINY DPOY 19 NOHVITN
NN AT DONITY OTN NIV NIYIRNDT ,ININD THIIVINT MPY
D721 D), T30 NNITA TPVIN MIANYNI MON NIY MY MY
MM S5Y DY .ONTIAY NDADA NNYT TOVLINT MNND D8N
MY NN NN 027 OININ NN VX OMNINN OO
N2 N0V 752 NION TINKD ,NMDTYN ITO URID 7PSVNTN
NDOYY DI NIPN DI GR) MDD OMINA PNIN INNN NHVINT
.DMNYN OXTAY

DYy 1YV, MMAN ONPOYN NPV DINPN DXNIONNA NONN
D219 DMNIN NN ,ODPNNIN DD MMAY 920 THN Wipda
ownnwnNy Mmavannn Low-Code/No-Code ninmovhs yoxo
mon YY MYIYHN DTN TN ,DNSYI DMV NND DOPOY
DVNHNYN ,DMPDY DMMVY» NOX Mmysnna IT-n npbnna
19VN2 OMIT NTAY MOHNN DY MIMVIND DXANIY NMON DIPOY
NYPOY NPYI PINAD DXIARWYNY AT WITPNDYT MWD NN I19vD
.Mao7Mn

MY NDOY ,0MIT OIIONN HY PYMVIN NIVANND T 0N
2992 GR AN MAOMN NMDYAY DIANYN NN MIDWIN
naxn owo Low-Code 552 920 windw nuyd D»NNPN DXNNaN
TIAYN YONMIY DINNNY) NMINPSN 2NP

5NN NN L,WTN X low-code Mo MNNVLSY PIVYNY DN
TYNN NN NN NN, MNINKD DNV NNIND N NAXD
DOXNNINI NONDY NPXPOIVIND TUNNNN VIPIN APy NN
NN IMOYN DY OYaL Tunn MNN low-code MM .0MNPN
VNI MM AWIND PN ,DMIV»N MM YIIONNI DLW
SV 12597 MND OPPOY DOWNNYN ST DY DININ NNINY

Ru}ja) |20
VIDOW GUND NDIRD DY 1P DD DIDAN) LITVIN MDY
DY Yand 0NIND wann low Code mmnmovvoa

NP It wnnwnn 1 Yy 0TIMN (web based) o»vyILIN
8D MN’A2 LY PO YA DITAWD DY NMIVIND NINIOVIIN
IWNY DMVY INDNOL YR DY DITAIY DN, DINTPNN DMWY
DNV MDA NPNPNY MDYN DY MHINMLVIN TNYD D2

DD APILPT MOIWNI NPOW TIN,TPYN DHRMND
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DYPADNN PV DYDXN DNPNY 190N DI NPPINN NONI
NP OUWNNYN Y55 oMWY low-code 10N MNdS NNV
PIY NNPNND YNMYNYN 1I9IND OYIND NN TP 27NN INNA

NOMaY ©»159IN DNIMN P2 low-code MMNON MNTOVLYY

,72NY TN MINDN NNY 11 low-code MN9N NNV
DMVIVOR NIWI XNTHPY  NPMYOYHD MM IPNN NPV

MY DNNI
AUR TN ODDIAD OOMNND MNIN NHY INAND T MM NY)
MNIN ,TYRI N TIND PIVN MNNN NONY DX TTNNND D¥I90N

DV NN MNP MNT HY O Mynvn NP o warnLow-Code

MM YAINYNI MYNN MOVPN PN time-to-market 25NN
T OY0IN NPIDYNN PIYVA MONNI DN WX ,DINDTPNN
DYDVINIVIN NN PPWNNIT DMINI DI VIV DNY
,INPNOV ONNND DMPOY DINNS PA NP NPV NHINY 0NN
Q0N .ONNWN DMPDY DN DY NP PN VI IWAND)
YN NNVIAN YY MNTPNND MDD D) DD MPODN YN MOIYN
DORNM THPIAYN MY ,NPNON MOIWYND DY MPINDOIN
NMNNIY NNPXANN I5%) PON DY NMY TI2) - MNNNI NVPIONIY
VIDVN  ,N990 YN ANy DNTPM DDNDIa radd

ONNM0N NN MNAY Ponnd X1 1N Low-Code nyyndnova

957 19IN2 2NN MIAND IWANNN ,IVIVON ,DODvN 900 NON

LPRAM MDA NMDY PNAND  NNNYN DIV M1y Ny

Y TIN NIND DY HOVTN NOI1DON OO NN NI
ODWON MAINN NNVIAN ,NVIOY

MIIWA O IVTI 585 OIDID/ YN - TPHY 239 N8 Y NIAIN

S ONT 1979779 TNV DINIIVOS MA30 YIINI S0V TNYD 193NA

low-code 311325 M11129 IV NOVID DIV BI5VIIT7 BIPNVA IINNONSA
13N DPYPIZON) DPNINI0 NINPD TUNAZ IV 2398 ,)7251099959)
YYD 719307 SY DPINSIN IV, 03I , DIIN 1395 ,511995150)
ST 199993 PINI INITINI 7NN 939 AN Y7 NINIZ O , T35
590 OISV 0999 BY 597 123, 0093079 , 777930 SHINTI INI 1199779
T2295) ,INONA TIINA D5 AVSY PN AIINSY 0239 OINUn
IN/) INIZIDZ VIS NI IN/) IND3 WINNAS NIV SIIVUY IOND II9Y77
23,9005 798I IN TINAY 2930 SPMAN ANYA 19INI UPINAL
299 5Y )IIN 3873) INTNA SIPNIIIVI O OINIPY INT 19797
OI5Y7 OPDISIONIND IN 025355 ,09N0509 D91V INS) IvA
DIIPY 090N OIPNVI U237 AYPUAA I BY Wovns
VP33 S0 00998 TNOTYA DIV MAIT ,IVA ININI DINPT
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TNV IIDTINA NN 119539909 TP S99 -199ND YOV
DIPNY 5 09708 D550 DINPY ,05INDN TININD 1Y , IINID
YUV DINIY JIINIUDN DTN DINPY SNV 5390 9393
DIN PII3 NOPH , 0919990 035993 A998 N5 DI 19N0 1995 , 199950
PONNY TIAY , POING SIINIA T NVIIN DIPVIUH I3 IN/ I8
DIVNINA NIIOA DN PN APN MUBONA NI )39 I5099T Y191

1575 27 9rw03

12 DYINN DMV MY DIND MIAN

NN INIIMN YW NPINM NPIDN MNP JPANNN MIINA MININ OINN
L YIPITI ,0IPOY MIVN YNY MW DOPOY

:NIDWN YA NPDVINTY DMPOY DMWY NINJAY MININOVI
NPINNNMY NPNYNR ,NNNND NXIAPN ,NT MDY DIND NNONA

,Low-Code »0D1an 0O»poy Dmw»  MOIn  mMnovvs

,ANa5 (MSP) ©5nnn ©m Y dpaod) DONIND D IWINDN
PMPA - NIV M0 NN DIPPOY DMWY 1DV DI
MNNY DV OMYNYN NP TN - APTIDM PY MO, MITM
DINN NNDNA NXAPN MDY .AYNRLIN NMYY NNNSM NN
VYA NN INIYW 27NN 1902 NYNAND 17 MDY
PYDI NI NT MPYI DINN NINDNA NI2NN NYINNY MNNAVYIN

aono 8.12.1

DYIN2) OMONYM DMPDY MY MMINNY OMTIVY 1IN NININD

;I MDya ownn nNona :(Vertical Solutions) (DX9p071)

End-to-End ) 0»7¥» 1)1 mnna npnvm nnnan N¥iapn

SY D»Oan D»PoY DMIND DN (Vertical Solutions
VNRD OARYND  MNIN MINN M1, D0N0N DAY
AN DNN - MMM Y5W DI NX NSO 1T MDY .NPVDNOM
NPYY NPINN,MP>T2 TY ,7INNVIRY MNP TIT,NNVPVIIINY
010 9PN AN DXOTINND INN T DY NYSINND N - QO
MNNAVLAN VIPAD .NMMPON BOY PITN NYI NIV DN
PN 8.12.2 YDA INT MY MDY DINN NNDNA NIAND NYINNY

DUNT M2
JUND DV NP2 SMYNRYNN DN INNN (DN YD) NONT
oY MNP DOLVPNN DXPOY DNMIN DY NI NN NI
NPIND .DMPOY SV TPSDINTING INDY IPHVINT 1PNNINO0IIV
2N MOIWNI DOWIR T DY DOINND YN DINNI HY MMINY
YN H2NY DANIY DNININ .DDN DMNINN DIXIYA NYIN

>3 ,0mov [T-N M2>20) MOIWNN ,0MMVY»N NNONI DN

.8.3.1

.8.3.2

.8.3.3

.8.3
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v MaN .(data driven businesses) DN YN DOPOYD TIOND
QYD TPPOY MDY T 319 NON YTM ONNY P NN
MPY YD 1NIND YPOYY DAY NNINY WIND TNIND DIVIND
Y MSDVIPINT NP NPADN NIYIVA DIMOIN XM MPHO

16 119NN YT2IYY DIPNNY DYV DININI

DY N30 .8.3.4
Y MDY PY WNHD DY NPIDNOLA APNNN MNTPNNN

DIYMNINI DINPY DMWY MAINM NI MY OMINI NONN
;222193 PN OIMNNIN YT NN DINYN DYTIN TXD , 0N
MPNNI NDA LN OINY NTHY DD, [oT-1 NPNIAN MNYA
DOTN OI0N DAPINL DNNN YN .ONNN YR MINIPD
INNRDY NP NPDVPIR NPPOY NNIN INMD NPNNPTIN OIINY
T NNN YIONY OO DN TN, MYTN NPPODY NPNNTIN
YN DN NIAND HMY DOWUPIANY DININ MHVINTN DIPYN
,NYITIN NYPYNN GR DY ,19aNN NOIYNY 5552 ¥ YT NN
YT MOIVNI, MDY DY 12YN YNID OMININD NYPIANNDN NN
SV PLVTN MDIYAN YONIY 21T PYY NXDN PNY YO DIINN
APY2 RO NIND MOIWN) TMPNRD NI INYD ONNIND
YNNYND 10DNY IR IYIT DMININ TYUND PHNN GR MAINNN
, TN INNIND .(multi-cloud strategies) 9>2pN2 PY M2¥20 190N
TNPN NY MYTN NPNTNOVY WIT DINNINY NANY NIIND
DNOMNN DN Y OIPN D2 DMINI DN DD ,NMY ,1aND > 71D
NPY N0 WY MYTPY NPNONOL MNNAVYI MYNNNI
951 (D»YP IX MOPN RIHY) NVIVO NN PPNNDI D1ID YNNI

IT n2ao

INPNNID DINND MDOYIN 9PN OMPY 8.4
29 6 PYD NI

MY DINN HY DYNN DXTNHN DININI NPPN ,NPPN ,MYN .8.5
A9N0 21 PYD XY

MY OIND DY NIMNN YAYNY 37D DN YWY DPNINOV DMIPY .8.6

NNNADIL IONN OIY NPYYNN OND PHNNI OININ .8.6.1
TPNMVIN NPYY AN P2, NN VDY N NPHVLIT
DOVNRNYNRN NN NV, NTINI NN MY DY PSTVIIN)
2y AP¥2 1DNNON DMNINONINDN JDIND OMINN D172 NN
DV TPNNIVINY DWAN TNXD TPYOIN NNRMND NNIM 970 NN
PN MNP DYDY NMIND 9TH NNOIN .OMPDY DXIONN

92PY oYY Y15 - DNOY NSV NPNNIIY IWP NIJ - NNIND DITAIVN D20 DIWIND DINNI NN TONN PP 16
AT miponmn X £91N3 'NN 5y P TN THNDNY Y920 0NN MDD MOLSNN
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IN DYTNPN DNPIN OHYA DININD NXON MYN MY MNONN
NN ONXRNND DNNIND MVYIT ) OMIND D17 I8 025NN
DY ,NIDIND (YTHN MWD NTIAYN 5NN MAD) OMDYO
TIVA JNINRND DY OOTINMT DPPOYN PIIND MIDIND NX DIRNND
GPIYY IN JNIND 29N 19IND INMIAY OMNNDNI 1IN MNINAY
DYVIVONRN DITYA TINYD YTD DNIRNINI DIDTIMN NPNY D9’
YITN 2970 NN ,PINR TONN YNT DNIM L )NIND DY
M1 DY MOHNNON TIN , MM NMDYA TID) NAINN TPNNVIN
DV NTAIRNDD NNNAVIAN MYNNINA .MIIND NN DY MMM
DNMIN, MOV P2 ISNVIRIY DPPOY DI MMNAD 1IN
Jow-code NYY2 WY TIN ONINNNND DNSY NX D710 O
LDMOTINMT DNPIIND DNIRMNN NTIAY YIONM DI NN
DINNA TNPND) ,THPMOIRINN NPIAN NPNYNOV MNTPNN DY
noDNY NP0 0»p  (Generative A)  ™LIMNN NN
TNSN NN N IN IPDN> TPMONINA NN DY MNTPNNIN
AN nvoa MY Y5 .o»nNon  low-code NMMINoa
IPIND DDONM DMWY DY NPX MNP YNID NIPMONINN
Y9 ANIPND DVY ,NANT THVIN MAYN TN XHDY PUMVIN
DMMIN D PN, 901N .N1PNONN low-code MNTNOVLYD WIipr1a
DYIVANNDT TPMONDN 12 YODIIN MNIND DY THNONY 1Ty
DIPNA ,TPNMVINY NPNN NN OOTIN NONTY DNV NPY
DYINN DYPYNN SY 5N NTNY DOVNTY DD51 wHnwnd
9PN Sy YIVUNY NYIDY 1T NNXIN LWRID DTN MM 1IN
MYHYH MINH DINND ,N7ann DY INPANI DY MDY
NMVIVOX NMIRNN VT NOY  low-code-N MNMAIVOS
INYNN PV DTHYN NP NPMYNDYN

NINY  TOMORYND NP2 VI9 L, TPMONONN NP TONRND
IVAND MIVY low-code MMMV NASWNN (Generative Al)
NDN ,INY N2 M2 MPNNA DMWY NNAY P NI DININD
NATPNN TIIMIVIN ,MNON NNIINT DIMVYON NN PYYNY D)
NN D>THND DM 1T NNIN .OMPOYN DIIDNN NNT NPNPIN
MLWI P2 2HWY WHN OININNY low-code MNINS vip an
D29NN DWM5 MNTPNN TPMONIN NN MNDS PIAY MNPON
TPMONIN NN DY 1IPPWN ,TIN NN’ .NNKN I MOINN NYIAPI
DOVNPNYNN SNP IR NN NAN  (Generative Al) nINY
NINNY OINDY ,07ID00 N DWVNNWHN MIID ,I1OX MNNAVYD
NNIN ,NIANND NN .NPYYN NN NPOVINT PXNNIDIIV

.8.6.2

.8.6.3
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NON NYNNTIN YNO NY Avann low-code-n nvna MmN
.DINNA NPANIM MPYIN 4PN NANINDY XMINNT NIANN PIVND

ND91N 2NON) BN DYINN DMWY MIPYIN DINN O1VIIPN NNINNN AN

MWD DINN HY OPIPYN IO
MNTNOVID NDAM NXANT DINNIN DMPIPOYN DNPIVIPN ,NIIND NIWNY

IMOMY DIV [, TPSMIND MINON AN Pa 090 0omPY) Low Code
DNPY MYNNNI MMPON D98 My avp DY »PHpn Tunn ,nPpoy
MY DM INA 9D MDY YT DY INON PA) DPNONOV

M2OYaN DINN IV DIIPIYN NRINN NDIIN MIDN

2D 7.8 PYO NI

DN DYNN DMWY MDD DIND MININY DINHNN
DOVD 7.9 PYD NI

12 09NN OV MYIYIN 0INNI MINHND NIAN

NNV NPINVPI MO MINK MIAN DY NINNN NXIAPN .8.10.1
PNV DMPOY DDVNN DINDN POY MSNLVIN ,DIDIVHON
MINNA DXPNVN NNHX N NN DN DOMPYM DIV
O DDINN2 MINNN DX ATHN TIMIRD MMM SaaS
DMYMY NYNOLY DN’ PYA MINNN ,NIANN NOWND
mIH2NY XMWY DMUMD DPD NYNN NNAPIY DOMPYN
mMINN . PNYa DYNHD PYnn DNNSN OMINN DYPODY NP
MY Sy OOV 19IND WAVND NPY NPV NPYS NN
MDOY9 MIRKINY Y0IAN ANND ,NINIAPN

Magic 1MNNMAVYM NXIAPN DY TININD MTIN MNIND YPNY .8.10.2
MNPN L, MPNNI MNVNN MINDNIV DMIMNINND Magic xpi-) xpa
DNVN ,DXVTN DN DY MNON MPYN ,DXNNINND NMOWYN
NON DXPNY )0 DY .NINMPIN MYIITA DXPNN DNV MYON
AN 172NN NIIYNY IUN L, TOMYNYN MINNA DMIMNINND
D>TN DYPNYM PYN NN NNIND L) 19D .DNYNND PYNND
19INI NN NIAPIY NN .AYNR DIDINNL MINNN NN PN
mM>w2a MINNND NIVNL ,INHN NINY PV MMIN GOV
.DXDPYM DMPWIN PINNN NIVD PIY NN JTIND YININDI
NNV YPNY1A NINNNI NIIND ,Magic xpa NNNAVYI DINNI

INND TININ M SOA NMVPVIIN | low-code NON
IOIN OPAD (1) : NMPIMLP SNV OOPONI NIANN DY OMIPOYN
POND NMYN DMNN YN MNIPOY NIDIN MNIN TPYIN NHNXMN
Sy DYXNMONN DINIY» MYNNNI DN DIVY YNNIV VINIWN MPNN
NON MM MNMAVII YPAD (2)-) ;NIANN DY NNNOVIN 1)

,ServiceNow ,OutSystems ,Appien ,Microsoft 025 ,low-code

.8.7

.8.8

.8.9

.8.10
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DMIMN ,N12NN NOIWNY .Mendix-) ,Power Apps, Bubble, Bolt
DOPNYA MINNNY MNAN DY NI DY DOWAUNN DMIOI0IN
MY ;MDY IMPHKN ; NNDVIIN MNON DN O ININDN
TPNNOVIRD NN NNNAVIIN NANTN NN ; VIV MV
PYIN; NNMAVLYIN NDYI9I M) ; MITINN NPNTNOL NPNVYN DY
;OO AMOYY DX PNN ; MNPY NPM DONNPNRN DXTVPYN
DOYITIN DNYINDY DIPNY NPXY NNINOVYS NNVIAN NYTPHY
PVMN HMND MYTIV ; PINYI MPIN INNNND ; VYNNI
MNMNMOVYS PIVa NINNH NIANN ,Magic xpi NHNOLVYS DINNA
P2 .DPDN MNNNN NPMINNT PIRNND |, IDINNOIND
Jitterbit , Talend, Boomi ,Scribe ,IBM 013 19200 S¥ 1PINnNn
72 o»p .Software AG-) ,Informatica ,TIBCO ,MuleSoft
STIN NYNN NNVPVLIIINT DVNNYNN DINDYT DININ 190N
mEPYaN X nNwnvnn (Model Driven  Architecture)
I NN TWYND ,NTY MINNA PIRNN 1Y PV 0) .AppBuilder
1M .AppBuilder-a MY ©NNNN 09D MYsn IBM-1 CA
1992 N2 APANMAD MO MYTN MM NPNINTINND ,TON
NN/ MY MANYN DMV MITNY DY) ,MINN NN

SY N, DY DWAVYNN DMIOINN DMIINN ,NTaND NOIWND .8.10.3
NMPDOLPITIS OPN OININND DPNYI MNHNNY  MIaN
,DOMNINT ANINT NPDIVIPNY NN NMINSIN MIYN ,0XNNINN
N29 N2> (Portability) 7M7) ,(Scalability) 9y N1 , 1NN
o»oa05 MmN, vidwn MYp | (Interoperability) 17T
,IMPo1 N2NNN MK ,MOYD DN DOVNNWYNIYT DXNNINY
19) OIS MDY, PI0N DY PO PONIN [ MIPNNN MOP
ERP, -N M5 NININY YRIN 022101 DODUINIVIN NININD
TPININ TPNNOVIND DD DMV PoD) CRM

oMY O .8.11

: DYPOY DYIMVNN NNINNVIIND NINNAVHN DIPIY .8.11.1

DYMVY»  MMAY NIINND NYNNY  MNN MNIND [, NNIND
NN PONND DNNIND IWINRD YTYN OPPOY DINDNN NMXNVIND
DMOPOY DMV DY TPXNOPNM NDMAN MNP NIONN
DPOIND NHIRNND OONMN PY DD DM ,DOMIPN
DIV NINX J9YY 7O XY ,MIPNNI OOTPNYM 01NN
TIVAR 1NN T 5y (ROD Nypwnn 5y 9NNN NINY DPPoYN
,DYPOY DYDY DY NITMN PINNVIN ,NINOON) NN NPIOND

DN MNNDY MOIWN
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SY MNYN MIDIND NMNINIV MNNOVIY MTIN VIV NIV PNY
SINDNIN TYIID NI, INLPA NN

Low- N NOy2) M1A5YW N1 ,MDVNVIN MNP NNV
MIV-NMPY HY D»PoY DMY» NDM9 MY ,Code/ No-Code
.(Web business) V)I1VN /(Mobile) 79 /(Client Server)

DYV PINNDY DIN9Y ,NNAD OMNIND NIYIND 1T NNV
MM ,(Desktop) NMINIWYY MTM) DXy 220 DOPOY
N .UNNWN SPYNHD NPXOD DMHNIT DD YIDY TIN MDY

av ,metadata-driven development-n Py Yy NovIan

DY TN MYNNNA 09NN UL-m 0NN man , mpoyn Npdnon
MNTRPNN NPNINIVI NPEPNL YINOY TIN ,DOOYNN DN
Anea

oY NPRNM NDM9 ,1MIY low-code NON DIV NNV
995 ,(M/F) 'D»79)»1) 125202 DNTPNN OYPOY DNV
DOVNYNN DOYT) DMDIN DXIAVNND DY DOYMINN DY
MOIWN 595 7772 DY VN DIV .NPVIIP MNOVN VIDIND
ST DI 1M, MIRPOY TIDY , 00N Y0702 )

MNNN DY AN PNNI OMNIN NIY PNV NPIDN NNNOVIIN
MXPOY NP DOYNINN DIW NOYIND DY YN MYYN
Jlegacy systems m29yN Yy O YN

Enterprise Integration ) 70N M8NIVINI MMXNVIN NNNAVYY

1230 ,M2°N NIvarn Low Code Mon (& Automation Platform
- MY NPPDY MOIWN P DIONM DONM YV PNMIVINY
NP MIXINN 25710 MNP TN XYY NN, NPNN NIINA
MNPH P2 92N DNONIN DY NONYY YD) DINNI DY MNINY
nMwn IT-N M2202) MOIWYNI ,DMMIVY»I DN DINMN
.(data-driven) D)1 >¥211Y ONPPOY NX TIONY NIVHL ,DMYIIVY
YD NTIAY SOMY NNAYD 1) NON OMNN) DY NN AN
YPYN NBY N1 1NIND NN MPIY NNIIN NP DIVIRD
VTN NYNN 12) NPADRN MINIYIY DY IDIYIMOVIN, NINPOY 1NN

ANIRN T2 HHID HMINY NVAINRND
MM D IWRD YD Magic xpi NNNOVYAD NIVINNN 1IN
P05 N12NY IWANNY 12T Kubernetes NODIN Y NONONOVA
PPNNY 172NN MNIPYY IWaNMY SaaS NIINN NNNOVYIN NN

.DNYY Y091 PY NNNAVIIN NN
,JLow Code 9”21 NVPNPYAN DMV MY NNV
L TARD ONNPN YT RID DOVNNWN DIONXPN DXNNIN NVHWNIN

Magic xpa
Application
Platform

AppBuilder
Application
Platform

Magic xpi
Integration
Platform

Magic xpi
cloud native

Magic
SmartUX
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DY) OMPDY DIV DY DY PN NYYIN MM |, ,)OND
NNV YN

NIYANDT,INODYHN DAY DN DI PY NDDIAN NNV
4.0) ©MON MWYN YD (smooth migration) PON 2N
NN MOWN YV X P oy MY (Industry
NN HOMNT NN DOPNY NIVNI ,NNPO NXPN MISTDVIN)
DTN 19N DIV

: (End-to-End Vertical Solutions) £ 71> 121N MININD

DY NMVYN MOIND NPNONIV NNV MTIN VIO XAY PNIY
SINDNN TYINID NI N INLVPA NN

YPON DI NONY WHRWNN ORI YN DI PPN MIDIN PNIND
DNAVYN .DONITY MNOIL PPADY NIV 9N NAY DYMVN
SV MDIAM NVOMND ,NP1YPN DMNNIN MIIWNY NIINND
MNP NIVIANNDI ,)NIND DY 235990 2WNNI NNDMNNDN ,PO0N
ORI DIWN JNND DNONIDID DY D197 DM YWY YN
MOV [ NPNN DN DY DOTINND DMOINY DRNNA NINRD
2y .DYMVN GNI DPNNN) OORTP MPY OINNY ,0NPIT,NTIVN
MIODNA D) DMIVPNNI ,MINN NINSY DMNNN MMPY ,2)17 ’9
21170 NN NIV NINHN TNXD NN NIHM NPRNN
DNPN NON DIODN ,NINN NXTHN NMINY G0N ONIT YN
YTN MIRDDD DY) MNPYY

Ina mMnn ,Hermes Air Cargo Management System no9y»
WONAHOYPIP DDV IIONN DY KON 5IN0 PPNI AP MIIN
NN, YO NON NYWHYN NOWNN .(Ground Handling) >N
S TIWON D19 TN NNYNN PP DN 7D WO 2D ,NNYN
AYOVNIN N NNNI DI HY PYMVINY NP2

HCM (Human Capital Management) mmnIna npyH o
2230 TP MPNNA IR SaaS MPYI YNNI YN DIPNNN
YNI NN VD DINVIND AWANRHD NT PNIND SYNR PN
ONSPND - ONMNTPNRN  ,DXTYN NI IR I

DN NHLN DNRONIVIIMN
SPVNSV NTYOINIY D110 NP NIIWN

DXMPYI DIV MTON ,DIPOY 21270 D10 NDYPN N NOIYN
.Menarva Ltd N2n 172N > Sy NYXIN N NIIWN .OOTIWD
ALY NNAM NMTPIN MDY MY NNTPNN MINN NNV
DO DININDY NVPRIYHP NP> MIAND  NTYPHN
N9 NN IN DN ,NLY IPX) MYNNINI

FactoryEye
Smart
Manufacturing

.8.11.2

T™(licks

Hermes
Cargo

HR
Pulse

MBS
Solution
Nativ

Mobisale
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DVTN OMIXIN
MDY DINN MIXIND DIPIWN DIIXIN PINYI MN’A NYD NYN NN NIIND

MNPY ; MWD DINNA DINIIWI DN NN MIDIDN MDY

- Perpetual 97102 : D»IpdY DTN MNWA NYNIND MDINND NNPYA NN
TPV NN THINDY MIVPNM MIY9-TN DIYYND NN WP )PV NN
Y01 DY NP NOPNY WIOY 1Y NPHON - Subscription DTN ; NPINN
1599 INNN NMIPON NS MYV PNNN DTN NNDNI OMHY IN OWTIN SN
TNDOW DD DXIANWYN NYPYN NXIAPN 1D IV ,MIVPNNN VNN YMNNn
NPINN NPooN NNAPN (Customer Success) DNNYSN NNVLIANIY MNPY
N NPINND NNPN2 DYV ,NTP-DY INMAY INNN NN NYINN
MINSINM NPINNN SMIVH MDIDNN .MDIYNI DI9INHNN DM NPRNNN
VIO NYSIN NN NXIAPN ,I12YN 1PDID DXNNDY,NPMIND JPONR NPINK )2
MINN NINDNI NV PPH NN NPINNRD OOIN,D9DIN PNINYITA NPINKY
.DOOPMI9M MDIONA NIONN

9N N 10% 1PN DNN MDIdDNN IYN DINYT DXMIPY IN DN NP PN
D2 1NPNONY DVWTIND NYWA D) 2024-) 2023 DMV NXIAPN MDION TON
.2025°72 30

911 N 10% 117 1NN NXIAPH MDIONY ,MDPY9N DINNA T2 MPY PN NIINY
MMNNN MNPNIN AN N NNNI NXIAPN MOION TON

DNNTND 13N

MNS9NNA,2025 212 30 DYDY MY DINNA NNNTNN 12X MTIN DOV oD
D9DIN PMNITA NIAND NNNTN IIAXD DXNNA ,NMANN NIINN NNPN 99
D905 MNITI MDIIND 1IN DIVY MAPNN MININ 29 YY) DIXTNINNDND
:(N7Y %95N1) (NH2NN DY DXTNINNDD

30.6.2025 019 MItH 938 NNIYN NDIFNA NN NPN
36,391 2025 MV Y HOWwHY W9
34,535 2025 W DV HO¥I7 )W)
44,387 2026 MV
48,969 ToONY 2027 IV
164,282 10

VYO NN DY OINNPNN NMTA NN L2024 129872 31 OPD NN 12ND
: N2 NP1 L2024

https://www.sec.gov/ix?doc=/Archives/edgar/data/876779/000121390025043
.459/ea0241007-20f magic.htm#fact-identifier-1442

.8.12
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.8.14
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3005 YNNI MINI SV I3Y NI5ID 23 ,97939 = PINY 230 AN Y9 NN
139, INDIDS IIING 1993 123 DN VTN 0II90I7 DI 5Y 1193071 DIV
DIVY DAL ON23 19395 ,79307 27 5Y WAV BITIINI IV OID3 5y
DNV D35 A9ANA TIMPDE IS 1IN13 SAY0N 79933 NI 153957
AL YT LTIV 3919993 INIINITINAD 7/ TINY 23D ADIN Y17 I3 I/ , D985
ANIYA DIIN INDI 239958 1IN 93 9PN, 97 )23, UPINAL NIV WUY
73 55330 ,00MPYUA DPOUNS) SINPUY W35 WADIY OINA 5IN153 IN
S THNIIN SNV THNI TII 1IN 3995 YUN) 5III1 WD 383 MENs
NNPNG ONNAI (PIIY 1903 I 1387 DI JOIN , FIINNA) 991957 IV
DNI3Y) D1995 NONINA PINNA DTN ON3 M35 ,N59197 01997
79303 02959 OIN 5N DD O OPNY 09190 DIONI1 195N
938 ,MONI )3 D ADIND AL OININA PEVAN LY Avown DAY
INID 1D NP1 )03 TIPS ONNAS S92 INNVAS WYY SII0tAA
NVOVI SN0 MINON 9PINE ONPAS 13 IMPEA BY MIVpNaA

YT 1INV INIIY07
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NI NHAND MDY DIVINNN DIINNY - Y29 PHN
PN N8P VNNV MMPY .9

Moy 9.1

DNININD DMPYI NMININD NN NTPINHD DN NIND NNIAPN MDY
MMM, MIYTH NPNNI,NNVP MIIN MY ,PNDNM PPOYN DN MIAND
, DD MTOMN DX DMV NIAIND MNIPY P2 .pWHNn NN N*1INa
MANYY ,MUYN OY9) ,PU-"M NIDNOL MIHIN PXRIYNY MY MIaN
MYy 57NN PNVIAN TIVND ,OONOWNND DX ,NNIN DI NVPRIYHP
DYINMN MNIND NPIDN NI ,DMITHII YW NINT VP M9 DY NYINYN 112NN
MANM DMV GO0 ,NPPOYN DMDOYI PIND DXNNA MNPIN 1IIND
NPNONOVN DIPNPNVN

,MOIN I DY PN PINYN ,MNPAN MINNA NXIAPN MDY NINDNA
MPTI 50-1 NP JPMPYY 1NN AN MM MPNYN NXIAPN NN
NPYVIZINDY DINNIN DIN’ MNNAVID NXIAPN DY NPNNOLN .DDIWN YaNI2
9955 UN ,MNING YPADI DINVNLIN ,DINNI DY AN NN MYVNYN NHY
S NPINLP INYY DINDY 1N

AL, MMIN IT MPoNN DY ¥ITI) 79239 MM DXYNIND DD 9.1.1
 MSPs
DNLP DPRNYY DXNN ) MIWN DY DT DNVNVIN 9.1.2

P90Y IN NNAY YT NP NPNYNOVI OWNHNYNN VARs-Y ANV
.DNYY NXPN MNP MNINS

.DMOMYN MNITY 22 1IN INT NXIAPN MDIdN MTIN OOV

oOYMNN MNPY 9.2

99%) PONY ,DDO¥a MNIPY 295N 59151 2N NIMPY ©Y02 NI1IND 9.2.1
NVYN NOYNY TYNI NIANN DY DYPINNN PNINIPY DY NN DN
NAN IPOYA NIINN NI, TPNINDIAN NNMDIYI NNONI,TD ITH
NOY AN MIMPY PHND MDY NN MYSNNI NPPINN
DMIDN YV 2N TN DONXMND DT NN PNINMPY .DPINN
TV DM ONLVP DXPOYN DN - DPMIN DD O»PDY
DY3I8Y ONMN YN NN N OO DPNINDI DI TINND
.MPo Y3 Hv o»PTINMN

MY ININ ,2024-) 2023 920NTA 31 DY IONONY ONIVYY D) .9.2.2
DINNA TNNN L,(12VXNI) TH*XA NXIAPN DY ONTHN PMMPY
16.8%-5 DI MY DINNA NV NNINIM NINIAN MDY
DTN MNPON NYNNY Tva ,NNRNNA ,PMDIINN 13.2%-2)
PMOIONN 23.0%-2) 22.9%-5 (120NN THX2 NN I
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N ,NNIAPN OV NN DTN NMINMPON NYN MOIdNN L2025
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20.1%-2 (12VXH2) TNX2 NN NXIAPN DY ANV DIDVTHIN NMNPHN
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D0 OIPY DINS DA P3N0 198 IN TINAY 3990
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SV 119987 VD37 SO0 SY WOVAY OISV OPDISIOIN IN 0295355
SNV ININZ 0990997 OINPY ,000INF977 OPNVI A7 SY D1PNI1I0A
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7199Y 3153 BN 95Y , PDIIN SV OINIY 1105 UNN 11399713 BNV
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27 92903 D0 NN PIID 39 1239 APIN TIVUDINT N1 )39 , 511909
NG

NN PV .10

DS1IY-1) PIND PO PIVY TN NXIAPN NDYON MY nona .10.1
DINN 955 UKD ,091¥2) X IND NN NNAN NVNN ) NIANN NVNVN ) DNNNPN
TPPINYN MIVIVONRN DIV DY NPRINKRD NPTV MPINND MNMP MY
DMNMP MNMPY DY DIWP SV DPINM MM NOND 1 MDY .NPINDNM
,DOWTN DPNYI NPTN NN NI ,00INT) DOPOY DIIVNN DY ,DOWTNI
29P2 INIAPN THYR PIVN ,DMINMN DOPOYT DPNIDNOV NININS OITP
MY NIANIN DYDY NPDIDN NPINN MNP 1990 191 , P NINpY
NIPN DY MPOYN

MNIPYN OY02 NANIN NN NNIRD NIVPINN PNV TIVD DY MIPN INIvN - .10.2
NN MYV YD DY NXIAPN .OMIPPN IMINIPY YW OMINNI I T8O
DPII8Y NIMNINON DO NNRNN PN MDY NN MYSNNI DHMMPY DY 1M1
MNP DY WIT DV ,D72P02 .DNDYY DOPOYN NN Y9INPYW NANIN DINWNIN
NNMNY NPITHN PIND NXTY,D9DN DMOPDY DINND NPTNY DWTN DIPNY

ANV NOINY TPNNN

Ma7o- | DOPON DY aNT NN DXWSIAND N8P DY DYPYN DINNNND .10.3
DMMIN NPON ,NMIMPY SNPNRY DN DPP ,DPNSPH DIDIDI MONNYN
MTPMN NMPY MDIAN NPY NI APNN 291 D10 NTIAY ,NNNN) DOPINY
MNYI2 MNON D NYDON POHLTN NI N2Y MDY 19) N8O
AN MDY OON ,)NPN DIV ,(SEO) vI1ndN 0N DINX OITP,N1PNIAND
NMMPO MIMYY DPNMPN DIDID NHMPN NIAND , DN NPINPN 19N
NPPINY RPN DININ I MNITY ,0PNINIO0 DTN NMINN TNNY ,N8pN
NPINOM

292 .PPY PIVY MYNNAND 1) PY PIVY MYSNHNRA 0 7O Iapn - .10.4
TPIN OVINR T DY PY 19IND NPINN MY NYSIAND MOV IDINN
DMNIND NN/ 179 M ,NINPHN DY P8 GOV WP DDNIND ,DOTIY»
01991 2°5N2 NYY NYN NIINN NINNYI ,NNT TSD .DMHIVIVON DITYD INNY
NNONA NPNMMPY DY NIYPNN IN,DMNDX) OPPOY DN YT DY DINDINNN
NPYIWPNNN .MPON MIMIRNDT MYOITY DORNNA ,01I0ID DNNN) DIRYN
.MIPY D35 OINMNN DD NPINDI MY NIYINNI MWVY)

2N D»POY DAMY NV NIYNIN D) PV ININ IR NPNYHN NIPN - .10.5
System ) D»NOYN OXNVNLVIN (MSPs) DOMIN MPY SPID NONON
Nw» M OEM »anmv (VARs) q0m Ty OOy ©owan | (Integrators
MNIND NINAPN DY DOINIRD MDTIVNN D19 5210370 MIINN NI .OMNNPN
IRV ITIN,NPYION DIVT, 10NN NN, TINN,PININ 71PN )9, 112N
.MADN MNTHA OPNMIN DINAN MYNNNI 1)
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MYNNINI I NN DIIND APNYH ,NPY MPOK) NXAPY PN N2 MPTNI
L1197 ,NONN MDY HY DININN TUN , DM TYD1 DIRY- DOINN DINN
TOWNSPN NIWON D2 NON DN .1IINN YIXIN DY DINDHIDM NOMINN
NPOI NSPN NINMPYD MPY D¥PADM) ,MIDVN NINHNM MPINN MMNN2
DY NYIYO NIV NOND NXIAPN ,D2APNI .NNIAPN DYLVH NINTNOV NINHM
-29 NMN2AYN DMD) MNIPI DIV TN DMIIRN DIXANM NN MI2AN

.DIMIND

PPy DO NXAPN DY NN PPV INY

MNIAVM 1IN NMININD PAD DY SN ,1IPY> MPON 1Y
NPV DY) TN NPIVIVON MIPON YNID NIVHNI ,OMIMNIN
.Mobnnn *vapnd

SV DNVNLIN ,DMPDY DXIYP MYSNNI MDPY NI NI
0 15 ,0EM >amv ,q01m Ty Yoya ©PNUNI DIN9N ,MOIYN
Magic xpa M2y PPY M0 1Y 0P .DOMPY YPID) DINYY
DOVNHNYNN  ,MOIWN SY  DNIVNLANY  MSPs  MysnNa
D)YI99) NNAY 7D NXIIAPN DY TPNNVINMD DIMYIN NINIOVYI
NP MMPOD N7O10 DY DINIY»

PN NIV MR MPTYDA XY DOWION ,DMIMN DI 1Y
MIN DI TIT2 NI OMIN N9 IMIPN MVON TIvN NNAPD
12D NIYIN NI DY TIY POIND NN DY NN PPV
NNINOVYY HY 1N DIY»Y 55 7972 DININK MSPs D) DY DI89N
MPOYN MXNOVINRN NN DY N NNaNN DY DMIVY»N
DN NAYD IXINN DY MSDYY TN 07NN Sy 1O NNM
DN .NXIAPN DY MID0N TN PINYN MININ DN NYITIN
DXO2NOY NPIN SVNY NIVYIN NIDIND DOXNNA DOV DN
WM NIWINN NN ,PINYN IDNNY  JI9INT 07DV
20N NN NN N PMPNRN NN T DY DIPNDN NN
DYMANM NN MHAN DY DINONA N8P SWHNYH NI POND
MMPY MY MPINI NN DY NPODHN NP ,DMOMPHN

LDMDIND 27 O

PIPY NPIDOYI DY 2N7 NN HDIDN ,NPHIDY PIPY NIV N1y
DTPOY NNIAPN DY NMININAN YND MYTIN NYY NILVHY
1ITYD TN DY DINAN YDID TINIYD NN NXIAPN 901N .MPON
,DOVUTN DIXIN HY MOV MLV DVNHNYNN DD DMV NN
, MY NTIAY MV [, NNHN MDD DIPP) PINY NPV

NN Q0N Y0 MO0 YN

.10.7.1

.10.7.2

.10.7.3

.10.7.4

.10.6

.10.7
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DMININN 90N ,MPON DTND OXRNNA MNWN NXIAPN DY MPINN INNN
MPOND MY 99010 P Y)Y NI ,MPON YV MNYNN M5 WOV
DY) MDY DOWTIN 1901DY YY) DM MMPYD N1NIVIN

DM MINN NN OIMNINND NNIAPN 1O N2 MDY MINN MY
NOYNY 19 %9 HY OGN .PIYY DOWTN DNPNY DY HPON> NN NTH NIWIND)
DY M5 MMNIYPNN VI ,DINNY NDVPIN) HPMYNPYH NTN ,NI1INN
NI 1PN OTR NI ,ANT MWINPN PO DY NDPW NIONN 0T NINMPY
DOYY NDIDN NI PVLINI YITI 0N .DTPNN INTNOV YT NDY NHOIND
D972 DXVTN DNPNVY 192 SY20 DON DMNNNN DININ - AT THNRD NMINPO

.Y 012NN OXANN NN

DM THNN JPIND DNITYNNI OINNONND NIANN NOVD DN MDOYIN 2NN
, D292 NIV NPOIDO-IPNND MDD DN LN DY NNV DIVIYIN
,DOUTN DNPNY HY DNDD) MXNID NPNTNOV MNNNIND ,DDIN DMNNY
P2 MYON DINDN DY MNHD .DXINT DXANWYN DY DPNINDIA D9 MY
DY MO DXV .DMAN TMINNN NNID 1D G MDD NMN»P MHaN
mMaao ,nom MNINM IT YMPY MPavnn (NPNDY JPYNI) M7 MIan
YPADY DPNIIYN DINVNLIN ,NPMIPN TPNTNOV MIIN, MOV NIV MNP
NN YR NPNTNOV HY DNV DIMINNA DXNNPNNN ,DONNPN DOMPY
.M

VI91) ,DMTPNNN DXMPYN PIVD MIDOVPON NDND ,NHaNN NOIWNY
920 MNIND LNV (Data) DN DI LY OMPY N DDINNA
TN ,NN2) TNDNOV NN NNPD NNPN PNIND PADY NDID NAMNN ,TPNNIVINY
DINN MNIPY .NPYY MPNT YN NNVAX DY DXPHNN DXVITIVDL NTNY
TINONOVN MNTPNNN WA ,NNND TNPHNI NM2) MY MDD OXOVN M
NN DNPNYN P2 MINON ,ORNNA .DXPID DY 2NN YN NN
NYNLN NNT NYP, PN OPOY TIY YSND NZIDM D) ROX NN PI NTPHNN
NN ,MPYN MDON ,MOIWN P2 ¥ NLVINI M) ,(Time to Market)
YT NI PV MINNN .9P°N-22NT DXOPNMND NI NI JNPDNY NI
MNIYN ININ 1NN NN DY MINNND NPHRYN ,NPNANIN MNIYY NP NV
m”> 012 Sy MINNN NTTI) ,0%7 DNIPNI .MMPOY Ny DN
, NN PN 4PN, NIVPYN MPHN,TIYIN MV, MNTPNN MINDNOIN
.D»OIMNT MDY NN NI PN MNNPN POMIN

MY DINN HNIWA DNNN DRI DY NI NN ,NNIAPN NOIWNY
DXNDN DPMNI DN M PN D N I NIVON L YTNN NPNONOL
72NN SY OIMINNN NNINY .PIYA YONN NPON NN PITH PIYNDY DIWANIN
T2 DY OMNPNN PPN YN, NNNPN IND NIINY 0NIW-19 PONNND YIN
DMINNMM 9P 12NT ,D0MDVNVIN MNIND PINIPYY PODY NI
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TN ,NMOYA YPINNA NMNNNNA DR NXAPN .OPPOYN DNIIIND IUWN
D2, (Utilization) 7PaANWN MM 1DPNOIHOIMNEPN DTN MI,NONN NYIN NN
DANIORY OONN DT ,D1571) OYNONIV DOLPMIY NYINL DNIV-1
50,9012 .7mMINNN D1 DX PIN ND DXPRIYNN DI DD - NV
19INA TTINNND NY IWANND NNN I} NNP DNN NIANN NYI¥AY AN MNINN
DMV MNHNNN MMINN DY 1YW DXAPNNN 9PN YaNT DXOPNMID DY 209
PPN W 5510 PIND TPNMINMPIY YSND ,THINIIYN-PA TIXNVIN MNDN
2RPTHONIND PIYA GO TIY INNNN

NOMIH NIV DINWNN DININD OYY NMAN MINND NN DY MTNHINNN TNYY 115
MNTPNN NPNONOV XWX, MYTN MDD ND DIV 1PN NNIAPN
DNY WNNY NIVNA,MMPY 729XD DPNHNOV-OMPOYN NMNININ NINNNIDI
DOV DMOWNNND DINNND NXIAPN IYPYN 90N .INP2 MAN TN NN
OONEPN IT >ANPY YW N2 NIPHXR THPPADD NHY PLINNN NPHRYN
.02 KN

D27 DX ANYN NXIAPN DY DOININIVIOM DIDMPN DINNHNNIN POND D, PIYd>  .11.6
SVPPPY NP0V [, NPDINS MO MATY ,NNIAPN DY OND IONIYNHRYN
955 .21V AN NYITY NIDNN DN DM ,NNON MDIDN DNNVHD YHN YANWYN
WNND L MINDN DY NONRND 7PNV 7PININ IR D70 NNAPN T2 NHY NOY
,MINNN 1N DTN NMNXI OXAIVN MNIND IN NMDIWNN POND AN NN
DONINI YNND IN TN DNODN DNY DIWTN DN NNINNA PSND IN NNSD
NANN ,NXAPN OPOY DY DDV I9IND WAVND DIDY 127N ,MINNNN TN DXV
MDY NINKIM Y0INAN

NPAON IV .12

NN DMNX DMININD OPID OIP ,AMY DY qOIVY DY WP NPYPN NNIpn  .12.1
PMIMPOS MPAODNN MOIYNI NIYYN

NN PA0Y 217 29 LY DY DIVANND DDA DN MIOIN MIN DY VP .12.2
MIPON 1DI8D DXNNA NPIINPID DIWITIN NN

02PN VPYPIPN MAP WDy .13

,INIAPN NOMN NN O99I1ON) NXAPN DY DOYNIN MTIVNY NIAPN NV .13.1

TN OXTIVN PN OPN (PINYI MIIN MM IPNN 029050 MPINNH

NTNY WX MPOY NNPNY 771 1,600-0 DY NLYW NXIAPN NIDW 12, NI

VNN NYPIYN NIINND MADN NPNNIN SNYW DY ,2033 7Y YN DPNONY

NINON MIND NVLYN PX2 MPOVYN MNT DY NONDN MHIMVYN MYYN .ONY

,A2Y7 11990 0.4-521 9917 11990 0.8-52 2025 NIV HYW )IWNRIN 118N 2024 NMiva
NNNNA

GNP ; INDYP 09N NMNYA DXTIVN ONLY MW NP MI2N 90N .13.2

;TY),NVIVVLN ;1Y) P ; DOPYV ,NVDY ; DOPYV ,ONINT ; 1722019 ,7PDI

;TPINN ,OVATIA ;1D )PPV YNNI NN ;7N 19PN ; N9IN ,I9
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720709 VID ;MY [ DIPNRI ;NPYIAN DT INIADINY ;TINN )OI
MT DY NONDN THIMYN MOYN OXIVI DMV MMPNRI) ,PIN P ;70N
VA NNONDN ,771 13,407 -5 HYW 920NN NLWI ,TNNIXD DNVWN X2 MIPOVN
LI0YT P9 1.7-92) A9YT 10D 3.5-52 2025 MY DY NNYNIN NON¥NNAY 2024

.NNNN2

(fixed assets capital expenditures) D12 D03 NIAY NIANN DY NNN MXHN .13.3
=3, 0YT PN 4.4-5 P 2024-) 2023 ,2022 ,720N872 31 DY INONONY OIYD
.D»MYN NINYTA D0 INT - NINRNNA,IDT )P 1.5-01 99T \PN 1.6
MY PPN .14

N 2NINDY I9YO NIVNI NP IPNNY NI MDVYN NONMN NHann .14.1

NNYNN ,NI2NN NOIYNY .OXWTN DIV NNADY NOYW NPNDNIVN NPIINIPN

99D, INTNOVN NN DY NNV NI NNMDN NXIAPH MNAN DY MDNY

T Y0¥ DXVWTN DM NTNOL DN DTPIY DMIPP DNV DN NITY

NPNONOL MM TINND NIAND NIMND .PNIMPY 1IN DY DMYN INDN

OVY MDA IPNND DIARVNND SMYNYN Pon YITPNSY PYNnoT mvyTn

’98Y DNNNA DITPNNY DXANWN ,DXDPN DYNINOVL NININD NPOON
DY MIMPON

MMPY OY PYTN DD NPNPWA DXT2IY NXIAPA NDHNN MNON,IPNNNOVIN - .14.2
,PIVA DMUMD DOVDIIN DY 19) DMINONIVIO MMPY DY ,DX0MPN NXIAPN
NIVNI MYTN NIRDI OXNDY PIONDY MNININ MYOITN DX PTIND 1IN DY
nY> NYN NNIAPN NPIYN NAVIVA MDY NNDNL .PIVD DN DY NYd
OV NDHN MININD DINVTYY DNV

PPN WPWIN 2025 MY HY NNWUNXIN MINNNY 2024-) 2023 ,2022 DOV .14.3
VDI 7.7-59Y ,A9YT \PDID 16-5 90V 119 13.5-0 9077 D0 13.2-0 M)
MNNNA AT

90 )IN L ONIYI NXIIAPN MIIN DTIVNI MYNIND MNP IPNN MDY .14.4
,ADNA 127NN PO D) 1D ,NON MDTN 971D MDY DXT2Y NPPOY
VNNWUNY TIVOIN 3359710 NION TNXD MIVN »YaP DY MIVPNN NXIIAPN MIaN
NN MINYS MTIAYN PON MIND

09”YNMN XY DD .15

NXIAPY PR ,NON NN NA NMOYYN DNIPND OXNNA ,NIPIYIY ,IRDINND Tynd  .15.1
(DXMPIN 190N LYNY) NOY MHDIND MNIND NPNONIV DY DNV DOVIVY
DY2IVI) INDN MNNOD, D8 NPT DY NDY HY NINNDN NIANN 1IN M0
oY PNY OTI NPHIN MO OMINDNN MTION OINNY MINN L(D>I1DIN NN
NN NN NOND NPN NXIAPN NVPPTH .NYY NIDIND MIXINA NNIAPN AN
DIV DY) N0 NN TN NOY NNIDIND NIAY N DTN DINPN NPT
DXMPY MNNM DX 90N .NXIAPN MM MNY DY TWPa INDN MNINDOD
127K NPTID MD50N DY DINND DXWIT) (DPRNDNY DIX9) DONYIAP) N¥IAPA
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MYIN MYIIT,NNYL DY NN2) NMPTNI DXVIV NI PIAONRND MNINN NY 152
M1 MHAN ,0992 .AMINKN NI PRP NMIDIDY DXVIVI NIND MNYPN
INDN NYOD ,DINY NPT ,DOXVIVI HY 19 90N MPINND NIDINND Y2
IN MYIAN NYIN DYO vidXY DN MYYD NMVY )N TUX ,07INDN MTIO)
, DY) TPNIDNO0 MIAN MY ,0MYHY DITTN ,NYD NYN .NIND T NNYL
NMOT IN INDN YO0 ,DXINY NIMDT,VIVI NION T2 NIYL MYYND DNIVY
DN DN IN OOPOYN MMV ,PNINPY 172NN 2990 MINN MM PR
PYO NN DDN OX0IT INTT NP NI NINIOV NNPYI MY NN
oo 27

1N IPNY T ND YPWII NNN MNP 00V IS NN NPSDN N8IPN  .15.3
Sy DINND DOYITI DN NXIAPN MININ DY NXPN SVNNYN 21719 DY .N1AYND
(shrink-wrap license) 7708 )P DO0N” YW PNY 095 7772 .11V MDO0N
D010 YNHNWNN ,NPINRD DMN NNPN OT HYYW PIADNN 1NN NDIN DD
NODIND DN NT NDN Y ONODNY MIRTN PN N2 ODON OININD
30N AN NN PNYN JNAY MNTNHN 552 MVIVN
SUNRND .16

MNINMIY  .16.1

177520 NYMINN NN H91ON 2799 DNDINI NV NN NNY DY NYWY NN
910 P2 9915 D02 NOMIND INY .0XI/IN DYIDINN NDNID NV PTAIWY 1O
- TPNDOPN ,NIDIN L,PIVY D90 IMINNI DI DOMINY 97NN NN
M>2P¥9N 9NN D52 VIV DIDA LY NOMINND NXIAPN MDY .NNWTN PNDNOV
XAPN NN MONIN DN

.DNMDN XYY IN NIVHD XYN TV NNMION NPN D NDIYN NIIND ,NITH TVIND
DOYNTN DMINNT NOWON ,NIANN DY DMV 9IND 1D DOwa [ NNT DY
PP DY NIYYI NIANN DY NPPNM NAVIVN NNV INONDV YT NYHMN
P02 DOWITIN DXPPINN NX RIND IN0NN LI DO PNSPHN INY DY
157 INNNI OOPN OVYNIRND NN NNDOY .NXIAPA MIIND 97IXD Y209 MIYN
TV DX YN PPN IPINT DD PYnng NHann YV NnvIda HMminn
DMWY DPNIN DXTY DY NIYIM DY) [, NIOIR IONN TWURD ,0)POYN
Y RYN DY IMDYUN .NPMYHYNI NMDYI DI NPNDI 1D YIT P9 YD
Sy 0NN NN SYIND DNXA MY ,NIIIN NIAND NHMNY DN NTTNNN
NN 9PN NIND NNT ,MPITMNM NPMNNN NXIAPN MIANA NN NOMINN
MATIY D11 MDY VTN DIPN DNNINNDN SN
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DTN NIANN  .16.2
9210872 31 0P MDY NNIAN MHANA 1IN *OXTIVN 190N MTIN VI PnD
)2NY ORNNA M9 ,2025 2 30 DYDY 2024-) 2023 DIVIN NNX DD DY
172NN DY ININD
31.12.2023 0YY 31.12.2024 DY 30.6.2025 oYY
MY OINN | MDY ONN | m»yaoinn | MY OIND | mys oinn | MY DINn
NIDIN MNINI IT »nvyv NN MNNINS IT »svyv NN MNINS IT »svyv
169 181 186 nLM NYNIN
571 2,888 577 3,029 609 2,957 e
3,628 3787 3752 nv

172NN DY DIVYPNNN ONAP DIMY NN I ,(DMINYN IO 7PI92)) PPN NIYHI DXPOYINN DITIIY I *
MNNMY DINYY D910 NY ;NIAND MYNINI MNIPYY O YY OMPY DNTHYN DYO DMPY JNNY DMNODNI
AP IPNY DTN M DI02 DY DIMPY
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1,554 1,554 1,650 HNIYY
223 223 239 ON
1,321 1,387 1,307 PN PN
11 10 10 NPIION 07
516 514 546 N9Y9N
3,628 3,787 3,752 0o
NYMIN DXT2WN YW NPOYNN MNODN IYW DV MIVN  .16.3

LDYYIN NTIAY MODN MYNNNI DPOYIN NN YT2IY NP2, INNNDD TYIND
DY2APIN DININA DXPOYIN NIINN DY N3N NIWNN IRWI NHMINM 312N D)

(DXMPY/NPOYN MI50N) NIINN DY DYYIN DOIN AT 9 DY
N L,NPTIO DY NPNYY YINI MIAMNNN I P ,009910 NPOYNN 2DO0N
V1DI2) SWOOY TN 29N NIAND DY NN PRIPN NMDT DY NNV MINN
P2 ,0°99191,0°57)7 01N HNIWI DXTAYD NPOYNN ONIN .NIANN DY TN
L2759 DY P79 DY DMONINID DININ NN NINIAN DT ,NIYIND NINDTY IO
NN PX0ANY XY T D TUNDI ,NINP YND NNPND DN DX NPOYN MIO0N
NPOON DMIWANNN DMIN DMIPNI LYY ,YNIN NNTPIN NYTINA DI0NN
D7) 91N NXIAPN TY DY NPOYN MODN .0O0NI ININND TN
LDMOMYN MNYTY 69N D) INT DD NPTN DI DNN PTN MINNNY ORNNA
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NAVN NPND NVY NIAND .NOX RD NN MDY MVINN
NOW D5 .NMIVINN NMIANN DY NIMIAND IX DMAN YNDI DIWPND
NMVIVON ,NON MXPOYL DINIDIN DINANN MNININ VNI’
MNNY OODIDY NIANN DY NYTNYN NPNNIN NNIND

NN DAY NN NIIND - DIAND DN MIYIND MAIYD
,DMWONN PIANWYA YY 120 THIN DY NDOLVN IWN ,NMPYI]
TYNNN NITY 2NN NNPANN DY DY D172) .OPWYNRN OIDIIN
DOYY NIYIN,D 1) ,MIP MOIWN ,NPNINIL NPNYN DY
DY9MIN DYNPIMI2 DNNPN DDNINY DONNPN DT DV
VYON2Y MIDN) NN MYPYN IOND MIYY 1T INNS 0NN
ND 917 IN N 0N DY NIPN2Y ,MAINK IMIDOYIN DXANWYN
N NANIN OV DTPY MIRNND IMOYD NIAND G YDVPIN
,A0NA .IPPOYN NNMVIVOR NN DYMD NIANN NI NYNAD
172NN AR NYND NMYY NTAYN MO MDYIN 902 )
2NN NMNNN DN .NNDI NMIRNINDY DIIDN DMVIVN DIIONY
WAYNY D10Y NINKRY ,0217 DINYNI NN NDVIVONI P11 D)
YOINAN NANNI ,NIIND MDY MINNIN DY YMNM) MOV 191N

DY POLMNMHM

NMMPON IRIIND YINND MDY NIAND MDIIN - MNP NV
,172NN NPADNY DXNYPYN NINININN 1IN YAV DIRY ONINP
YNRNWNY DDPWNN DN IN MIAD) MYIT DOYXIN DN ONNN)
DY NI2NN YN DY NXNIND 197,71DRD DINIPYWI) MNINNI
MINN MDIONA N2 DTN MON NIAND .DPMYNPYNN NPIIMPD
TIVND NI2NN NI .DMIYP MMPYY DXMPYI MIDIN MPONN
POLNNIY MMPON DY MON NAT DTN MDD MINPY YN
POMN .NIYP DONSPN DIMPY |, OPMDN MNIND NIIND
IN DXMPYNN NN VIV IIRY MPO MIAPYA VIOND DY NN
.192NN NPYOYNRY MIVN NYAP YT HY MY N2 IPDY MNINN
MIYPNNY 22N O90Y MPON NN IN DXTYA NTNY-IN
172NN NOWYND GN) MMPY TAINRD ,TOINY IN PANT MN
JOIND AN NNND NTNY-IRY DI VI VYN NPINKD
DN TOIMYNYN NI ,TI0 DRNNA .PMIMPY dPOY By Y9Hw
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Y¥a M2 DMIODN DD DY MIAY 03P MNP MOIONN
J9IND WIVN ,DPXI0VN BY NHNN DIDN MIND X MNPY JTIIN
2DIAN NANHI MDY NINXIN ,NANN DY YMNINN) ODHY

DN PRIYNX MNODNN PON - IXIYN INIDND OID2N OININ

DMAD OINK DMDII MTOM DPIa DY NIINN NIYPNN
MANNN NIRND PN NYPY NN WX, MPDN NMND
D)2 DY MIND NMIVYPNN NNDNA 2NN NWYIPIY 1IN
NNNN ,NMY IXIYN MNDN NYIPY DXINK DIDIVH MTOIMN)
VNN AN P2 L,NAND MDDM DXNIN 90N TNYD NIANN
172NN NN ORD DYDY YN DONIM MDD .Y 19.3.6 Pyva
IMNY IN NN NPIPVAN PRY NPPDY NPIVIVONI VIPIY
,1172NN MY 29905 PN NNPND DMVY PIY DMPDY DYTON DY
2024 920872 31 DY 11D) .7PNMN OYYI MNIY DI ,POOPYA 7O
NMIAMNNNN ONIN D32 NTHY NIAND INNHNN TIND )ON
YN .DX0ININ NITOINM DXPIAN 2995 NAPNNN TN NPDIVN
N, D029 MITOM) D2 °49D NIANN NMIPNNN MTIN G0N

.192NN YV DX TNINNDN DMIDIN MMNYT

MNAYN HY DN 19002 NNMDN MON NI2ND - DIXINI MYN
Sy YAVUND NVY NON DXININND NMDIINA DT, NPIDIN DININ
PON NPPON NHANN DN NANNY NMDOYS MNNIN ,NIAND 2NN
, DIV MNNAVYS DY MDD PAN PMIDIINND SMYNYN
NPNRNN ,0MY) DONINPH DIMPYNI OO MIDIN MNINS
NN MO NIANN DY MTNYN NNNYIY .1’V NN NN
N7 DY INMAY DOWTN DMIXIN MDA NN NNAY NN NI
MYTN MNON POIND D) 10D ,DOYWHY DITTSN IWINY N
MDIdONA DT .DOWTN NMIDIN XMPY WINDY DINDMP DMININD
YIHY 19INA YWD DINDIN DINPYM NI2NN DY NON MINININ
Y DNYAP TYNN ODIAN NANMY MDY NININ 172NN DY
TYUNNA NN P2, DMON 7PNN NONR NN MNIN MNNAVYI
VITVPN MY M0 PYN MDY DIV DY NN INJIp
DMINA ,(SaaS) MPWI MM DY) DMWY (RIAS) M TPNN
NI2ND PN PRIYND DMWY NOXR NNV MININS 0N
,INNANNT NMYIITA TINIYD T MIANIN NX 19V PYNND WITN
NMINSIN ,PIVA VAP XD NIN DN DY MYTH NMINRDNY 9II)

MNNY DYDY Y01AN NANM) NIANN MDY

19722 HPMNN NYIIN NNNPT NIANN - D10 MMTD DY NP2
NN NIPA DY NTOPN TN .OMADIN MMTN DY 110NN

Sections 302 and 404(a) ) PN DRNNA DMADIN MMTN DY N
oY D»905N NMMTN MPNN ,(of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
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MNPNY NDY IND PN PIDI MOV NN VY NN
HPONIN NPLIMDIN MWD NPDVYN INNRD ,NIINN NIWND
NN JPINN NHND DYIIND PNy

NPIVY NIINN DY MDOYSN MNIN - NMIWIIN NINSIN MTVN
DN ,DMVY DN KW NIYIAID NYIIN OMNN IPINI NNNYND
IN DN NPYN YTYIN DIV MINDT NN, M DTN NNdY
,DOWTN NMINGS NIDON ANP L,PINNN YY) 7Hann YY oY
MTNN , M0 0NN ,MMPY DY N7 YDITY ISP MINNN
INND IWINIY MIIN 1DV DMHDD DMHID5 OININ NN YIVN2
SMYNYN NPNTN 92X PR NIV IININ DXOPNI0 LYNY ,NI1AINHY
D52 MDIDNN DY PY IDIND WAYN NPIDNRM NNMIIN NNY
DYNY N2VY NPMNN MXPOY OV INTPN X IPNT )y
SV NPIN DNRRND ATV LNPNNI MOIDNI NPNTIND
;7295 . MDOYan MINNINA NP0 ,MDIONT OMPYD MININN
MOIN MNHIN GPYI ROYW NPIWY NI2NN DY NIV IDPNINIIN

LDOPRYN TININ DY PYND YT NIDNA )N PRI NNV

YNYA DOXDIN PLMN - 1INNI DOYMN dNYI DD TIY NP

TV DT NYNIAD DN DYDANN YNYI ONMON TYNY DOYMN
VY QUND DIPTI) DINK NNV MDIIN DODIN MY NNN MNaY
7952 ,IFRS »PN %90 Ty NP MPrT12 T NTPY MDISPITIN
MYBPY ,NI2NN DY YDININ NANNAY NPIWONT MINSINT NTPY
NND IRNN DI .PNYI NPMYHYN NNNSN MININD D>ND
172NN SY MYAN MINIIN DY YMNMDI MOHY J9INI YAVUND NODY

NDION 275991 NI2NN MDION 2 DN DY - NIINND MDION
72NN 2RONN NNIN INY DY YOV 19INI YIUND DDNVY DMWY
DOWNNPN DMPY DN NNVPYA NPINND MDD NP
NN 090N IT >MPYN 12 NIV NNPM NPRNN 0N
NP Y2 NMININKRN DNV NIAND DY MIONN NNIN v
95N NOINN 22257D1N TAN DN MODIINN DY MININNINA NPYN
,DMNMYY DONNPHN DMPY ,MIDN NNPYII NPINND MOIONN
TPMYNYN DY) 29910 NN IO DIRYI NNV NINHM NPIRNN
MDD .XIN NP SMPYY OONNPN IT MPWH MoIdNNn
DYTTN DY M2 NNYYM NPIN D) MDD 1IN NNPYWIN
391NN I NPINN NP DN NN Y DONY DMWY
TINN OO T NNPYII DY DPON NMDY 5 .N712NN DY DPINIPN
2955 HPONN NANIN DWW DR TINAN NNPYOIN MO KD
DONNPN IT XNIPY NN MDIDNN DY IO INNNINY
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DV MIONN NN ONY ,MOODN MDIINNN HINKD MDYD PYNn
SNV NTIY PPYVNND O9IDY NHaND

YNMY NXAPY .DIDIN MNINY/DPAD DY NITD MIYPND NPOMN

.27.3.20

DXPAvy qONMA , O™ (MDIN MNIY) DOXPAD 190N DY DWW
SY YN PODD NWNYN NIINND WX NP DOVP ,DXDN
POONVY Y5 .0NY NN TYN NN MDODNY DRNNA DNPININ
DIYPNNN MNIN NNY’ DX ,D2Y7 DY IN IN DXPID DY NMIVPNN
,DNNNN DIPADN MININY WIPIAN PMINN JOP ON OMINN 19N
DYPAD WO DX ,01N DNMPN VNI DD DI MND’ ON
NN 12N NOR DYPID ON X ,DINNND NIDIN NN Y-DY NONR
172NN YV NN PMDIIN ORIV DPYIN DMV 9N
NNAPN MY 992 PON ,q0NA OMNN I9INT NDNY MDY
NYNRYN NIINN TWN DIPID 1901 DY DDIIN PYN YMIPY DINNA
NMIWYPNNN TN NPY .OTY02 RD) DIININ DY NYIN PODO
ANV MIANT MIRXINT YNAD NYY NNND OMNY DXPID TN

STIRD DX O0INY ONPIAM PN

IPRD DD - DDV 29 HY YD ININY 120N 3TN DNXIN PNYY NYIVA

.27.4

N5NIN MOIWNY DRNN,NNT YN ,NNAPY DXTNIN DN D1AY DINDD
: IMYYH2 NIANN YPOY DY DNYAVN NN Y9 DY ,NI1INN

99 NIY0N DN HY NYOYNN NN YTIIN
NMYY9a NHaNN MY

199501 0

mop mNa | P
09955 199NN 11950 NIN)
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v 12201 YNNIV DPNHNVID) D1VID DMDN)
v NOVNN YI8PN
v NOM
v NOVYYI NI NIIND NIANND NPD
v PAYN MYV
02993¥ 19950 9N
v PV NPNZNOV AMINNINNY NPNINN
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99 199501 D) HY NYAYNN NN YN
NMYY9a NHANH MY 1901 09
MLy 993 rant)
v YT NNVIANY NPV 121D
v 717207 YT HY %3N 1P NI MTIR NIYO
v MLAYN NYWN
v SUNN PN
091N N0 D)
v mMavNY MNIT
v N2 MNNIN MIANN DIYIAND DNV MOYN
YDIND-2M
v MINYS Y2PYNN NTANM 91NN PP
v -27 17202 NPTIOY MIMNA PP DY NN M NNN
TIMIND
v 192NN DY MNYIN NPNP DY NN
v 72NN YY NPHN TP
v DYTIY DY NN PNIPY NDIOVL VIDIY
O»YWHY
v DX1INY DX NMOT
v M HY DIWIWNN D1NNIN D10 DIVP
N2 MHANI MOOYIN
v 01599 MMPY2 MYN
v DN MY
v 772NN NAMIXND NIYINN MIHYN
v mMNPY MY
v NIWUN 215DN2 DIDIIN OININ
v DI¥IN2 MON
v D907 MMTN Yy NIPa
v NPNYIIN NMINKINT MTHIN
v NN DPYMN M52 DIDI) TIY NP
v 77201 MDIN
v no5 MIYPNN NPOIMN

NTHN DTAIND I YWD NTNRD ONMNN DOYY VNI NIXON MDD NPT 2D WHITY
NTTNRI MIND NX0N MM TAN DI HY INYIUN NNXIY LID MO . JMYNIND M0
MIHANDY NHIND NPLMDIN MDD DNNNA MINVNY MIVY NOM ,INDNN TINY

IR NPVINDT NPNHN MDDV DT HY MPIMNN
719317 Y BOYOVA SIYSY NIIOA DM 13T YTINA - TINY 33D A0S YN NIAIN
LTO0I AT YN LTIV 199993 INA INVIIAD 7NN 30 79I Y17 I3 303 1997
DPINONA A3P307 IN NI 1397 199023 59 MO DIANA AI3NA NI IYA 5Y , 13997 193
NUNI YD0) AMDYD WINNS OP9VIASIN DIPNUA AN U 1195559
DAY ANYY A93N7 . AIINA TY SV IININNG TVINTIA TNV IIMNNONTA
ANUY , UDNI3) 1197 , N30 D) 53 5 1NYOWAI DIODII N0 IWING TINYI A0IUN
YT 5Y OOIANI VTN NIA TIIY 230 998 Y11 , WONI .19INT 31D ANY 1775
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19 311 JOINI TINY 519775 DIPIVY SO SINSINT INDIDA TPIND2 719302 0997
YT VPNV IN TN2IVINI TINSINT

NIMNN MINTI M2 MIaN HY 09D BIVIY .28

MMM HYA DIPMOP INNND TIND TIID,0NVPTM NIANN DY ONY P avm>  .28.1

MONRDNN IN NYANNN NN N PAIT NPIND NN 25%-1 NYYND P INNN
:9NY VNI ,NIAND DY NPMNNN NN MHANA DINVPT NVNID

40%

40%

Comm-IT Technology mysnxa Mwva)
Ltd. Solutions

onl . =

(O93) MPINH NYY radial-n R =17 n9anh av
yasn nNoa MmN PHna

60% 60% nann N 9540 Y.3G. Soft LT Ltd
CommlIT Software Ltd mysnxa 1wava)
(Comm-IT Technology IYNNNDY
40% 40% Solutions Ltd.
1o a

75% 75% mann N CommlIT Embedded Ltd
Comm-IT Technology mwyynxa 1wava)
25% 25% Solutions Ltd.
NPNINOV NP LVPINS .3

49% 49% mann N Fusion Technical Solutions

LLC.
51% 51% Fusion Solutions LLC mysnxa 1wava)
oNIy.e A

60% 60% nmann .x|  KM.T. (M.H.) Technologies

40% 40% y.n 2| Communication Computer Ltd

55% 55% mMann N Minereye Technologies Ltd
Comm-IT Technology mysnxa Mwva)
459% 45% Ltd. Solutions
AWZ HLS Investment Fund LP 2

27.99% 27.99% a=anl N Sanjer AI Ltd
40.93% 40.93% CommlIT Software Ltd mysnNa 7wawa)
31.08% 31.08% wen T A
oYpYn o

60% 60% mMann N Twingo Ltd
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1IOY TOOM NN NN 7NPMIND NN2 MIIN HY JHIDY MNON O P .28.2
NYY 2024-) 2023 DNOYNN NNN YD DY 920872 31 0P INNONY DNOYY
(N Ha5N2) DN JPINT 29 5y 2025 2 30 D2 NNMNONY DOVYNHINN
MY INA M NMIANND 1IN INIVAPNIV 172NN DY MIDIDN 1272 DOV 1)
: (N7YHO9ONI) NMNNNND MMPNI NYPMNN
31.12.2023 0Y%2 NNNONY MIVY 31.12.2024 £Y%a2 NNYNVNY MIVY 0992 119NV NY DOVNN NYYH YPOY NN | NN BV
30.6.2025 nann
M (M| NN [a))ik} MT (M| PNY PN | 99T |19 NI [a)ih}
919 (199n)[(109n)| 9119 (1991)|(1090) |91 (1o9n)|(109M)
NN | 29Y NN | 29y NN | 2aY
on on on on on on
7,137 | 645 - 8,526 | 10,812 |11,732| 647 - 5,873 | 7,836 |2,174| 315 - 3,072 | 4,128 | WM Mpn Xsell
(Outsourcing)| Resources
"MNNA Inc
NPNINOV
y1mnn
13.977| - - 4,687 | 6,309 | 8,502 | - - 3,949 | 5,273 |7,235 - - 2,244 | 3,082 | N pn | NetEffects,
(Outsourcing) Inc
MmnNnNa
NPNINOV
y1nn
- 153 - [(5399)|(5491)| - - | 28,026 |(1,269)| (844) | - - - 907 | 1,476 [ Swanyyun | CommIT
mmne | Technology
DMWY Solutions
DPNYNOL Ltd
DMNN)
IT minbva
- - | 18,054 | 15,370(20,827| - - | 24,072 | 23,006 | 28,993 | - - - 110,996(13,705| N NPn Comblack
(Outsourcing) IT Ltd
YmNnNa
NPNINOV
y1mnn
- - | 14,803 | 22,278 28,959 | - - | 40,025 | 25,058 32,572 | - - - | 13,758(17,875|m>n mmno|  Roshtov
Y11 95 Software
NI Industries
Ltd
91729582 D 1YV DINTHN (*)
.7192NN ORI ,TA02 NPINHD M0 INA AN MIIN PN YO NP0 MININNN MIAND (*4)
.23 W7NIRT L DOD N1DAVN YIIXD NPMINNN G NYAPA NYMINN NYT NPOPY »NNINnd
MTIRNN DIPR MY 2NN 297 ,NNIAPN DY NN MIIN D90 NJav Pnd  .28.3
: DPINNHONYYN
nPIND NYIY
Mmooy oINN 19300 YY (%) MTINND DN n9ann oY
(MvHva)
9540 Y.3G. Soft .T Ltd
Dr::;?xbgg\(jlzlz;‘;"rf)m 18 60% SN (shares held by CommlIT 1
f Software Ltd.)
NPNTNIV HMPY 0 Allstates Consulting
o»NsPN (IT) y1n 100% Rl Services LLC (shares held 2

QIMDNIN/ ININD NN HY DY 1N DY 1YV NPMNKY MDIZI/NNA NN PIYY NIAND DY NPMINHN 91 Y
ONY NP VT PRI ORIV JNNT 2T NRD I ,WHNTY NP NIPN D30 DN NOMINN NYT DIPOY 19 N
91N NYY MPIMN NN 1PN NNRD NPMIND PRIV Y MNIN G0 .20V0 91K ORIV N ¥II8D NPDI NIN
TOPMYNYN THPMDN ININ 1N NI NMIRN I .(TON) NNI/MDIDNY TN I 5% DV (NODHY IN 1¥A1N)

.M5552 172NN IN MPIYIN DIND DY 271 POYINND MY PPOYY

.DMMNND VIYN NPIN OHYA D) DYDY NPINIIN NIANN NN DXINRN DIPPINNN Pan 18
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APIND MY
Moy 0NN 19300 YV (%) MTINDD NN N9anH av
(Myv3a)
by Magic Software
Enterprises Inc.)
Al Team Software
721N MNINS 85% NI Solutions Ltd (shares held 3
by CommlIT Al Ltd)
2N MNIND 100% R l2ak! AppBuilder Solutions Ltd 4
Appush Technologies Ltd
NPNONIV OMIPY :
100% NI F ly k Vidstart 5
omSpR (IT) y1n0 b (Formerly Iﬂxév)n as Vidstar
NPNINOV MY Appush Inc. (Shares held by
oopn (IT) y1n 100% NI Appush Technologies Ltd) 6
Aptonet, Inc. (shares held by
NPNINOV MDY ’ :
100% TPYMIN Coretech Consulting Group .7
o»nspn (IT) yn LLC)
Autonomy Al Technologies Inc
MOIN MNING 19.100% ONIY (shares held by Sanjer Al Ltd) .8
B.A Microwaves Ltd. (shares
NPNHNOV MDY %
67.96% SN held by C IT Embedded .9
o8P0 (IT) Y10 ° A I
5P NON BridgeQuest Labs, Inc. (shares
MM MNNI 100% T held by Bridgeduest, Inc.) 10
BridgeQuest, Inc. (shares held
1IN MNIND 100% ,m’;‘y”w;&mx by Magic Software Enterprises | .11
Inc.)
D’ll;’”; (T yoom 2 80.249% N Comblack IT Ltd 12
Comblack Municipal Services
NPNONIV OMIPY
70% INIW Ltd. (shares held by Comblack | .13
o»spn (IT) y1n IT Ltd)
CommlT AI Ltd (shares held by
NPNONIV OMIPY .
100% INIW Comm-IT Technology Solutions | .14
o»spn (IT) y1n Ltd.)
NPNINOV MDY CommlT Technology Solutions
ospn (T) y1n 76.07% W Ltd 15
Comm-IT Technology Canada
Dr:l;?j ;JS%ZS 1;_;33 100% nmnp Inc. (shares held by Comm-IT | .16
' Technology Solutions Ltd.)
Comm-IT Technology UK Ltd
Drll;?; 1;;%28 ‘;_;f)m 100% R l2ak! (shares held by Comm-IT 17
' Technology Solutions Ltd.)
CommlT Software Ltd (shares
Drll;?; 1;;%28 ‘;_;f)m 100% INIW held by Comm-IT Technology | .18
' Solutions Ltd.)
CommlIT Embedded Ltd (shares
Drll;?; 1;;%28 ‘;_;f)m 75% INIW held by Comm-IT Technology | .19
' Solutions Ltd.)
Comm-IT USA, Inc. (shares
13321;?3;32\()1:13; 1;;33 100% INNDT held by Comm-IT Technology | .20
' Solutions Ltd.)
MM MNINS 100% SN Complete Buﬁltréess Solutions | 5,
Coretech Consulting Group Inc
13321;?3 2;?1%;:3: 100% 25019 (shares held by Magic Software | .22
[ Enterprises Inc)
Coretech Consulting Group
Drll;?; ;JS%ZS‘Q_;S)& 100% INNDT LLC (shares held by Magic .23
' Software Enterprises Inc)
Dario Solutions IT Ltd (shares
Drll;),z ;JS%ZS ‘;‘,rr)n 100% N held by Comm-IT Technology | .24
‘ Solutions Ltd.)

99191 ,773NN T2 9Y 28% -3 NPININM TV I ON VIND OT 9y 100% Npinn nrann 19
5595 2.13.11 Y0 INT ,N72NN SV NPINT NI DY TWPI DNNIY TPN9IN D201 Pyy 20
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APIND MY

Moy 0NN 930N YY (%) MTIRND NN N9anH av
(Myv3a)
Datamind Technologies Ltd
2N MNIND 90.1% NI (shares held by Complete .25
Business Solutions Ltd)
MY Enable IT Consulting Services
YR NPNONOV 100% nmnp Canada Inc. (shares held by .26
o»Npn (IT) Enable IT LLC.)
RN Enable IT LLC. (shares held by
YR RPNV 100% INNDT Coretech Consulting Group .27
o»Nspn (IT) LLC)
Executive Life, Ltd (shares held
NPNINOV MDY ! >
omISpR (IT) y11 100% P M by Coretech Eﬁr(ljs)ultmg Group | .28
F.T.S. - Formula Telecom
MOIN MNING 100% ONIY Solutions Ltd .29
MPY Fusion Solutions LLC. (shares
YR RPNV 100% IMNMNDT held by Coretech Consulting .30
8PN (IT) Group LLC)
MPY Fusion Technical Solutions
YR APNONOV 49% IMNDT LLC. (shares held by Fusion .31
o»3pPn (IT) Solutions LLC)
YMIPY Futurewave Systems, Inc.
YR APNONOV 100% TININD (shares held by Fusion Solutions | .32
o»spn (IT) LLC)
The Goodkind Group LLC
Dﬁl;{ggg%%?;g"n 100% P M (shares held by Coretech .33
‘ Consulting Group LLC)
MY Goodkind Hospitality, LLC
YR NPNONOV 100% IMNIT (shares held by The Goodkind | .34
o»spn (IT) Group LLC)
PV Goodkind Services Group, LLC
YR NPNONOV 100% P M (shares held by Goodkind .35
o»spn (IT) Hospitality, LLC)
Hermes Logistics Technologies
M2 MNIN 100% R lo2ak! Limited (shares held by Magic | .36
Software Enterprises (UK) Ltd)
NNDNIV HMPY . . ..
orepn (IT) y1m 100% [aR>ibrak! Infinigy (UK) Holdings Limited | .37
Infinigy (US) Holding Inc
T oy, 100% XM (shares held by Infinigy (UK) | .38
' Holdings Limited)
Infinigy Engineering LLP
Drll;?; ;J g%z;; ‘;_;f)m 100% INN (shares held by Infinigy .39
' Solutions LLC.).
Infinigy Solutions LLC. (shares
NNV MDY ; :
ooyspn (IT) ¥y 100% YN held by Inﬁnll%l}é)(US) Holding | .40
Intrabases SAS (shares held by
321N MNINS 100% nany Magic Software Enterprises .41
France)
NPNINOV MY K.M.T. (M.H.) Technologies
o»NSPN (IT) y1n 60% NI Communication Computer Ltd, 42
Knowledge & Solutions
321N MNINS 100% ™M Software B.V. (shares held by | .43
Benelux B.V.)
Magic Beheer B.V. (shares held
91N MNIND 100% TN by Magic Software Enterprises | .44
Netherlands B.V.)
Magic Benelux B.V. (shares
MIIN MNIND 100% TN held by Magic Beheer B.V.) .45
Magic Hands B.V. (shares held
MIOIN MNIND 100% TN by Benelux B.V.) .46
Magic Software Enterprises
1IN MNIND 100% INIY (Israel) Ltd .47
MOIN MNIND 100% 702 Magic Software Enterprises .48

(UK) Ltd (shares held by Magic
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APIND MY

Moy 0NN 19300 YV (%) MTIRND NN N9anH av
(Myv3a)
Software Enterprises
Netherlands B.V.)
Magic Software Enterprises
MMM NI 100% noy Fransc(e) f(ts‘ggig%;etg;gsl;gaglc 49
Netherlands B.V.)
Magic Software Enterprises
MOIN MNING 100% 107 GM%EfE%ﬁ:%ﬁﬁéﬁpﬁgfsxaglc .50
Netherlands B.V.)
1IN MNIN 100% INNDT Magic Software Enterprises Inc. | .51
MIN MNIND 100% YN Magic ?ng;vg?t lint?rprlses .52
Magic Software Enterprises
MIN MNING 100% TN Netherlands B.V. .53
Magic Software Enterprises
Spain Ltd (shares held by Magic
MIN MNING 100% 1790 Software Enterprises .54
Netherlands B.V.)
132N MNINS 100% 19 Magic Software Japan K.K .55
MM MIIND 100% NPION oY Magix Imegraﬁ&n (Proprictary) | g,
MIN MNIND 100% ONIW Menarva Ltd. .57
Minereye Technologies Ltd
Dr:l;?; 1; ;\?IZS 1;_’[33 55% INIW (shares held by CommIT .58
‘ Technology Solutions Ltd)
MN MNIND 98.51% ONIW Mobisoft Ltd. .59
NetEffects, Inc. (shares held by
NPNONIV OMIPY ' :
oo (IT) ¥ 100% NN Coretech Cﬁris&lltlng Group .60
)
NNDNIV HMPY
o»NNpn (IT) y1n 100% NI9IP 9N OnTarget Group, Inc .61
NPNINOV MDY OnTarget Labs Inc (shares held
o»spn IT) yn 100% ”on by OnTarget Group, Inc) 62
NPNINOV MDY OnTarget Labs Latvia (shares
o»spn IT) yn 100% a0, held by OnTarget Group, Inc) 63
OnTarget Labs LLC Russia
NPNINIV HMPY
omSpR (IT) y110 100% oM (shares held byI I(12:1)1Target Group, | .64
NNV NPY Magic Quest Labs LLC (shares
o0»N8pnN (IT) y1n 100% MMM held by OnTarget Labs, Inc.) 65
Onyx Magyarorszag
Szsoftverhaz (shares held by
99N NN 100% NN Magic Software Enterprises .66
Netherlands B.V.)
701N MNIND 100% MV M) Pilat (North America), Inc. .67
)91 MNIND 100% VM2 Pilat Europe Ltd. .68
PowWow Inc. (shares held by
19210 MNINY 100% PINDOP Magic Software Enterprises .69
Inc.)
NPNONOV MY Quickode Ltd (shares held by
o8P (IT) y1n 100% NI CommlIT Software Ltd.) 70
72N MNIN 80.05% SN Roshtov Software Industries Ltd | .71
NPNINOV MDY Sanjer Al Ltd. (shares held by
o»NNpn (IT) y1n 28% W CommlT Software Ltd.) 72
NPNINIV OOMIPY Shavit Software (2009) Ltd.
o»spn (IT) y1n 100% JNW (shares held by Comblack Ltd) 73
Skysoft Solutions Ltd. (shares
NNV NYPY
oryspn (IT) ¥y 75% SN held by Corrlldr&l')f Embedded .74
Stockell Information Systems
DT:;}:; ;’g‘(’lg ‘;‘;‘f)n 100% NN Inc )shares held by Coretech .75
‘ Consulting Group LLC)
Theoris, Inc (shares held by
PN NYPY 100% MINOTON Coretech Consulting Group .76

orwnspn (IT) yn

LLC
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NPIND NYVY
MYy DINN 19300 YV (%) MTINDD NN n5anh av
(Myv3a)
Twingo Ltd (shares held by
NNV MDY :
oo (IT) ¥ 60% NI Comm-IT Tecilglo)logy Solutions | .77
Valinor Ltd. (shares held by
NNV MDY .
oo (IT) ¥ 100% NI Comm-IT Tecilglo)logy Solutions | .78
Xsell Resources Inc. (shares
0311;?3;3 g\(’l%‘ 1;;:”;3 100% 1909 held by Coretech .79
‘ Consulting Group LLC)
172NN Y A81 YY 1IN \PNVPIT AN PYyD .29

MWD NIANN DY DMI0ON MMNMTY DN NIIND YPNVPIT 120N NI PP
30.6.2025 D2 MPNONY DVTIN DWW NVDWYYY 31.12.2024 D2 NNPNONVY
70y MOIPN-1 1BV MMTN)

NY3NN YPOY 81T NIIND IPNVPIT 929N N

NN YNNI PIND 19 OX KON, 277N 99172 D11 MY PYD D»90ON DINNIN




900N AXNN

(270X ADYT X9DNI) DN WNY DMIPIYN DMIPYD DM120NN DMIDIN NMINITD OXNNA Y9DIN 2NN DY NYTN dDYO NN PND

1

9319873 31 O»Y 93992 30 DY
(*) PNVP9*11 9390 L0
2023 [ 2024 2025
090V 0093
105,943 112,779 89,957 DNYITN ONYY DI
T I I T S s 51 s ooy Toors 256,65 o |—— 758 o1 : D3P Y N7
' ! ’ ' ' 108,385 123,133 133,039 YOI, MMPY
91 67 5Y DT NP INT PN 8.7°3 HY TOI MMPIN MNP YT IPO¥ ¥an 9110 22,713 16,683 19,900 931p% MYIdN
702 DIMIN NI ONINIINA MOYN ,NIINN MMV HYTHIN NN NAPWNN ,(92PY MDIINL 19T 18,833 23,553 22,856 121N NN DXA1N
91T P 4.7-5 HY TO2 DINK DXNA MY 191,991 )P 6.8 Hw
3.8% -5 YW DT AT )PP 265.8 -5 DY 2025 12 30 DA THY DIVVIVN DXDN TO
.2024 920%72 31 DY IT DM 276.2 -5 INNWNA 256,625 276,199 265,752 09IV 02093 971D
S5 9170 DV, RN .OMINITHD NI DININNL ADIT 1D 22.87 HYW NVIPN APYA NY DTN
.92PY MDION AT YD 3.270 HY 1IN NIMPON MM AT 1PN 9.95
(799 NHLY DY) DIOVIV DINY DIDI)
6,729 4,895 5,735 DXNTY DON
0.6% YW N IOV YD 264.1°5 Yy 2024 920872 31 DY THY DIOVIV XIN DON TO 25,718 24,707 25,490 VIDY 11191 205)
.2023 920572 31 DY IVT YOO 265.8D NNV
8,623 9,261 10,179 TVIX NMIVY DINK DYIN
SV IMYNIT NN APV 9T )PDIN 6.5 S JOA PUYINNI DMLY DOV MIPOY 1PND 7,988 7,467 8,303 10) 313P VI
MNNIN TPV YV ,0PUYMN YN DIDII ADIT 1PYIN 5.3 5Y NVIPY,IWITIV M2 MIan 50,658 45,287 44,042 YOI ,0»WNIN SNY1 DD
T T D T O o Tomn ooy soss mcenm oy | 166068 | 172515 | 162,151 PO
AENPIN 77 ! ' 265,781 266,132 275,900 D901V DNV 0D 571D
4.5% S 1YY ,A9T WD 275.9-3 DY 2025 12 30 DY THY DIOVIV NI DION U
.2024 720N72 31 DY IVT OO 264.1D NNNIWNA
522,406 540,331 541,652 [=24v ) R-Kal )
APY WY SVWIANND IRNIND IPOYA L POIIN ANT PO 9.6 -1 DY OYN YN DYTIN IPOY
A9V 9IN HPpwin mMpnnn
MAVIY MNIINNN
28,941 23,187 28,531 D»NPII DX TINRNN INIUN
20.2% 5w 1YY 9917 11D 170.37 DY 2024 9210872 31 DA THY MAVIVN NMIAMHNNN TO 28,415 28,753 25,358 DTV M5 0PI MR
: DYIPOYN DMMPWN PPNY 2023 920XT2 31 DY AT )PYIN 141,75 NNWNI
- 11,587 SV NN YIS OHYY TITT
DY IVTYPYIN 11.6 -5 HYW TOA NIANN DY NN IOYIT TIPIT RPN P2 MAdNND - e - 21NN
.2025 Tonna 09w 2024 920871 31
MY MY DY) 2PY 1PV, MOT MINN D’N;[’c;l WVTYPIIN 16.7 -5 5W DY) 41,492 58,209 55,973 T MDY N
- 7 - [
' ot ) 4,406 4,818 4,537 132 NMAPANN S¥ MAVIY NN

WOV NN MNAN HY INYNID TINNN 19Y N¥apn bw [T

0N
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9319873 31 O»Y 93992 30 DYY
(*) 199999p9210 Y9201 Py
2023 2024 2025

ARNIND IT-N HO>MPY 02 APOY2 AT P10 7.4 DY 702 URIND MDD I»Yy e 18,252 20,066 22,846 9¥25 150 NPXAIN 1)1 MI»NNN

MYV TN NV NNPN IPRY NN

L1217 191 5.7°3 YW TO2 DODINS MTOINN INIYND 29PN NP NHPYN VP e 6,656 2,654 4,249 DXPDY XX 1)1 MI»NNN

TDA DYPOY Y91PY PIA NMNANNNN TN IKP PITD MXNON DY )W 12792 yan 13,537 21,031 23,802 YRIN MDION

D100 DVVYNN NIRNIND VT 1120 4.0 OV

2.9% YS¢ NT AT DM 165.3 -5 DY 2025 %P 30 DY THY MOVIVAD MNPNNNN TO
.2024 720372 31 DY IOYT PO 170.3 -5 NNV
11,6/ 9 TD2 NI1ANN W NINN XYY TITDT NPIZNY MIAONNNA POIPI POV DY DTN

Y15 9y TPPON MNP NPPN, TN .TIYA YW NNYRIN TSN 79NN NNDIY AWK AT 19910 141,699 170,305 165,296 Mavv II»NRNn 79
2V, MNXNDN NDOVIN NINNIND POV OMNPIA DI TINNND INIYNL AT PO 5.3 DY D1 1)
917 121 ,NVOOY NNIPN IPRY NPIN OHYID 150 NPNNN )2 NMPNNNA TP 2.85Hv
AT PN 1.6 5V 91T DY), G0N . MNPIHN MNTPY MNTI MDIONA TP 2.855v
2024 920872 31 O 1) TIIX I NNDN IRNINI IXP YITY OIPOY 2PN I NMINNNA
.2025 12 30 DY 1I) INP YD

(TN ANLY MM HNNDY) MAVIV 1IINY MNAIHNN

52,267 36,107 41,573 DYNPIL DY THIRDND MIRNDN

YW T AT YD 69.0 -5 DY 2024 92087 31 OPA THY TIR ANLY NMIAPNNNN TO 23,101 22,040 23,326 P90 A TMIPNNN
.2023 920872 31 OP2IOYT OO 89.8D NNNWNA 23.2%

1,049 1,781 - DOPOY Y91X PI2 NMAMNNN

16.2°3 5% NP7 19>230 TWR ,DPRPIT DI PINND INPIY MNNIN NYION DY) ATPVPN Py 11,610 7,848 7,847 ©NTI BON

SN IO MNNTNN MNP AT PN 620 - - Y925 7910 NPININ PIA MAPNNN

NVYYY NNPN IPOIRY NN

7.5% SW oY 0T YD) 74.17 DY 2025 0312 30 OV THY IR NNVY AMPNNNN TO 1,116 1,181 1,313 DT MI0M Pa1 IMIPNNA
.2024 920572 31 0P IOVT PO 68.9D NNNWNA

ToNNA DPNPI DI PINNND MXNYN NSO IPOYA MY ,2024 720NTA 31 OPY DN YN 89,763 68,957 74,059 MIVIV IPRY MNIPNNNN T
.NPNN

193NN HY Br9¥a5 DN MI8Y 1D

1,166 1,166 1,166 NI NN

T T e Tooa o Gy o vy | 18807 || 180,336 | 169,722 ARV

NPT 17 ' =l (10,314) (12,114) (3,194) NN AN X2 P IR

N9PNY YPIN NNINN IPAYA DY 2025 112 30 OPY 2024 130T 31 DY NN NI POYN 92,522 107,802 111,143 M

DVPA NRN HDI1DN NNIN DY NYAYN TUR L NNPAN ToNN ITN DI DPYn MpPINNNm) 265,981 277,190 278,837 5S¢ NN 5¥aY DNYHPN PN I7ND

.N1¥12P2 HY NN MIINND NNND VIIN TV NPIN NYITN NAPNN THNN ININNY DITITDT n72NN

24,963 23,879 23,460 NVYY NNPN IPRY NP

290,944 301,069 302,297 "N 57ho

522,406 540,331 541,652 199 7M1 NHNN 7O
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YIMNY MI2N DY DOONN OIIM MNXNNN 29 DY P TONIA DNHDNNM NIANN DY D1IDIN NINITI MYV 29D INNYNN NMMPNY DXONMNN YD NIV YPNVPITN 120N (*)
JPPTONIN DY DY YD) 2PN HY Ty M) 3T Mo MY (Foreign Private Issuer) 7099 93 79315 MiNON WX P TONI 1) H7Y2 IR-INA TIY MY 1D 10 MIND)
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MWD MNNIN

: (271N 99T 295NI) DMADON MNYTY DNNNA JN2IZNY DMV NIANN DY MDY MINXIN NN PR

2

NVPITN 59200 | 31 B2 IANHVNY MYY | HVIIY SV navnd nYY Sy NPNY Pyo
Y3813 MNINVIY DIYNNN | MPHDIY DIUNHNN
931°3 30 01’2 3992 30 ©Y%a
2023 2024 2024 2025 2024 2025
W93 299.07521 MONDM 12.0%53 17T 2025 MY DY NHYRIN NI¥NNI MDIINN 32,694 38,166 9,238 12,122 18,360 | 23,325 | mnon  MoION
.2024 MV NYIAPNN NNPNA IOVT VM 267.070 N AT o
[

21T 120 151,671 1ONOM 11.3%722 1573 2025 MY 5¥ MWN 11272 MDIONN
.2024 TV HY WM YT INT PN 136.37 Noyd
OYN IPOYI ¥aN ,2025 MY DY NNWYNRIN P¥NNI) MWD YA MDIOND 1IN
NN HONMPYN MODN
TINNNA AT PO 257.7752 1DONOM 11.4%7521 1NNY VR OXIMIVH MODIONN
.2024 ™V NPAPNN NNPNA T 11D 231,375 NMIYY ,2025 NIV DY MIWRIN

,I9YT 39991 130,372 \)1y»N dXMIPYN MDIONN NOINDN 2025 NIV DY MHWN )¥a72 33,999 34,774 8,002 9,184 17,263 | 17,957 | npnnnn  mModN

. o

.2024 TV 5¥ MWN 1IY272 INT 11N 119.005 NNNWNA 9.5% D Sv MDY T390 19T

NN OIMPY MDPYAD MINN ITHN TP YN IYHON OMPYN MOIINI D1TIN 468,359 479,580 119,010 130,336 231,347 257,696 YNYPYN MOION

MINSIN HY MIYRID TINORN 12,1120 MSINI MNYNN MDY2 1T ORIV Ny

MMIPNOTIYIWIVY MNIND 30 0er ™ 555 520 | 136,250 | 151,642 | 266,970 | 298,978 MmN 5710

SV TPNMN NMNNND AP YIANND ,MNNT MNIND MOIINA 21T DY 9002
maonn

=99 INNWNA 3.3%-5 W MDY 91T YD 552.5-51 1195NDN 2024 MY MDIONN
.2023 MY TP 535.1

2.4% -2 9¥ MYy ,2024 NIV I9VT P 479.6 -2 10ONDN NIV YMIVN MDIdIN
.2023 WA YT DI 468.4 -5 NYO

$ 0 9P NYA) ,TODNN NNMN NI T NNPNN

-»NN ,DYDION NN VI9IY , 09 HNIYI DIDNP MMPY T8N 7N vipea .1
- ;113NN YY DONSPHRN DMPYY )NV PO

K.M.T. Software Integration Ltd. ("KMT”), n2n n92n NIRYIN DY XoN TINON .2
192N1 YY MYDI5N MODIDNT 91T I 2.8-5 NNIN TWN,2023 %12 8 DI NYINY
.2024 myva
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WNOPTN 929N

31 02 NN1HNUNY MIvY

nVIYY YV Noypnb

nYY Hv NNy

Py

qans1a MNNVNY DXYNNN | MIPNUNY DIUNNN
93132 30 ©Y2 9312 30 0Y2
2023 2024 2024 2025 2024 2025

DOXMPYN MDIDNT AT P 26.8-5 YW NP YT DY NPYNI MHP N NN
Y NP DYHN NMIPON DY INVONNN Py DY) TWUR ,NPINR NINI OONNPN
MNNIIY DINYP DPNRY DI DXPIY TINNDY NNTPI NYTIN KDY, MYWno nHann
MY DY OOV NYIINN SNN MDY YNIANN VPNHIONN DOPMYHNYN DXPON 13NN
.2023
-2 DMWY 16.7% -2 5V MY 1917 11D 38.2 -52 1NONDN MHIDIN MNINN MDIdN
22023 MV IOVT YN0 32.7
SYOLY TN DY DN MDIND MNINAD YIPIID 1IN P2y NYN N1HYN

11,730 10,903 2,359 2,513 | 5231 5,362 moNN MY

121N MNINN

3,238 3,235 802 887 1,652 1,727 moNN Moy

MM NPRNNND

oL

367,097 380,555 94,246 105,868 | 184,545 | 208,884 moNN MY

N I MPYN

0y ,9017 1121 216.0752 MDIINN MY NNONON 2025 NIV DY INYRIN TPNNN | 382,065 394,693 97,407 109,268 | 191,428 215,973 | mvIann mby 57no

.2024 7V N2MAPNN NPN VT 1PN 191.4755 NNNVYNA 12.8%D DY

-5V MY 29T 11D 109.3752 MDIDNN MY NNONDN 2025 MY DY »WN Y112
.2024 THY DY MW 1WA DTN 97.4D nD 12.2%

11973 208.9752 NNINONY,NIWHOT IMPYN MDIDNN MY NMHYN Y21 HYTHN I
S5Y MIVYNIN NOXNN AT YPDM 184.57 NmiyY 2025 HW NNYRIN NdP8NNA 9T
Y22 AT YD 94.275 NMYY 2025 SV MWD YT AT PPN 105.9-511,2024

.NNNNA,12.3%7 13.2% S5v oy 97apnn

MNYNN MY MANINNNT IRV IO MY DTN IOV Nyan nMoyn
9N MNPNA NIYHN YMPYN MIDIDNA N1HYN NN NHNIN XX ,1NPI12N NININA

D MY ,A0YT YD 394.7-52 NNONOM 3.3%D2 2024 NIV NYTY MDIdDNN MDY
SY MYHI10N MDIONA NMNRNN NN ONIN N THN .2023 MY AT P20 382.1
.17aNn

380.6/92 NNONODNY ,NIYHON XMPYWN MDIONN MY D¥yTIN Ny IMOYN 1Py
1YY .3.7% D 5w N5y ;2023 MV IDVT PN 367.1°5 NNYY 2024 NIV INTIPIN
NI YMPWHN MDIDNA DAPNN DITIN NN NIPYN N
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WNOPTN 929N

31 02 NN1HNUNY MIvY
92871

nVIYY YV Noypnb
MNNVNY DIYNNN
93132 30 ©Y2

nYY Hv NNy
MNPNVNY DXVNNN
9392 30 oy’a

2023 2024

2024 2025

2024 2025

Py

95 NNV ,27.8%52 751N NN NYY DONDN 2025 MY DY NHYRIN MINNNI
NNIN NYY DONDN 2025 MY W MYN Y192 .2024 MV ND¥aPNN NMPN1 28.3%
.2024 TV YW MWN W92 28.5% D NMYY ,27.9% 52 Y000

.2024-1 2023 ©2W1 28.6% Y DX 1IN IR NNIN MWV

152,987 157,827

38,843 42,374

75,542 83,005

N NNA

,2024 TNV ADYT 11D 16.0-2 195N0N (NMM2Y N1 293) MNP IPNNT NINKIN
OY NN IPNNT MINXIN .2023 MW IOYT DM 13.5-5 NMIYY 18%- DY N»dY
9YT Y991 10.3-5 NMIYY 29%-2 DY oY ,2024 MHIWA A9YT 11N 13.3-52 105100
3.2-5 NNIYY ,MSIN MM NMYYN YT P2 2.7-5 MM 2024 Mmva 2023 Miva

.2023 MV INT VN

MMYPN MY IMOYI 91N APV 1Y MO IPNNT MINSINT NOYN
SV DMININN YN NN WD DNINY INIVNY Magic xpi, N1IINN NNNOVHAD
N2N NI2N2 PPV ,DXTIVN 9OWA IMLY SV NINDN THMIY NYaVNN 12 ,NNaNN

.Appush Ltd.

2024 mw31 (2.5%) 3.0% N NMDIDNNND TINND (1VI) VI MMM IPNND NMINIIN
.2023 Mwa (1.9%) 2.5% nmyo

399) MINAM APNNT MIRXIN ,MIYN NNIN NOWNI 2025 MV HY NHYNIN NP¥NNI
N2Y2PNN NNPNA AT YD 7.1-2 AMIYT ,A5YT )P 7.7-52 1ON0N (NMYY PPN
A9YT YYD 5.6-0 NN AT DI 6.7-D1 1IONDN VI MNNNN 2024 NIva
PO A7) MNRXINN MONDN 2025 MV YW MNVYN 1YII2 TPNYR ND¥IARPNHN NNPNI
93T 119 3.4-52)10) MININM AT PPN 3.6-D NNIYY AT DM 3.9-52(NMdY

STPAWR 92PNN 1Y 9T )PDIN 2.8-5 NyYY

NNIYY ,NIDIN MM NMYYN I0VT 1P 1.0-5 NN 2025 NIV DY NNYRIN MINNNI
0.5-5 NN 2025 MWD »WN Y22 .2024 MV NYXIAPNN NNPNL INT )P0 1.5-5
.2024 W1 9>2PNN IV 1T PP 0.7-5 NNIYY 99T PN

10,328 13,310

2,847 3,425

5,640 6,672

PN NN
10 ,MIPN

WD 23.2751 PIPYM NINN MINXIN INONDN 2025 MY DY NHYNIN NINNNI
.2024 MV N2APNN NNPNA AT PN 20.599 INNIWNA 12.8% D v MY AT
L9007 YD 12,4752 PV NONN MIRXIN 1ONDN 2025 MY HY »Nvn a1l

.2024 TV YW MNVN 11292 9917 1190 10.7°5 NNIYY 15.9%D Hv n»by

M¥9a 517N NRIIND DIDINI MINY 19V MINKINT MOV IPYA YN NN
SNIYI YN MDOYD NI TN INNIND APV ,MIINN 29PN MIANINM NPPOYN
LA7TINR2 MNYNT MY

P91 42.1-5 2023 MV AT VDN 44.5-1D 5.4%-1 YTV PIPWN NINN NINSIN
2023 MW1 8.3%-1 YT MDIDNNND HINKI PIPYM NN NINYIN .2024 NIWA 9T
.2024 V1 7.6%-D

44,500 42,100

10,678 12,376

20,547 23,168

1790 MIRSN
ZAl))
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WNOPTN 929N

31 02 NN1HNUNY MIvY
92871

nVIYY YV Noypnb
MNNVNY DIYNNN
93132 30 ©Y2

nYY Hv NNy
MNPNVNY DXVNNN
9392 30 oy’a

2023 2024

2024 2025

2024 2025

Py

NO%a NN YY IT-n >Ny MYyan MoIIN2 N (1) 1D AP YD NN
NODIN (i1)-) ; DN MYNY ,70W MXXIN NPAPN NTPY D>INY NN ,NPPINN
.9YNA NIIND MDY HY MINN ITHINA NMZYA

,2025 SV MYNIN TPNNNA IOVT P2 21.8752 MIONON NPOIIY NOMN MINNIN
.11.9%- 5 5w 1YY ,2024 MV N2’2APNN NAPNA DT VI 19.575 Nyo

MNYNN MW 1T ,IWINIY MIIN S INIYRID TINRND 9P Y1) DY TIN
.DYPADN MIND NYINN DYTHN 91 ,27NINI

10.2 -9 ANNYN2 99T 190 10.9752 MINHINN 1WONDN 2025 DYV MHYN wana
DY IPOYA YAV ,7.6% D DY 1YY 2024 MIvA Dapnn YA 9T DN
INRIYI NN HOIMPY MY

40.8 -95 NNV ,I9VT YYD 42 -1 2024 MV NONDN NP NYTIN NINSIN
DINND NPHHIY NOMIN MININ .2.9% -D DY NN MDY -2023 MV AT PN
.2024 W1 7.6% 2023 1MW 7.7%1 YT MOUIdNIN

40,811 42,009

10,157 10,929

19,462 21,778

19NN MM
n»vHy)

240 (829)

121 -

427 -

MY NPY
NNIMN MAPNNN
Mmoo NNYPN

57,108 61,237

15,040 15,644

29,466 31,387

nNI) MIIYaN NN
(9yan

NNNWNA 39T PO 6.2-2 DY TOA ,I10) , )10 NMIRXIN NIIND NNYI 2024 Mva
.2023 MV ANT PN 4.6-05

SY MNNONM DNNRHD MIN DN LD 190010 NMIYOVID PNINN NIRNIN
SV PAYONN YW DMPY ,DXPOY 97NN NIYINN MNDINNNA DMPY ,NI1IND
VNN DI AT SV 9T 9 Hpwin

AT PO 2.5-3 HY AN APV DY 2024 TIWA PNDOINRN MIRNINA YYD
TOPON MNP IR, MINK NPDIPS MDIIM WY OWI9N ,NINTPI9N N> MDIONA
NPDINY NINSINDY WY OWINNA D232 MPNY I9VT YPYM 0.9-5 DY NP > DY

NN

9T DN 1.8-52 2025 NIV HY NNIYRIN NPNN 1DONDN IV )10 MIRNIN
-9) 99V 1P 1.1-5 DY N — TPNVYN NDPAPNN NMPNA INT P 2.9-5 Noo
(38%

1.2-5 N9 ,A9YT 119 0.7-52 NDIN MINXNIN 1IONDN 2025 Y HW M vl
[(41%-2) 95Y7 YY1 0.5-2 YW NP — TPNWR DAPNN YN T DN

(9,227) (9,103)

(3,730) | (5,622)

(5,729) (9,671)

20 MINNIN

4,901 3,163

2,547 4,931

3,016 7,982

220 MOION

(290) (302)

(52) (34)

(166) (101)

MY MY
NIMN MPNNN
mYoIY NNYPN
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WNOPTN 929N

31 092 NNINOVNY NIYY

nVIYY YV Noypnb

nYY Hv NNy

Py

qans1a MNNVNY DXYNNN | MIPNUNY DIUNNN
93192 30 0Y°2 9312 30 0Y2
2023 2024 2024 2025 2024 2025

NNNANH IPOYA NYAI TPNYN MDIAPHT MMPNY DN NHN NMIRXINA DTN
.MYN 9NN NIANN DY YINNN YDIIN INN 97712 NOVNNN

(56) (376) (85) (166) (149) (292) »TDANA NIANN PON

95 INNTN NIAN

MINNN ONVN NV

52,436 54,619 13,720 14,753 26,438 29,305 9y 001 195 NN

n9AN

9.9-55 NNNWNA,2024 MW 19T 11210 11.3-5 D 702 DXON MIRXIN NNRYA NI1ANN 9,934 11,328 3,040 3,324 5,769 6,236 NN DY OO
.2023 MV INT VN
.MIYN TONN NI2NN DY NA»NN NDIINA DITINND TPV NY) DHN NIRNIND NMHYN
.2023 7MW 18.9%-5 NMYD ,2024 MV 20.7%-2 DY THY YDVPONN DNN NYY
MIRXIN DY NNIYI MIVN DY AWM 1I¥192) 2025 NIV DY NNHYRIN NIINND TONN2
95 NN 2YTHN NN NNNIN N MDY .2024 NHIYI MDPAPNRN MNPNY NXNVYNA OHN
9N MNPN1A N

42,502 43,291 10,680 11,429 20,669 23,069 "3 NMNA

37,031 36,883 9,033 9,918 17,830 19,396 | ©yad NN OINM

192NN Hv

5,471 6,408 1,647 1,511 2,839 3,673 VNN PIN

42,502 43,291 10,680 11,429 20,669 23,069 Yo¥ab oN1NRN NI

193NN HY MInn
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m»y .3

: (271N 91T 299NI) 2NN YW D»HDON NMINYTH DNNNA N2 DAY DMPWYN NIINN YW MDD MNMN onY

NOVPTN 29397

ININVIY MY
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W91 30.8 TOA DITITT MNOWN HWA POy 2023 H2IXT 31-1 NP1NONY
99T PO 4.1 TOA NVDY MIPN YPORY NN OPHYI0 MWW DITIPDT ,IOVT
YT DY NP AWN 0T PN 21 HY O TN NP NNVY MIRNDD RN
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Magic Software Enterprises Ltd.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Magic Software Enterprises Ltd. (the “Company”) as of December 31,
2024, the related consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flow for the year ended December 31, 2024, and
the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2024, and the results of its operations and its cash flow for the year ended December
31, 2024, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated May 14, 2025 expressed an adverse opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audit also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was
communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated
financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of the critical audit matter does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below,
providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Revenue recognition

As described in Note 2.7 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company generates revenues from some long-term fixed-price contracts that
involve significant implementation, customization, or integration to customer-specific requirements is recognized over time. The underlying deliverable is
owned and controlled by the customer or, does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company, and the Company has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed throughout the duration of the contract. Revenue is recognized using the percentage of completion method, based on an
input-based measure of progress that compares actual costs incurred to total estimated contract costs.

Auditing the recognition of the Company’s long-term contracts revenue was especially subjective and complex due to the significant estimation required
by management to determine the total estimated costs for those contracts, particularly the projected labor costs to complete a contract. Determining the
projected labor costs requires understanding the contract specific circumstances, including the specific terms and conditions of each contract, changes to the
contract schedule, and complexity of the contract. Changes in the estimate of projected labor costs can have a material effect on the timing of revenue
recognition.

The primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter included 1) performing a retrospective review of management’s estimates of
total expected contract costs by comparing the original estimates to the actual costs incurred for a sample of contracts that commenced in prior periods and
were completed in the current period and 2) testing revenue recognition for a sample of contracts that are in progress and are expected to be completed in
subsequent periods including reviewing agreements and cross-referencing internal and external documentation.

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2024
/s/ Ziv Haft

Ziv Haft

Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)

BDO Member Firm

Tel Aviv, Israel
May 14, 2025
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Magic Software Enterprises Ltd.

Opinion on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited Magic Software Enterprises Ltd.’s (the “Company’s”) internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2024, based on
criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(the “COSO criteria”). In our opinion, the Company did not maintain, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2024, based on the COSO criteria.

As indicated in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management’s assessment of and conclusion on
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of the business of Theoris Group Inc. which is included in the
2024 consolidated financial statements of the Company and constituted 1.1% and 1.0% of the total and net assets, respectively, as of December 31, 2024 and
3.3% and 3.8% of revenues and net income, respectively, for the year then ended. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of the Company also
did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of the Theoris Group Inc.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB), the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024, the related consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). and
our report dated May 14, 2025 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Item 15, Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm
registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable
rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.
Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.
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The Company has not retained complete documentation supporting the execution of certain internal controls within the revenue cycle relating to staffing
services provided by its U.S.-based entities—was not comprehensively retained. This primarily pertains to business process controls and procedures intended
to support the completeness and accuracy of Information Produced by the Entity (IPE). As a result, management was limited in its ability to fully evidence the
performance of these controls as part of its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting (ICFR).

This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2024 consolidated financial
statements, and this report does not affect our report dated May 14, 2025 on those consolidated financial statements.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ Ziv Haft

Ziv Haft

Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
BDO Member Firm

Tel Aviv, Israel
May 14, 2025
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Kost Forer Gabbay & Kasierer Tel: +972-3-6232525
144 Menachem Begin St. Fax: +972-3-5622555

EY Tel-Aviv 6492102, Israel ey.com

Shape the future
with confidence

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Magic Software Enterprises Ltd.
Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of Magic Software Enterprises Ltd. (the Company) as of December
31, 2023, the related consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows and for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, based on our audits
and the report of other auditors, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at
December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2023, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

We did not audit the financial statements of Magic Software Japan K.K., a wholly-owned subsidiary, which reflect total assets constituting 1% at
December 31, 2023, and total revenues constituting 2% and 2% for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2023, respectively, of the related consolidated
totals. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
Magic Software Japan K.K., is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

/s/ KOST FORER GABBAY & KASIERER
A Member of EY Global

We have served as the Company’s auditor from 1984 to 2024.

Tel-Aviv, Israel
May 13, 2024
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
U.S. dollars in thousands

December 31,

Note 2023 2024

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents 4 $ 105,943 § 112,779

Short-term bank deposits 751 51

Trade receivables (net of allowance for credit losses of $7,066 and $7,906 as of December 31, 2023 and

2024, respectively) 20 108,385 123,133

Unbilled receivables and contract assets 20 22,713 16,683

Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 5 18,833 23,553
Total current assets 256,625 276,199
LONG-TERM ASSETS:

Deferred tax assets 19 6,729 4,895

Right-of-use assets 14 25,718 24,707

Other long-term receivables 8,623 9,261

Property and equipment, net 7 7,988 7,467

Intangible assets, net 8 50,658 45,287

Goodwill 9 166,065 172,515
Total long-term assets 265,781 264,132
Total assets $ 522,406 $ 540,331

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont.)
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

December 31,

Note 2023 2024
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term debts 10 $ 28,941 $ 23,187
Trade payables 28,415 28,753
Dividend payable to Magic Software shareholders - 11,587
Accrued expenses and other accounts payable 11 41,492 58,209
Current maturities of lease liabilities 14 4,406 4,818
Put options for non-controlling interests 6 18,252 20,066
Liability in respect of business combinations 6 6,656 2,654
Deferred revenues and customer advances 13,537 21,031
Total current liabilities 141,699 170,305
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debts 12 52,267 36,107
Long-term lease liabilities 14 23,101 22,040
Liability in respect of business combinations 6 1,049 1,781
Deferred tax liabilities 19 11,610 7,848
Put options for non-controlling interests 6 620 -
Employee benefit liabilities 16 1,116 1,181
Total long-term liabilities 89,763 68,957
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 17
EQUITY 18
Magic Software Enterprises Ltd shareholders’ equity:
Share capital:
Ordinary shares of NIS 1 par value - Authorized: 50,000,000 shares at, December 31, 2023 and 2024;

Issued and Outstanding: 49,099,305 shares as of December 31, 2023 and 2024 1,166 1,166
Additional paid-in capital 182,607 180,336
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (10,314) (12,114)
Retained earnings 92,522 107,802

Total equity attributable to Magic Software Enterprises Ltd shareholders 265,981 277,190
Non-controlling interests 24,963 23,879
Total equity 290,944 301,069
Total liabilities and equity $ 522,406 $ 540,331

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

Year ended December 31,

Note 2022 2023 2024

Revenues:
Software solutions 20 $ 32,930 $ 32,694 $ 38,166
Maintenance and technical support 20 34,762 33,999 34,774
Consulting services 20 499,100 468,359 479,580
Total revenues 566,792 535,052 552,520
Cost of revenues:
Software solutions 10,701 11,730 10,903
Maintenance and technical support 3,494 3,238 3,235
Consulting services 397,242 367,097 380,555
Total cost of revenues 411,437 382,065 394,693
Gross profit 155,355 152,987 157,827
Research and development expenses, net 2la 10,090 10,328 13,310
Selling and marketing expenses 21b 46,857 44,500 42,100
General and administrative expenses 21c 37,552 40,811 42,009
Change in valuation of contingent consideration related to acquisitions 6 (906) 240 (829)
Operating income 61,762 57,108 61,237
Financial expenses 21d (4,993) (9,227) (9,103)
Financial income 21d 1,392 4901 3,163
Increase in valuation of contingent consideration related to acquisitions 6 (744) (290) (302)
Company’s share of losses of a company accounted for at equity, net - (56) (376)
Income before taxes on income 57,417 52,436 54,619
Taxes on income 19 11,138 9,934 11,328
Net income $ 46,279 $ 42,502 $ 43,291
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 40,470 37,031 36,883
Non-controlling interests 5,809 5,471 6,408

$ 46,279 $ 42,502 $ 43,291
Net earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the Company
Basic and diluted earnings per share 2le $ 082 $ 075 $ 0.75

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

U.S. dollars in thousands

Net income

Other comprehensive loss net of tax effect:
Amounts that will be or that have been reclassified to profit or loss when specific conditions are met:

Foreign exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
46279 $ 42502 $ 43,291
(19,099) (4,429) (1,923)
(19,099) (4,429) (1,923)
27,180 38,073 41,368
24,647 33,276 35,083
2,533 4,797 6,285
27,180 $ 38,073 $ 41,368




MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

Accumulated
Additional other Non-
Share Capital paid-in Retained  Comprehensive controlling Total
Number Amount capital earnings Income interests Equity
Balance as of January 1, 2022 49,073,055 $ 1,165 $ 184,047 § 70,660 $ 9,264 $ 10,420 $§ 275,556
Net income - - - 40,470 - 5,809 46,279
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (15,823) (3,276) (19,099)
Total comprehensive income - - - 40,470 (15,823) 2,533 27,180
Exercise of options 20,000 1 - - - - 1
Dividend to Magic’s shareholders - - - (24,841) - - (24,841)
Dividend to non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries - - - - - (4,170) (4,170)
Cost of share-based payment - - (56) - - 2,135 2,079
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - (721) - - (133) (854)
Settlement of put options over non-controlling
interest = = (1,239) - - 2,599 1,360
Balance as of December 31, 2022 49,093,055 $ 1,166 $ 182,031 $ 86,289 $ (6,559) $ 13,384 § 276,311

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont.)

MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

Balance as of January 1, 2023

Net income
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Exercise of options

Dividend to Magic’s shareholders

Dividend to non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries

Cost of share-based payment

Non-controlling interests arising from initially
consolidated companies

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Settlement of put options over non-controlling
interest

Balance as of December 31, 2023

Accumulated
Additional Other Non-

Share Capital paid-in Retained  Comprehensive controlling Total
Number Amount capital earnings ~ _Income (loss) interests Equity
49,093,055 $ 1,166 $ 182,031 $ 86,289 (6,559) $ 13,384 § 276,311

- - - 37,031 - 5,471 42,502
B - - - (3,755) (674) (4,429)
- - - 37,031 (3,755) 4,797 38,073
6,250 - 22 - - - 22
- - - (30,798) - - (30,798)
- - - - - (4,055) (4,055)
- - (225) - - 4,023 3,798
- - - - - 3,644 3,644
- - (67) - - (3,199) (3,266)
- - 846 - - 6,369 7,215
49,099,305 § 1,166 § 182,607 $ 92,522 (10,314) $ 24,963 $ 290,944

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont.)

MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

Balance as of January 1, 2024

Net income
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income

Dividend to Magic’s shareholders

Dividend to non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries

Cost of share-based payment

Non-controlling interests arising from initially
consolidated companies

Initial recognition of non-controlling interests

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

Settlement of put options over non-controlling
interest

Balance as of December 31, 2024

Accumulated
Additional Other Non-

Share Capital paid-in Retained  Comprehensive controlling Total
Number Amount capital earnings ~ _Income (loss) interests Equity
49,099,305 $ 1,166 $ 182,607 $ 92,522 (10,314) $ 24,963 $ 290,944

- - - 36,883 - 6,408 43,291
- - - - (1,800) (123) (1,923)

- - - 129,405 (12,114) 31,248 332,312
- - - (21,603) - - (21,603)
- - - - - (9,988) (9,988)

- - - - - 1,607 1,607

80 80

- - 81 - - 90 171
- - - - - (314) (314)
- - (2,352) - - 1,156 (1,196)

49,099,305 § 1,166 $ 180,336 $ 107,802 (12,114) $ 23,879 § 301,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

U.S. dollars in thousands

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Cost of share-based payment

Changes in value of short-term and long-term loans from banks and others and deposits, net

Changes in deferred taxes, net

Payments of contingent consideration related to acquisitions

Capital loss (gain) on sale of property and equipment

Effect of exchange rate on of cash and cash equivalents held in currencies other than the functional
currency

Change in value of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

Working capital adjustments:
Trade receivables
Accrued expenses and other accounts payable
Other current and long-term accounts receivable
Trade payables
Deferred revenues

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
46279 S 42502 $ 43,291
19,795 20,553 20,762

2,079 3,798 1,607
(1,686) 1,533 (676)
(3,904) (3,238) (1,564)
(3,919) (6,572) (922)

- 42) 7
3,747 285 (82)
76 (114) @7
(2,569) 18,426 (4,583)
(975) (7,190) 13,647
(1,934) (5,586) (4,746)
139 858 510
(513) 3,779 7,609
56,615 $ 68,992 S 74,833




MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Cont.)
U.S. dollars in thousands

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024

Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (Appendix A) $ (21,670) $ (14,244) $ (12,489)
Loans to related party (2,250) 909 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 54 45
Payments to former shareholders of consolidated company - (583) -
Proceeds from sale (purchase) of financial assets, net 309 (1,243) 585
Cash paid in conjunction with deferred payments and contingent liabilities related to business

combinations (4,870) (11,320) (6,852)
Purchase of intangible assets (219) - -
Purchase of property and equipment (4,381) (1,618) (1,535)
Investment in a company accounted for at equity - (498) (198)
Change in short-term and long-term deposits 1,682 4,110 482
Capitalization of software development (3,059) (3,183) (2,650)
Net cash used in investing activities (34,458) (27,616) (22,612)
Cash flows from financing activities:

Exercise of employees’ stock options 1 22 -

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (4,170) (4,055) (7,870)

Dividend paid to Magic’s shareholders (24,841) (30,798) (10,016)

Repayment of long-term loans from banks and others (14,323) (20,994) (33,695)

Receipt of long-term loans from banks and others 30,703 49,465 12,603

Repayment of lease liabilities (4,792) (5,690) (6,029)

Purchase of non-controlling interest - - (314)

Cash paid due to exercise of put option by non-controlling interests (854) (5,243) 176
Net cash used in financing activities (18,276) (17,293) (45,145)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (8,909) (1,202) (240)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (5,028) 22,881 6,836
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 88,090 83,062 105,943
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 83,062 $ 105,943 § 112,779

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Cont.)
U.S. dollars in thousands

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Appendix A
Cash paid in conjunction with acquisitions, net of acquired cash:
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:
Net assets, excluding acquired cash $ (1,168) $ a97) $ (2,566)
Intangible assets, net of deferred taxes (13,552) (8,281) (6,272)
Goodwill (22,370) (9,410) (6,885)
Deferred and contingent liabilities assumed in current year business combinations 15,420 - 3,234
Non-controlling interests = 3,644 -
$ (21,670) $ (14,244) $ (12,489)
Appendix B
Supplementary information on investing and financing activities not involving cash flows:
Non-cash activities:
Dividends declared but not yet paid to Magic’s shareholders - - 11,587
Dividends declared but not yet paid to non-controlling interests - - 2,574
Right-of-use asset recognized with corresponding lease liability $ 6,349 $ 2,787 $ 4,450
Appendix C
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities:
Cash paid, net during the year for:
Income taxes $ 14,457 $ 15,886 $ 10,446
Interest $ 1,306 $ 3208 $ 5,550

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 1:- GENERAL

Magic Software Enterprises Ltd., an Israeli company (“the Company” or “Magic”), is a leading global provider of: (i) proprietary application development and
business process integration platforms that accelerate the planning, development, deployment and integration of on-premise, mobile and cloud business
applications (“the Magic Technology”); (ii) selected packaged vertical software solutions; and (iii) software services and IT outsourcing services.

Magic’s software solutions and software services enable enterprises to accelerate the process of delivering business solutions that meet current and future
needs and allow customers to dramatically improve their business performance and return on investment. To complement its software products and to increase
its traction with customers, the Company also offers a complete portfolio of software services in the areas of infrastructure design and delivery, application
development, technology planning and implementation services, communications services and solutions, and supplemental IT professional outsourcing
services. The Company reports its results on the basis of two reportable business segments: software solutions (which include proprietary and non-proprietary
software solutions, maintenance and support and related services) and IT professional services (see Note 22 for further details).

The Company’s principal markets are in the United States, Israel, Europe and Japan (see Note 22).

For information about the Company’s holdings in subsidiaries and affiliates, see Appendix to the consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in the financial statements for all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

1) Basis of presentation of the financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS accounting standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) (hereafter “IFRS”).

Measurement basis:

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared on a cost basis, except for financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), provisions, employee benefit assets and liabilities, and financial assets and liabilities which are presented at fair value
through profit or loss (See Note 6).

The Company has elected to present the profit or loss items using the function of expense method.

2) Use of estimates, judgments and assumptions:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make estimates, judgments, and assumptions, that have an effect on the
application of the accounting policies and on the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s management believes that the estimates, judgments, and assumptions used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, are
reasonable based upon information available at the time they are made. These estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Actual results may differ from those estimates. Changes in accounting estimates are reported in the
period of the change in estimate.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements:

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the Group has made the following judgments which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements:

Judgments:
- Estimate of Percentage of Completion for Measurement of Progress on Long-Term Fixed-Price Contracts

The percentage of completion is determined based on the ratio of actual costs incurred to the total estimated cost of each contract. This total cost is
estimated by the Company based on assessments of expected labor costs, subcontractor costs, and other relevant factors.
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

3)

4

5)

Consolidated financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of companies that are controlled by the Company (subsidiaries). Control is
achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Potential voting rights are considered when assessing whether an entity has control. The consolidation of the financial
statements commences on the date on which control is obtained and ends when such control ceases.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries represent the equity in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent. Non-controlling interests
are presented in equity separately from the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company. Profit or loss and components of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the Company and to non-controlling interests. Losses are attributed to non-controlling interests even if they result
in a negative balance of non-controlling interests in the consolidated statement of financial position. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as a change in equity by adjusting the carrying amount of the non-controlling interests with a corresponding
adjustment of the equity attributable to equity holders of the Company less of or plus the consideration paid or received, respectively.

Business combinations and goodwill:

Business combinations are accounted for by applying the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the fair value of the consideration
transferred on the acquisition date with the addition of non-controlling interests in the acquiree. In each business combination, the Company chooses
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree based on their fair value on the acquisition date or at their proportionate share in the fair
value of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets.

A put option granted by the Company to non-controlling interests is accounted for using the expected purchase approach under the presumption that the
put option will be exercised, and therefore the Company effectively holds an interest in the subsidiary’s shares as if the put option had been exercised. A
put option granted by the Company to non-controlling interests for which the consideration to be paid in cash or other financial asset is recognized as a
liability in the amount of the present value of the put option’s exercise price.

Contingent consideration is recognized at fair value on the acquisition date and is classified as a financial asset or liability in accordance with IFRS 9.
Subsequent changes in the fair value of a contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost which represents the excess of the acquisition consideration and the amount of non-controlling interests over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the resulting amount is negative, the Company recognizes the resulting gain on the acquisition date.
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

6)

7

Functional currency and presentation currency:

The presentation currency of these consolidated financial statements is the U.S dollar (the “dollar”), since the Company believes that presenting its
financial statements in U.S dollars provides more relevant information to its investors. Also, the dollar is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries operate. Thus, the functional and reporting currency of the Company and certain
subsidiaries is the dollar. For other subsidiaries, the functional currency is determined based on the primary economic environment in which each entity
operates. As of the reporting date, the key functional currencies used by the Company’s foreign subsidiaries, other than the U.S. dollar, include: New
Israeli Shekel, Euro, Japanese Yen and British Pound.

Revenue recognition:

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the promised goods or services are transferred to the customers. The transaction
price is the amount of the consideration that is expected to be received based on the contract terms, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties
(such as taxes).

The Company enters into contracts that can include various combinations of products, software and professional services, as detailed below, which are
generally distinct from each other and accounted for as separate performance obligations.

The Company derives its revenue from licensing the rights to use its software (proprietary and non-proprietary), provision of related professional services,
maintenance and technical support as well as from other software and IT professional services (either fixed price or based on time and materials). The
Company sells its products primarily through direct sales force and indirectly through distributors and value-added resellers.

The Company recognizes revenue when or as it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring software license or software related services to the
customer, either at a point in time or over time.

When the Company enters into a contract for the sale of a software license which does not require significant implementation services and the customer
receives the rights to use the perpetual or term-based software license, the Company recognizes revenue from the sale of the software license at the time
of delivery, when the customer receives control of the software license. The software license is considered a distinct performance obligation recognized at
a point-in-time, as the customer can benefit from the software on its own or together with other readily available resources.

The Company recognizes revenue from software licensing transactions over time when the Company provides the customer a right to access the
Company’s intellectual property throughout the license term.

Revenue from long-term contracts which involve significant implementation, customization, or integration of the Company’s software license to
customer-specific requirements are considered as one performance obligation satisfied over-time. Revenues from these contracts are primarily based on
time and material.

Revenue from long-term fixed-price contracts that involve significant implementation, customization, or integration to customer-specific requirements is
recognized over time. The underlying deliverable is owned and controlled by the customer or, does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Company, and the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed throughout the duration of the contract. Revenue is
recognized using the percentage of completion method, based on an input-based measure of progress that compares actual costs incurred to total
estimated contract costs. This method supports recognition of revenue and gross profit as work is performed.

In addition, the Company provides professional services that do not involve significant customization to customer-specific specifications (typically

staffing or consulting services). The revenue is recognized as the services are performed, either on a straight-line basis or based on the hours of services
(time and material) that were provided to the customer, in accordance with the terms of the contracts.
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NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)
7) Revenue recognition: (Cont.)

The Company’s revenues from post contract support are derived from annual maintenance contracts providing for unspecified upgrades for new versions
and enhancements on a when-and-if-available basis for an annual fee, as well as technical support for software licenses previously sold. The right for an
unspecified upgrade for new versions and enhancements on a when-and-if-available basis do not specify the features, functionality and release date of
future product enhancements for the customer to know what will be made available and the general timeframe in which it will be delivered. The Company
considers the post contract support performance obligation as a distinct performance obligation that is satisfied over time and recognized on a straight-line
basis over the contractual period.

Revenue from professional services, both related to software solutions and IT professional services business segments consists of either fixed price or
time and materials, are considered performance obligations that are satisfied over time and revenues are recognized as the services are provided.

The transaction price is allocated to the separate performance obligations on a relative standalone selling price basis. Stand-alone selling prices of
software licenses are typically estimated using the residual approach. Stand-alone selling prices of services are typically estimated based on observable
transactions when these services are sold on a standalone basis.

When another party is involved in providing goods or services to the customer, the Company examines whether the nature of its promise is a performance
obligation to provide the defined goods or services itself, which means the Company is a principal and therefore recognizes revenue in the gross amount
of the consideration, or to arrange that another party provide the goods or services which means the Company is an agent and therefore recognizes
revenue in the amount of the net commission.

The Company is a principal when it controls the promised goods or services before they are transferred to the customer. Indicators that the Company
controls the goods or services before their transfer to the customer include, inter alia, as follows: the Company is responsible for fulfilling the promises in
the contract; the Company has inventory risk before the goods or services are transferred to the customer; and the Company has discretion in setting the
prices of the goods or services.

Revenue from third-party sales is recorded at a gross or net amount according to certain indicators. The application of these indicators for gross and net
reporting of revenue depends on the relative facts and circumstances of each sale.

The Company pays commissions to sales and marketing and certain management personnel based on their attainment of certain predetermined sales or
profit goals. The Company expenses sales commissions as they are incurred when the amortization period would have been less than one year. In
addition, generally, sales commissions which are paid upon contract renewal are commensurate with the initial commissions as the renewal amounts are
substantially identical to the initial commission costs. During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2024, no costs have been capitalized.

The Company does not assess whether a contract has a significant financing component if the expectation at contract inception is such that the period
between payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer will be one year or less.
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NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

8) Income tax:

Current or deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except to the extent that they relate to items which are recognized in other comprehensive
income or equity.

Current taxes:

The current tax liability is measured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date as well as
adjustments required in connection with the tax liability in respect of previous years.

Deferred taxes:

Deferred taxes are computed in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts in the financial statements and the amounts attributed
for tax purposes. Deferred taxes are measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is not probable that they will be utilized. Deductible carryforward losses and temporary differences for which deferred tax assets had not
been recognized are reviewed at each reporting date and a respective deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that their utilization is probable.

Taxes that would apply in the event of the disposal of investments in investees have not been considered in computing deferred taxes, as long as the
disposal of the investments in investees is not probable in the foreseeable future. Also, deferred taxes that would apply in the event of distribution of
earnings by investees as dividends have not been considered in computing deferred taxes, since the distribution of dividends does not involve an
additional tax liability or since it is the Company’s policy not to initiate distribution of dividends from a subsidiary that would trigger an additional
tax liability.

Deferred taxes are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset a current tax asset against a current tax liability and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxpayer and the same taxation authority.

Uncertain tax position:

A provision for uncertain tax positions, including additional tax and interest expenses, is recognized when it is more likely than not that the Company
will have to use its economic resources to pay the obligation.
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NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

9) Leases:

The Company accounts for a contract as a lease when the contract terms convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

)

The Company as lessee:

For leases in which the Company is the lessee, the Company recognizes on the commencement date of the lease a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, excluding leases whose term is up to twelve months and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. For these excluded leases, the
Company has elected to recognize the lease payments as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In measuring the
lease liability, the Company has elected to apply the practical expedient in the Standard and does not separate the lease components from the non-
lease components (such as management and maintenance services, etc.) included in a single contract.

Leases which entitle employees to a company car as part of their employment terms are accounted for as employee benefits in accordance with the
provisions of IAS 19 and not as subleases.

The Company accounts for a contract as a lease when the contract terms convey the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

On the commencement date, the lease liability includes all unpaid lease payments discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined, or otherwise using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the Company measures the
lease liability using the effective interest rate method.

On the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is recognized in an amount equal to the lease liability plus lease payments already made on or
before the commencement date and initial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use asset is measured applying the cost model and depreciated over the
shorter of its useful life and the lease term.

Following are the amortization periods of the right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset:

Years Mainly

Land and buildings 1-12 5
Motor vehicles 1-5 3

ii)

The Company tests for impairment of the right-of-use asset whenever there are indications of impairment pursuant to the provisions of IAS 36.

Lease extension and termination options:

A non-cancelable lease term includes both the periods covered by an option to extend the lease when it is reasonably certain that the extension option
will be exercised and the periods covered by a lease termination option when it is reasonably certain that the termination option will not be exercised.

In the event of any change in the expected exercise of the lease extension option or in the expected non-exercise of the lease termination option, the
Company remeasures the lease liability based on the revised lease term using a revised discount rate as of the date of the change in expectations. The
total change is recognized in the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset until it is reduced to zero, and any further reductions are recognized in
profit or loss.
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NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

10) Property and equipment, net:

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, including directly attributable costs, less accumulated depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the assets at annual rates as follows:

Years
Software 3-5 (mainly 5)
Computers and peripheral equipment 3-5
Office furniture and equipment 7-15 (mainly 7)
Motor vehicles 7

11

~

Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease (including option terms that are deemed to be reasonably
assured) or the estimated useful life of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

The useful life, the depreciation method and the residual value of an asset are reviewed at least each year-end (at the end of the year) and any changes are
accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held
for sale and the date that the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets:

Separately acquired intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost, including directly attributable costs. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination are measured at fair value at the acquisition date. Expenditures relating to internally generated intangible assets, excluding

capitalized development costs, are recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortized over their useful life and reviewed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset are reviewed at least at each year end.

Research and development expenditures

Research expenditures which are incurred in the process of software development are recognized in profit or loss when incurred. An intangible asset
arising from a software development project or from the development phase of an internal project is recognized if the Company can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale; the Company’s intention to complete the intangible asset
and use or sell it; the ability to use or sell the intangible asset; how the intangible asset will generate future economic benefits; the availability of adequate
technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset; and the ability to measure reliably the respective expenditure asset during its
development. The Company establishes technological feasibility upon completion of a detailed program design or a working model.
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NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)
11) Intangible assets: (Cont.)

Capitalized software costs are measured at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses on a product-by-product basis.
Amortization of capitalized software costs begin when the development is complete, and the product is available for use or for sale. The Company
considers a product to be available for use when the Company completes its internal validation of the product that is necessary to establish that the
product meets its design specifications including functions, features, and technical performance requirements. Internal validation includes the completion
of coding, documentation and testing that ensure bugs are reduced to a minimum. The internal validation of the product takes place a few weeks before
the product is made available to the market. In certain instances, the Company enters into a short pre-release stage, during which the product is made
available to a selected number of customers as a beta program for their own review and familiarization. Subsequently, the release is made generally
available to customers. Once a product is considered available for use, the capitalization of costs ceases and amortization of such costs to “cost of sales”
begins.

Capitalized software costs are amortized on a product-by-product basis by the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software product
(between 3-5 years, mainly 5 years).

Research and development costs incurred in the process of developing product enhancements are generally charged to expenses as incurred.

The Company assesses the recoverability of its capitalized software costs on a regular basis by assessing the net realizable value of these intangible assets
based on the estimated future gross revenues from each product reduced by the estimated future costs of completing and disposing of it, including the
estimated costs of performing maintenance and customer support over its remaining economical useful life using internally generated projections of future

revenues generated by the products, cost of completion of products and cost of delivery to customers over its remaining economical useful life.

During the years ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024, no such unrecoverable amounts were identified.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets excluding capitalized development costs are comprised mainly of customer-related intangible assets, backlogs, acquired technology and
patent, and are amortized over their useful lives using a method of amortization that reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible
assets are consumed or otherwise used up. The useful life of intangible assets is as follows:

Years
Customer relationships Upto 15
Acquired technology Up to 10 (mainly 5)

The useful life of these assets is reviewed annually to determine whether their indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If the events and
circumstances do not continue to support the assessment, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
as a change in accounting estimate, and on that date the asset is tested for impairment. Commencing from that date, the asset is amortized systematically
over its useful life.
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NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

12) Impairment of non-financial assets:

13

~

The Company evaluates the need to record an impairment of non-financial assets (property, plant and equipment, capitalized software costs and other
intangible assets and goodwill) whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount is not recoverable. If the carrying amount
of non-financial assets exceeds their recoverable amount, the assets are reduced to their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value less costs of sale and value in use. In measuring value in use, the expected future cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects the risks specific to the asset. The recoverable amount of an asset that does not generate independent cash flows is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at the acquisition date, to each of our cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. The Company reviews goodwill for impairment once a year, on December 31, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that there is an impairment.
Goodwill is tested for impairment by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill has been allocated. An impairment loss is recognized if the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is less than the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units). Any impairment
loss is allocated first to goodwill. Impairment losses recognized for goodwill cannot be reversed in subsequent periods.
During the years ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024, no impairment loss was identified.
Financial instruments:
The accounting policy for financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” is as follows:
1. Financial assets
Financial assets are measured upon initial recognition at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except for financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss in respect of which transaction costs are recorded in profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company evaluates at the end of each reporting period the loss allowance for financial debt instruments which are not measured at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

13) Financial instruments: (Cont.)

a)

b)

An impairment loss on debt instruments measured at amortized cost is recognized in profit or loss with a corresponding loss allowance that is offset
from the carrying amount of the financial asset.

The Company has short-term financial assets such as trade receivables in respect of which the Company applies a simplified approach in IFRS 9 and
measures the loss allowance in an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses. Trade receivables include original invoiced amount less an
allowance for any potential uncollectible amounts and less invoiced amounts from maintenance and professional services contracts which haven’t
been recognized yet. The Company makes estimates of expected credit losses for the allowance for doubtful accounts based upon its assessment of
various factors, including historical experience, the age of the trade receivable balances, credit quality of its customers, current economic conditions,
reasonable and supportable forecasts of future economic conditions, and other factors that may affect its ability to collect from customers. The
estimated credit loss allowance is recorded as general and administrative expenses on the Company’s consolidated statements of profit or loss. Such
allowance charge amounted of $1,778, $2,116 and $1,452, respectively for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:
Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liability.

After initial recognition, the Company measures all financial liabilities at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, except for financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss:

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial liabilities that are not measured at amortized cost at fair value. Transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss, except for put option granted to non-controlling interests.
Put option granted to non-controlling interests:

When the Company grants to non-controlling interests a put option to sell part or all of their interests in a subsidiary, during a certain period, even if
such purchase obligation is conditional on the counterparty’s exercise of its contractual right to cause such redemption, if the put option agreement
does not transfer to the Company any benefits incidental to ownership of the equity instrument (i.e. the Company does not have a present ownership
in the shares concerned) then at the end of each reporting period the non-controlling interests (to which a portion of net profit attributable to non-
controlling interests is allocated) are classified as a financial liability, as if such put-able equity instrument was redeemed on that date. The difference
between the non-controlling interests carrying amount at the end of the reporting period and the present value of the liability is recognized directly in
equity of the Company, under “Additional paid-in capital”.
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NOTE 2:- MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

13)

14)

15)

Financial instruments: (Cont.)

The Company remeasures the financial liability at the end of each reporting period based on the estimated present value of the consideration to be
transferred upon the exercise of the put option.

If the option is exercised in subsequent periods, the consideration paid upon exercise is treated as settlement of the liability. If the put option expires,
the liability is settled and a portion of the investment in the subsidiary disposed of, without loss of control therein.

Fair value measurement:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Fair value measurement is based on the assumption that the transaction will take place in the asset’s or the liability’s principal market,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest. Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Level 1 - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable directly or indirectly.

Level 3 - inputs that are not based on observable market data (valuation techniques which use inputs that are not based on observable market data).

All assets and liabilities measured at fair value or for which fair value is disclosed are categorized into levels within the fair value hierarchy based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement.

Provisions:

A provision in accordance with IAS 37 is recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of a past event, it is
expected to require the use of economic resources to clear the obligation and a reliable estimate has been made.
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15) Provisions: (Cont.)

Following are the types of provisions included in the financial statements:

i

Legal claims:

A provision for legal claims is recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is more
likely than not that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required by the Company to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Contingent liability recognized in a business combination:
A contingent liability in a business combination is measured at fair value upon initial recognition. In subsequent periods, it is measured at the higher

of the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative amortization, and the amount that would be recognized at the end of the
reporting period in accordance with IAS 37.

16) Employee benefits:

The Company maintains several employee benefit plans:

i

Short-term employee benefits:

Short-term employee benefits are benefits that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in
which the employees render the related services. These benefits include salaries, paid annual leave, paid sick leave, recreation and social security
contributions and are recognized as expenses as the services are rendered. A liability in respect of a cash bonus or a profit-sharing plan is recognized
when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation to make such payment as a result of past service rendered by an employee and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.

Post-employment benefits:

The plans are normally financed by contributions to insurance companies and classified as defined contribution plans or as defined benefit plans.
Magic and its Israeli subsidiaries (as defined with respect to their Israeli employee contribution plans pursuant to section 14 of Israel’s Severance Pay
Law, 1963 (the “Severance Pay Law”)) pay fixed contributions to those plans and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contributions if the fund into which those contributions are paid does not hold sufficient amounts to pay all employee benefits relating to employee

service in the current and prior periods. Contributions to the defined contribution plan in respect of severance or retirement pay are recognized as an
expense when contributed concurrently with performance of the employee’s services.
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16)

17)

18)

Employee benefits: (Cont.)

Magic and its Israeli subsidiaries also operate a defined benefit plan in respect of severance or retirement pay to their Israeli employees pursuant to
the Severance Pay Law. According to the Severance Pay Law, employees are entitled to severance pay upon dismissal or retirement.

In respect of its severance pay obligation to certain of its employees, the Company makes current deposits in pension funds and insurance companies
(the “plan assets”). Plan assets comprise assets held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance policies. Plan assets are not
available to the Company’s own creditors and cannot be returned directly to the Company.

The liability for employee benefits shown in the statement of financial position reflects the present value of the defined benefit obligation, less the
fair value of the plan assets. Remeasurements of the net liability are recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

Share-based payment:

The Company’s and its subsidiaries’ senior management are entitled from time to time to remuneration in the form of equity-settled share-based payment
transactions. The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at grant date. The fair
value is determined using an acceptable option pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in profit or loss together with a corresponding increase in equity during the period which the
performance and/or service conditions are to be satistied ending on the date on which the relevant employees become entitled to the award (“the vesting
period”). The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other vesting conditions (service and/or performance) are
satisfied.

The Company recognizes compensation expenses for the value of its awards, which have graded vesting based on the accelerated method over the
requisite service period of each of the awards.

Concentration of credit risk:

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, short-term
bank deposits, trade receivables and foreign currency derivative contracts.

The majority of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents, bank deposits and other financial instruments are invested with major banks in Israel, the
United States, Japan and across Europe. Management believes that these financial instruments are held in financial institutions with high credit standing,
and accordingly, minimal credit risk exists with respect to these investments. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits in the United States may
be in excess of insured limits and are not insured in other jurisdictions. Generally, these banks deposits may be redeemed upon demand and therefore bear
minimal risk.
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18) Concentration of credit risk: (Cont.)

19

20

~

=

The Company’s trade receivables are generally derived from sales to small, medium and large organizations located mainly in Israel, North America,
Europe and Asia Pacific. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers using a reliable outside source to determine payment terms
and credit limits which are approved based on the size of the customer and to date has not experienced any material losses. In certain circumstances,
Magic and its subsidiaries may require letters of credit or other collateral or additional guarantees.

The Company maintains an allowance for credit losses based upon management’s experience and estimate of the collectability of each outstanding
invoice. The allowance for credit losses is determined with respect to specific debts or which collection is doubtful. The risk of collection associated with
accounts receivable is mitigated by the diversity and number of customers.

Liquidity risk:

Liquidity risk arises from managing the Company’s working capital as well as from financial expenses and principal payments of the Company’s debt
instruments. Liquidity risk consists of the risk that the Company will have difficulty in fulfilling obligations relating to financial liabilities. The
Company’s policy is to ascertain constant cash adequacy needed for settling its liabilities when due. For this purpose, the Company aims to hold cash

balances (or adequate credit lines) that will meet anticipated demands.

Magic and its subsidiaries examine cash flow forecasts on a monthly basis as well as information regarding cash balances. As of the reporting date, these
forecasts indicate that the Company can expect sufficient liquid sources to cover its entire liabilities under reasonable assumptions.

Reclassification of prior years presentation:

Certain prior years amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported
results of operations.

21) Accounting pronouncements not yet adopted:

1. Amendments to IAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates™:
In August 2023, the IASB issued “Amendments to IAS 21: Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign

Exchange Rates”)” (“the Amendments”) to clarify how an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should measure and
determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking.
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21) Accounting pronouncements not yet adopted: (Cont.)

The Amendments set out the requirements for determining the spot exchange rate when a currency lacks exchangeability. The Amendments require
disclosure of information that will enable users of financial statements to understand how a currency not being exchangeable affects or is expected to
affect the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows.

The Amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025. Earlier adoption is permitted, in which case, an entity is
required to disclose that fact. When applying the Amendments, an entity should not restate comparative information. Instead, if the foreign currency
is not exchangeable at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the Amendments are first applied (the initial application date), the entity
should translate affected assets, liabilities and equity as required by the Amendments and recognize the differences as of the initial application date as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings and/or to the foreign currency translation reserve, as required by the Amendments.

The Company believes that the Amendments are not expected to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

2. IFRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
In April 2024, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued International Financial Reporting Standard 18 (IFRS 18), Presentation
and Disclosure in Financial Statements (hereinafter: “the new standard”), which replaces International Accounting Standard 1 (IAS 1), Presentation
of Financial Statements.
The objective of the new standard is to enhance comparability and transparency in financial statements.
IFRS 18 incorporates existing requirements from IAS 1 as well as introduces new requirements for the presentation in the statement of profit or loss,
including presentation of specified line items and subtotals as required by the new standard, disclosures regarding management-defined performance
measures (MPMs), and new requirements for the aggregation and disaggregation of financial information.
The new standard does not change the recognition and measurement principles of items in the financial statements. However, since items in the
statement of profit or loss will need to be classified into one of five categories (operating, investing, financing, income taxes, and discontinued

operations), it may affect the entity’s reported operating profit.

In addition, the issuance of IFRS 18 has resulted in limited amendments to other accounting standards, including IAS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows,
and IAS 34 — Interim Financial Reporting.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027. Early adoption is permitted,
with appropriate disclosure, for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025, subject to the decision of the Israel Securities Authority.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new standard, including the effect of the related amendments to other accounting standards,
on its consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 3:- BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Current year acquisitions:

a.  On April 4, 2024, the Company acquired 100% of Theoris Group Inc. (“Theoris”). Theoris is a U.S.-based IT and engineering consulting firm providing a
wide range of services including strategic data management, analytics, application development, cloud initiatives, and technical talent acquisition. Total
purchase price consideration amounted to $13,096 which consisted of a base purchase price of $10,000, a deferred payment of $2,256 payable in two
equal annual installments, and a working capital adjustment consideration of $840. The fair value of the consideration was determined in accordance with
IFRS 3 and measured as of the acquisition date.

Theoris’ results of operations were included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company commencing April 4, 2024. Acquisition-related
costs were immaterial. Unaudited pro forma condensed results of operations were not presented since they were not material to the Company’s

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities at the date of acquisition:

Net assets, excluding cash acquired of $286 $ 2,321
Intangible assets 5,205
Goodwill 5,284
Total net assets acquired $ 12,810

The goodwill resulting from the acquisition of Theoris is primarily attributable to potential synergies with the Company, as well as certain intangible
assets that do not qualify for separate recognition.

b. On July 3, 2024, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement to acquire the entire operating activity of the nursing care business (“Adam
Care”) from Meida Computers Software Solutions Ltd. for a total consideration of $1,596 which was paid upon closing. Adam Care, an Israel-based
provider of welfare and employment support services, delivers a range of human resources and welfare-related solutions to local authorities and corporate
clients, including services related to employment integration, income assurance, wage and benefits administration, and specialized support centers for
individuals entitled to public assistance. The acquisition meets the definition of a business under IFRS 3 and therefore was accounted for as a business
combination using the acquisition method.

Adam Care’s results of operations were included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company commencing July 3, 2024. Acquisition-related
costs were immaterial. Unaudited pro forma condensed results of operations were not presented since they were not material to the Company’s

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the identifiable assets acquired at the acquisition date:

Customer relationships $ 529
Technology 309
Goodwill 758
Total net assets acquired $ 1,596

The goodwill from the acquisition of Adam Care is primarily attributable to potential synergy with the Company, as well as certain intangible assets that
do not qualify for separate recognition.

c.  On October 31, 2024, the Company acquired 100% of Executive Life Ltd. (“Executive Life”), a U.S.-based recruitment firm headquartered in Long
Island, New York. Executive Life specializes in executive recruitment services across various industries including construction, IT, marketing,
accounting, finance, and manufacturing engineering, primarily in New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Texas, and California. Total purchase price
consideration amounted to $1,472 which consisted of a base purchase price of $800 and a deferred payment of $672, payable on the one year anniversary
of acquisition date. The fair value of the consideration was determined in accordance with IFRS 3 and measured as of the acquisition date. The
acquisition strengthens the Company’s talent acquisition capabilities and broadens its consulting and professional service offerings in the U.S. market.

Executive Life’s results of operations were included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company commencing November 1, 2024.

Acquisition-related costs were immaterial. Unaudited pro forma condensed results of operations were not presented since they were not material to the
Company’s consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTE 3:- BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Cont.)
Current year acquisitions: (Cont.)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities at the date of acquisition:

Net assets, excluding cash acquired of $156 $ 244
Intangible assets 229
Goodwill 843
Total net assets acquired $ 1,316

The goodwill from the acquisition of Executive Life is primarily attributable to potential synergy with the Company, as well as certain intangible assets
that do not qualify for separate recognition.

The estimated fair values of the tangible and intangible assets are provisional and are based on information that was available as of the acquisition date to
estimate the fair value of these amounts. The Company’s management believes the information provides a reasonable basis for estimating the fair values
of these amounts, but is waiting for additional information necessary to finalize those fair values. Therefore, provisional measurements of fair value
reflected are subject to change. The Company expects to finalize the tangible and intangible assets valuation and complete the acquisition accounting as
soon as practicable but no later than the measurement period.

Prior years acquisitions:

a.  On June 8, 2023, the Company acquired 60% of K.M.T. (M.H.) Technologies Communication Computer Ltd. (“KMT”). KMT delivers a broad spectrum
of ICT products, cloud platform, VoIP, technical support and planning and construction of computing. KMT was acquired for a total consideration of NIS
55,039 ($14,875). NIS 60 million was paid upon closing of which a payment of NIS 15 million is related to a contingent consideration depending on the
future operating results achieved by KMT referring to years 2023-2025. If the future operating results will not be fully achieved, the seller will be
required to return the whole or part of the contingent consideration. This contingent consideration was accounted for as a financial asset measured at its
fair value as of the acquisition date of NIS 5 million ($1.4 million). The fair value of the financial asset at December 31, 2024 was NIS 9.7 million ($2.7
million).

The results of operations were included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company commencing June 30, 2023. Acquisition-related costs

were immaterial. Unaudited pro forma condensed results of operations were not presented since they were not material to the Company’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTE 3:- BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Cont.)
Prior years acquisitions: (Cont.)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities at the date of acquisition

Net assets, excluding $632 of cash acquired $ 197
Intangible assets, net of deferred tax liabilities 8,281
Non-controlling interests (3,644)
Goodwill 9,410
Total assets acquired $ 14,244

The goodwill from the acquisition of KMT is primarily attributable to potential synergy with the Company, as well as certain intangible assets that do not
qualify for separate recognition. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.

b. On December 2, 2021, the Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (“the Agreement”) to acquire 50.1% of the outstanding share capital of
Appush Ltd. (formerly known as Vidstart Ltd.) (“Appush”), a provider of a video advertising platform that offers personalized automated methods and
real-time smart optimization, helping its clients achieve high yields in the competitive digital ecosystem, for $21,492. Of which amount, $11,042 was paid
upon closing. The final closing and execution of the Agreement occurred on January 27, 2022. In addition, the Company paid $1.5 million as an advance
payment for future acquisition of the remainder of Appush’s shares. According to the Agreement, the Company is obliged to purchase the remainder of
Appush’s shares in stages until it will hold 100% of Appush’s shares on or before December 31, 2026. This obligation was accounted for as a financial
liability measured at its fair value as of the acquisition date of $10,450. Beyond the $11,042 paid in 2021, the Company paid $239 in 2022, $4,962 in
2023 and $3,678 in 2024. The fair value of the financial liability at December 31, 2024 was $1,231.

The results of operations were included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company commencing January 27, 2022.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities at the date of acquisition:

Net liabilities, excluding $1,548 of cash acquired $ (2,762)
Intangible assets, net of deferred tax liabilities 7,445
Goodwill 15,261
Total assets acquired $ 19,944

The goodwill from the acquisition of Appush is primarily attributable to potential synergy with the Company, as well as certain intangible assets that do
not qualify for separate recognition. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.

c.  On August 23, 2022, the Company acquired 100% of The Goodkind Group, LLC (“TGG”) for a total consideration of $11,629, subject to net working
capital adjustments. Of which, $7,993 was paid upon closing. The remainder constitutes a deferred payment payable in 2023 and 2024. TGG provides
permanent and temporary staffing needs in various sectors including: Information Technology, Accounting & Finance, Digital Media, Marketing, Human
Resources, Financial Services. TGG specializes in customizing solutions and programs to their clients. With on-site programs and sourcing models the
Company solutions includes functions which differs from standard staffing companies. TGG provides assistance in the areas of compensation design and
development, employee opinion surveys, employment policies and practices, performance management, regulatory and compliance issues and succession
planning.
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NOTE 3:- BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Cont.)
Prior years acquisitions: (Cont.)
The results of operations were included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company commencing August 23, 2022.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:

Net assets, excluding $147 of cash acquired $ 3,177
Customer relationships, net of deferred tax liabilities 3,901
Goodwill 4,404
Total assets acquired § 11482

The goodwill from the acquisition of TGG is primarily attributable to potential synergy with the Company, as well as certain intangible assets that do not
qualify for separate recognition.

d.  On July 1, 2022, the Company acquired 100% of Intrabases SAS (“Intrabases”), a provider of IT professional services based in Nantes, France. The
consideration of the transaction is comprised solely from a cash consideration in an amount of $3,428.

The results of operations were included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company commencing July 1, 2022.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:

Net assets, excluding $447 of cash acquired $ 120
Customer relationships, net of deferred tax liabilities 1,054
Goodwill 1,807
Total assets acquired $ 2,981

The goodwill from the acquisition of Intrabases is primarily attributable to potential synergy with the Company, as well as certain intangible assets that do
not qualify for separate recognition. The goodwill is not deductible for income tax purposes.

e. During 2022, the Company entered into two separate Asset Purchase Agreements which met the definition of a business. Therefore, the Company deemed

them as business combinations which were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3. These aforementioned acquisitions are immaterial, both individually
and in aggregate. The total consideration paid for these acquisitions was $1,753.
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NOTE 3:- BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Cont.)
Prior years acquisitions: (Cont.)

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisitions:

Net liabilities (308)
Customer relationships, net of deferred tax liabilities 1,163
Goodwill 898
Total assets acquired $ 1,753

The goodwill from these acquisitions is primarily attributable to potential synergy with the Company, as well as certain intangible assets that do not
qualify for separate recognition.

NOTE 4:- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

December 31,

2023 2024
Balance nominated in USD $ 57,653 $ 63,886
Balance nominated in NIS 35,034 32,230
Balance nominated in other currencies 13,256 16,663

$ 105,943  § 112,779

NOTE 5:- OTHER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAID EXPENSES

The following table summarizes the composition of the Company’s other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses:

December 31,
2023 2024
Prepaid expenses $ 5,606 § 6,016
Government authorities 5,289 7,166
Related parties 3,178 2,801
Marketable securities and others 4,760 7,570
$ 18,833 $ 23,553

NOTE 6:- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

In determining fair value, the Company utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
to the extent possible and considers counterparty credit risk in its assessment of fair value.
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NOTE 6:- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Cont.)

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, including accrued interest components, consisted of the following
types of instruments as of December 31, 2023 and 2024:

Fair value

measurements
December 31,
2024
Level 3
Assets:
Assets in respect of business combinations $ 2,654
$ 2,654
Liabilities:
Liability in respect of business combinations $ 1,385
Put options of non-controlling interests 20,066
s 1St
Fair value
measurements
December 31,
2023
Level 3
Assets:
Assets in respect of business combinations $ 1,368
$ 1,368
Liabilities:
Liability in respect of business combinations $ 6,175
Put options of non-controlling interests 18,872
s 0w

There were no Level 1 or Level 2 instruments during any of the reported periods.

The movement in the contingent consideration in respect of the business combinations is as follows:

December 31,

2023 2024
Opening balance $ 19,693 $ 6,175
Payment of contingent consideration (13,908) (5,489)
Increase in fair value of contingent consideration 880 567
Decrease in fair value of contingent consideration (640) -
Foreign currency translation adjustments (146) -
Amortization of interest and exchange rate 296 132
Closing balance $ 6,175 $ 1,385
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NOTE 6:- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Cont.)
The movement in the deferred consideration in respect of the business combinations is as follows:

December 31,

2023 2024
Opening balance $ 4970 $ 1,530
Increase in deferred consideration due to acquisitions - 3,216
Payment of deferred consideration (3,757) (2,285)
Gain from adjustment of deferred consideration - (120)
Amortization of interest and exchange rate 62 170
Working capital adjustments and other 255 539
Closing balance $ 1,530 $ 3,050

The financial assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial position are classified by groups of financial instruments pursuant to IFRS 9:

December 31,

2023 2024
Financial assets
Financial assets at cost:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 105,943 § 112,779
Short-term bank deposits 751 51
Trade receivables, net 108,385 123,133
Marketable securities 2,316 1,757
Total financial assets at cost measured at cost: $ 217,395 $ 237,720
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Assets in respect of business combinations $ 1,368 $ 2,654
Total financial assets $ 218,763 % 240,374
Financial liabilities at fair value through equity:
Put options of non-controlling interests $ 18,872 $ 20,066
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
Liability in respect of business combinations $ 7,705 $ 4,435
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:
Loans from bank and financial institutions (short-term and long-term debts $ 81,208 $ 59,294
Lease liabilities 27,507 26,858
Total financial liabilities measured at amortized cost: $ 108,715 § 86,152
Total financial and lease liabilities $ 135292 § 110,653
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NOTE 7:- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Composition and movement:

Office Computers
Motor furniture and  and peripheral Leasehold
Software vehicles equipment equipment improvements Total
Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2023 $ 1,492 $ 1,270  $ 4395 § 8,620 $ 5,880 $ 21,657
Additions during the year:

Purchases 463 3 491 591 70 1,618

Acquisitions of subsidiaries 25 2 302 616 43 988

Adjustments arising from translating

financial statements of foreign
operations (22) (19) (255) (150) (136) (582)

Decreases during the year:

Disposals (3) (94) (52) (58) (7) (214)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 1,955 §$ 1,162 $ 4881 $ 9,619 $ 5,850 $ 23,467
Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as of January 1, 2023 $ 1,399 $ 1,090 2,883 § 6,686 $ 1,261 $ 13,319
Additions during the year:

Depreciation 46 48 563 816 448 1,921

Disposals 3) (94) (51) (48) ) (203)

Acquisitions of subsidiaries 21 - 257 528 37 843

Adjustments arising from translating

financial statements of foreign

operations (36) (48) (46) (241) (30) (401)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 $ 1,427  $ 996 3,606 $ 7,741  $ 1,709 $ 15,479
Depreciated cost at December 31, 2023 $ 528 $ 166 $ 1,275 $ 1,878 $ 4141 $ 7,988
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NOTE 7:- PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET (Cont.)

Composition and movement:

Office Computers
Motor furniture and  and peripheral Leasehold
Software vehicles equipment equipment improvements Total
Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2024 $ 1,955 $ 1,162 $ 4,881 $ 9,619 $ 5,850 $ 23,467
Additions during the year:

Purchases 122 217 24 941 231 1,535

Acquisitions of subsidiaries 431 1,050 1,481

Adjustments arising from translating

financial statements of foreign
operations (331) 7 (1,156) 1,406 97) (171)

Decreases during the year:

Disposals (79) (40) (28) (166) (313)
Balance as of December 31, 2024 $ 1,746  $ 1,307 § 4140 $ 12,988 $ 5818 § 25,999
Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as of January 1, 2024 $ 1,427  § 996 3,606 $ 7,741  $ 1,709 $ 15,479
Additions during the year:

Depreciation 73 118 224 1,072 576 2,063

Disposals 47) (45) (43) (126) (261)

Acquisitions of subsidiaries 425 998 1,423

Adjustments arising from translating

financial statements of foreign

operations (333) (255) (779) 1,179 16 (172)
Balance as of December 31, 2024 $ 1,167 $ 812 3431 $ 10,947 $ 2,175 $ 18,532
Depreciated cost at December 31, 2024 $ 579 $ 495 $ 709 $ 2,041 $ 3,643 $ 7,467
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NOTE 8:- INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET

Composition and movement:

Capitalized
Software
development Customer Acquired
costs relationship technology Others Total

Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2023 $ 93,057 $ 93,134 §$ 20,048 $ 584 § 206,323
Capitalized development costs 3,183 - - - 3,183
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 7,704 - 1,706 9,410
Adjustments arising from translating financial statements of

foreign operations (32) (1,172) (332) (13) (1,549)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 96,208 99,666 19,716 2,277 217,867
Accumulated amortization and impairment:
Balance as of January 1, 2023 $ 83,171 $ 59,429 $ 11,882 $ 284 § 154,766
Amortization recognized in the year 3,545 7,925 1,712 291 13,473
Adjustments arising from translating financial statements of

foreign operations - (864) (163) 3) (1,030)
Balance as of December 31, 2023 86,716 66,490 13,431 572 167,209
Amortized cost at December 31, 2023 $ 9,492 § 33,176  $ 6,285 § 1,705 $ 50,658

Capitalized
Software
development Customer Acquired
costs relationship technology Others Total

Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2024 $ 96,208 $ 99,666 $ 19,716 $ 2,277 $ 217,867
Capitalized development costs 2,650 - - - 2,650
Acquisition of subsidiaries - 5,963 309 - 6,272
Measurement period adjustments - (441) (312) - (753)
Adjustments arising from translating financial statements of

foreign operations (6) (390) (74) (34) (504)
Balance as of December 31, 2024 98,852 104,798 19,639 2,243 225,532
Accumulated amortization:
Balance as of January 1, 2024 $ 86,716 $ 66,490 $ 13,431 $ 572§ 167,209
Amortization recognized in the year 3,477 7,708 1,589 489 13,263
Adjustments arising from translating financial statements of

foreign operations - (173) (41) (13) (227)
Balance as of December 31, 2024 90,193 74,025 14,979 1,048 180,245

Amortized cost as of December 31, 2024 $ 8,659 § 30,773  $ 4,660 $ 1,195 $ 45,287
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NOTE 8:- INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET (Cont.)

During the years ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024 the Company recognized amortization expenses related to intangible assets as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Cost of revenues $ 5405 $ 5,471 5,066
Selling and marketing expenses 8,169 8,002 8,197
$ 13,574 § 13,473 13,263
Intangible assets composition by asset type as of December 31, 2024:
IT
professional Software
services services Total
Capitalized Software development costs $ 448 § 8,211 8,659
Customer relationship 24,034 6,739 30,773
Acquired technology 1,110 3,550 4,660
Others 1,047 148 1,195
Total $ 26,639 $ 18,648 45,287
The estimated future amortization expense of intangible assets as of December 31, 2024 is as follows:
2025 12,511
2026 10,272
2027 7,580
2028 5,744
2029 and thereafter 9,180
45,287
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NOTE 9:- GOODWILL

The following table summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2024:

IT
professional Software
services solutions Total
As of January 1, 2023 $ 89,997 $ 68,702 $ 158,699
Business combinations 9,410 - 9,410
Foreign currency translation adjustments (959) (1,085) (2,044)
As of January 1, 2024 $ 98,448 $ 67,617 $ 166,065
Business combinations 6,127 758 6,885
Measurement period adjustments 51 462 513
Foreign currency translation adjustments (253) (695) (948)
As of December 31, 2024 $ 104,373  $ 68,142 $ 172,515

The Company performed annual impairment tests as of December 31, 2023 and 2024 and did not identify any impairment losses (see Note 2).
Impairment test of goodwill for the years ended on December 31, 2024:

Impairment loss for goodwill is recognized if the recoverable amount of the goodwill is less than the carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of fair value less costs of disposal, or value in use of the relevant reporting level (i.e. a CGU of a group of CGU’s).

The Company performed an assessment for goodwill impairment for each of the four cash-generating units (CGUs) that are included within its two reportable
segments, which represent the level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes. Based on this assessment, the Company concluded that
there is no impairment loss for the year ended December 31, 2024, based on the assumptions presented below:

December 31, 2024
IT us
services Applications services Technology_
Carrying amount of cash-generating units $ 91,720 $ 48,191 § 93982 § 26,798
Weighted average cost of capital 16% 16% 15% 13%
Terminal value growth rate 3% 3% 3% 3%

Actual results may differ from those assumed in the Company’s valuation method. It is reasonably possible that the Company’s assumptions described above
could change in future periods. If any of these were to vary materially from the Company’s plans, it may record impairment of goodwill allocated to this
reporting unit in the future.

Based on the Company’s abovementioned assessment as of December 31, 2024, no goodwill was determined to be impaired, since the fair value of the
Company’s group of cash-generating units significantly exceeded their carrying amount.

NOTE 10:- SHORT TERM DEBTS

December 31,
2024
Interest rate December 31,
%o Currency 2023 2024

Short-term loans from banks 6.2-6.8 NIS $ 2,772 $ 1,673
Current maturities of long-term loans from banks Prime + 0.25 - 0.95 NIS 11,226 6,920
Current maturities of long-term loans from banks SOFR + 2.1 - 3.38 USD 13,209 13,516
Accrued interest on long-term debt NIS and USD 1,734 1,078

$ 28,941 $ 23,187
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NOTE 11:- ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Accrued expenses and other accounts payable are comprised of the following as of the below dates:

December 31,

2023 2024
Employees and payroll accruals $ 27,460 $ 36,350
Accrued expenses 9,296 12,469
Government authorities and other 4,736 9,390
Total $ 41,492 § 58,209
NOTE 12:- LONG TERM DEBTS
a. Long term liabilities to banks and others are comprised of the following as of the below dates:
Linkage Interest December 31,
basis rate 2023 2024
%
Loans from banks denominated in New Israeli Shekels (NIS) NIS Prime + 0.25-0.95 $ 29,010 $ 22,158
Long-term loans from banks denominated in U.S. Dollars (USD) USD SOFR +2.1-3.38 47,634 35,410
Other long-term debts JPY 1.71 58 53
$ 76,701 $ 57,621
Less current maturities (24,435) (21,514)

$ 52,267 $ 36,107
b. Maturity dates:

December 31,

2023 2024
First year (Current maturities including accrued interests) $ 24435 § 21,514
Second year 18,731 16,510
Third year 14,617 15,743
Fourth year 15,037 3,854
Fifth year and thereafter 3,881 -
Total $ 76,701  $ 57,621
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NOTE 12:- LONG TERM DEBTS (Cont.)
¢. Financial Covenants:

On March 27, 2023, the Company entered into a loan agreement with an Israeli bank, pursuant to which, the Company borrowed $20 million for a four-
year term (the “March Bank Loan”). The March Bank Loan will mature on March 27, 2027, and will be repaid in four (4) equal annual instalments of
$6.052 million (including interest) starting March 27, 2024. The March Bank Loan bears interest at the rate SOFR + 3.38%. The interest is paid on a
yearly basis.

On June 7, 2023, the Company entered into a loan agreement with an Israeli bank, pursuant to which, the Company borrowed ILS 60 million for a five-
year term (the “June Bank Loan”). The June Bank Loan will mature on May 7, 2028, and will be repaid in five (5) equal annual instalments of ILS 12
million (not including interest) starting May 7, 2024. The June Bank Loan bears an interest rate of prime + 0.92% per annum, payable in two semi-annual
payments.

These two Loans, which may be prepaid under certain circumstances, are subject to various financial covenants which mainly consist of the following:

Under the terms of the loans, the Company has undertaken to maintain the following financial covenants, as they will be expressed in its consolidated
financial statements, as described:

a. The Company’s total equity shall not be lower than $150 million (one hundred and fifty million U.S. Dollars) at all times;

b. The ratio of the Company’s total financial debts less cash, short-term deposits and short-term marketable securities to the total assets will not exceed
30%;

c. The ratio of the Company’s total financial debts less cash, short-term deposits and short-term marketable securities to the annual EBITDA will not
exceed 3.25 to 1.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2024, the Company was in compliance with the financial covenants.
NOTE 13:- RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
Agreements with controlling shareholder and its affiliates:

The Company has in effect agreements with affiliated companies pursuant to which the Company has rendered services amounting to approximately $6,990,
$3,678 and $3,598, in aggregate for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively and acquired services amounting to approximately
$3,088, $3,371 and $5,380 for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2024, the Company had trade and other receivables balances due from its related parties in amount of approximately $5,494 and
$5,494, respectively. In addition, as of December 31, 2023 and 2024, the Company had trade payables balances due from its related parties in amount of
approximately $322 and $2,567, respectively.

NOTE 14:- LEASES

The Company leases all of its office space and vehicles under operating leases. The Company’s leases have original lease periods expiring between 2025 and
2034. Some of the leases include one or more options to renew the lease term. The Company does not assume renewals in its determination of the lease term
unless the renewals are deemed to be reasonably certain at the lease commencement. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise the following: the fixed non-cancellable lease payments, payments for optional renewal periods where it is reasonably certain the renewal period will
be exercised, and payments for early termination options unless it is reasonably certain the lease will not be terminated early.

In July 2020, the Company entered into a lease agreement for its corporate offices in Or Yehuda, Israel. The lease expires in June 2033, with an option by the
Company to extend the lease period for an additional 10-years term. The Company deemed this option as reasonably certain to be renewed.

The Company has several leased offices in the United States, with expiry dates varying between 2025 and 2030, with renewal options varying between 2025
and 2032.
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NOTE 14:- LEASES (Cont.)
In November 2021, one of the Company’s subsidiaries in Israel entered into a lease agreement for its corporate offices. The lease commenced in July 2022
with a lease term through 2029, with an option to terminate the lease after a 4-year term following a 12-month notice in advance, and an option to renew the

lease to an additional 5-year term, through 2034. The Company deemed this option as reasonably certain to be renewed.

Under IFRS 16, all leases with durations greater than 12 months, including non-cancellable operating leases, are recognized on the statement of financial
position. The aggregated present value of lease agreements is recorded as a long-term asset titled operating lease right-of-use assets.

The corresponding lease liabilities are classified between operating lease liabilities which are current and long-term.
Maturity analysis of undiscounted future lease payments for lease liabilities:

December 31,

2024
2025 $ 5,883
2026 4,997
2027 3,126
2028 2,189
2029 1,825
2030 and thereafter 14,670
Total undiscounted cash flows $ 32,690
Less imputed interest (5,832)

Present value of lease liabilities $ 26,858

a. Information on leases:

Year ended December 31,

2023 2024
Expenses relating to operating lease costs $ 2,225 § 2,455
Expenses relating to short-term leases $ 62 § 38
Expenses relating to variable lease payments $ 2,872 § 3,536
Total cash outflow for leases $ 5159 $ 6,029

The following is a summary of weighted average remaining lease terms and discount rates for all of the Company’s operating leases:

December 31,
2024
Weighted average remaining lease term (years) 11.21
Weighted average discount rate 3.79%
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NOTE 14:- LEASES (Cont.)

b. Disclosures in respect of right-of-use assets:

Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2023
Additions during the year:
New leases
Modification of leases
Adjustments for indexation
Adjustments arising from translating financial statements of foreign operations
Business combination
Disposals during the year:
Termination of leases

Balance as of December 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as of January 1, 2023
Additions during the year:
Depreciation
Adjustments arising from translating financial statements of foreign operations
Disposals during the year:
Termination of leases

Balance as of December 31, 2023

Depreciated cost at December 31, 2023
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Motor
Buildings vehicles Total

$ 40,452 § 4871 $ 45,323
1,150 1,575 2,725

910 66 976

871 72 943

37 212 249

62 - 62
(298) (378) (676)

$ 43,184 § 6,418 $ 49,602
15,250 2,537 17,787

3,689 1,470 5,159

929 428 1,357
(192) (227) (419)

19,676 4,208 23,884

$ 23,508 $ 2,210 $ 25,718
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NOTE 14:- LEASES (Cont.)

b. Disclosures in respect of right-of-use assets: (Cont.)

Cost:
Balance as of January 1, 2024
Additions during the year:
New leases
Adjustments for indexation
Adjustments arising from translating financial statements of foreign operations
Business combination
Disposals during the year:
Termination of leases

Balance as of December 31, 2024

Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as of January 1, 2024
Additions during the year:
Depreciation
Adjustments arising from translating financial statements of foreign operations
Disposals during the year:
Termination of leases

Balance as of December 31, 2024

Depreciated cost at December 31, 2024
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Motor
Buildings vehicles Total
$ 43,184 § 6,418 § 49,602
2,086 2,050 4,136
784 75 859
(680) (3,674) (4,354)
314 - 314
(22) (303) (325)
$ 45,666 $ 4,566 $ 50,232
19,676 4,208 23,884
3,816 1,621 5,437
80 (3,661) (3,581)
(10) (205) (215)
23,562 1,963 25,525
$ 22,104 $ 2,603 § 24,707
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NOTE 15:- SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
a. Stock Option Plans of the Company:

Under the Company’s 2007 Stock Option Plan, as amended (“the 2007 Plan”), options may be granted to employees, officers, directors and consultants of
the Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to the 2007 Plan, which is valid until August 1, 2027, the Company reserved 2,750,000 Ordinary shares for
issuance. As of December 31, 2024, an aggregate of 952,500 Ordinary shares of the Company are available for future grants under the 2007 Plan. Each
option granted under the 2007 Plan is exercisable for a period of ten years from the date of the grant of the option.

The exercise price for each option is determined by the Board of Directors and set forth in the Company’s award agreement. Unless determined otherwise
by the Board of Directors, the option exercise price shall be equal to or higher than the share market price at the grant date. The options generally vest
over 3-4 years. Any option that is forfeited or canceled before expiration becomes available for future grants under the 2007 Plan.

The Company recognizes compensation expenses for the value of its awards, which have graded vesting based on the accelerated method over the
requisite service period of each of the awards. The Company accounts for forfeitures as they occur.

The Company uses the Binomial option-pricing model (“the Binomial model”) to estimate the fair value for any options granted. The Binomial model
takes into account variables such as volatility, dividend yield rate, and risk-free interest rate and also allows for the use of dynamic assumptions and
considers the contractual term of the option, the probability that the option will be exercised prior to the end of its contractual life, and the probability of
termination or retirement of the option holder in computing the value of the option.

The fair value of each option granted using the Binomial model, was estimated on the date of grant with the following assumptions: expected volatility
was based upon actual historical stock price movements and was calculated as of the grant dates for different periods, since the Binomial model can be
used for different expected volatilities for different periods. The risk-free interest rate was based on the yield from U.S. Treasury zero-coupon bonds with
an equivalent term to the contractual term of the options. The expected term of options granted was derived from the output of the option valuation model
and represented the period of time that options granted were expected to be outstanding. Estimated forfeitures were based on actual historical pre-vesting
forfeitures. Since dividend payments are applied to reduce the exercise price of the option, the effect of the dividend protection was reflected by using an
expected dividend assumption of zero.

No grants were made to employees or directors in 2023 and 2024. As of December 31, 2023 and 2024, there were no options outstanding or exercisable
under the 2007 Plan.
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NOTE 15:- SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (Cont.)
b. Stock Option Plan of Comm-IT Solutions:

Under the Comm-IT Solutions’ 2022 Stock Option Plan, (“Comm-IT Solutions 2022 Plan”), options may be granted to employees, officers, directors and
consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to Comm-IT Solutions 2022 Plan, Comm-IT Technology Solutions Ltd. (“Comm-IT"”) shall
reserve in its registered and reserved capital, such sufficient number of shares (subject to any adjustment in the capital under the Comm-IT Solutions 2022
Plan) required in order to consummate the Comm-IT Solutions 2022 Plan.

In December 2022, Comm-IT awarded 12 of its senior officers 4,028 options to purchase 4,028 shares of Comm-IT, at an exercise price ranging between
$0.27-$1,812. 827 of the options fully vested upon their grant, whereas the vesting of the remainder of the options are subject to Comm-IT and its
subsidiaries meeting certain EBITDA targets to be achieved by one of the years 2023-2024. In 2023, CommlT fully achieved plan EBITDA targets.
Subject to the achievement of the EBITDA targets, as well as the officers continued employment with Comm-IT throughout 2027, the options will vest at
certain points in time throughout the years 2024 to 2027.

In May 2024, Comm-IT awarded 116 options to four of its senior officers to purchase 116 shares of Comm-IT. The options were granted under the
Comm-IT Solutions 2022 Plan, at an exercise price of $1,812 per share. The options are subject to a vesting schedule and performance conditions similar
to those applicable to the options granted in December 2022, including the achievement of EBITDA targets and continued employment through 2027.

A summary of employee option activity under the Comm-IT Solutions 2022 Plan as of December 31, 2023 and changes during the year ended December
31, 2024 are as follows:

Weighted
average
Weighted remaining
average contractual
Number exercise term
of options price (in years)
Outstanding at January 1, 2024 4,028 § 256.79 6.94
Granted 116 1,767.79
Exercised (451) =
Outstanding at December 31, 2024 3,693 252.74 5.94
Exercisable at December 31, 2024 3,388 $ 142.65 5.93

As of December 31, 2024, there was $176 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested options, which is expected to be recognized in
full over a weighted average period of 1.3 years.

The options outstanding as of December 31, 2024, have been separated into exercise price categories, as follows:

Weighted Weighted
average average
remaining exercise
contractual price of
Options life Options exercisable
Exercise price outstanding (years) exercisable options
In$
- 2,787 5.92 2,787 $ -
116.83 297 5.99 297 116.83
1,475.76 609 5.99 304 1,475.76
3,693 5.94 3,388 § 142.65
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NOTE 15:- SHARE BASED PAYMENTS (Cont.)

b. Stock Option Plan of Comm-IT Solutions: (Cont.)

The fair value of the options granted in 2022 and 2024 using the Binomial model, was estimated on the date of grant with the following assumptions:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2022 2024

Share price $2,110 $3,635
Contractual life 8 years 7 years
Expected exercise factor 1.5 1.5
Dividend yield 0% 0%
Expected volatility (weighted average) 41% 41%
Risk-free interest rate 3.28%-3.65% 5.01%- 4.27%
Fair value of option at the grant date $1,078-$2,126 $2,360

c. Cost of share-based payment:

During the years ended December 31 2022, 2023 and 2024 the Company share-based payment expense under the 2007 plan and Comm-IT Solution 2022
Plan amounted to $2,079, $3,798 and $1,607 respectively, as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Selling and marketing expenses $ 56) $ 225 $ -
General and administrative expenses 2,135 4,023 1,607
$ 2,079 § 3,798 $ 1,607

NOTE 16:- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES

Employee benefits consist of post-employment benefits and termination benefits.

a) Post-employment benefits:

According to the labor laws and Severance Pay Law in Israel, the Israeli companies in the Group are required to pay compensation to an employee upon
dismissal or retirement or to make current contributions in defined contribution plans pursuant to section 14 to the Severance Pay Law, as specified
below. These liabilities are accounted for as a post-employment benefit. The computation of the employee benefit liability is made according to the
current employment contract based on an employee’s salary and employment term which establish the entitlement to receive the compensation.

The post-employment employee benefits are normally financed by contributions classified as a defined benefit plan or as a defined contribution plan, as
detailed below.

1

2)

3)

Defined contribution plans:

Section 14 of the Severance Pay Law, 1963 applies to part of the compensation payments, pursuant to which the fixed contributions paid into pension
funds and/or policies of insurance companies release the Company from any additional liability to employees for whom said contributions were
made. These contributions and contributions for benefits represent defined contribution plans.

Severance expenses for the years 2022, 2023 and 2024 were $7,078, $5,464 and $5,444, respectively.

U.S. employees defined contribution plan:

The Company’s U.S. subsidiaries maintain a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering certain employees in the United States. All eligible
employees may elect to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation to the plan through salary deferrals, subject to applicable limits set by
the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). The U.S. subsidiaries match employee contributions at a rate of 25% of the first 6% of the employee’s annual
compensation contributed to the plan, subject to IRS limits.

Defined benefit plans:

The Company accounts for that part of the payment of compensation that is not covered by contributions in defined contribution plans, as above, as a
defined benefit plan for which an employee benefit liability is recognized and for which the Company deposits amounts in central severance pay
funds and in qualifying insurance policies.
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NOTE 16:- EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES (Cont.)
b) Composition of defined benefit plans is as follows:

December 31,

2023 2024
Defined benefit obligation $ 2,665 $ 2,671
Fair value of plan assets (1,549) (1,490)
Net defined benefit liability $ 1,116 $ 1,181

NOTE 17:- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
a. Guarantees and Collaterals:

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has provided performance bank guarantees as security for the performance of various contracts with customers
as well as to secure future payments in respect of lease agreements in the amount of $3,329 and $1,093, respectively. As of December 31, 2024, the
Company has restricted bank deposits of $23 in favor of the issuing banks.

b. From time to time, the Company and/or its subsidiaries are subject to legal, administrative and regulatory proceedings, claims, demands and
investigations in the ordinary course of business, including claims with respect to intellectual property, contracts, employment and other matters. The
Company accrues a liability when it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. Significant
judgment is required in both the determination of probability and the determination as to whether a loss is reasonably estimable. These accruals are
reviewed and adjusted to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel and other information and events pertaining to a
particular matter.

Lawsuits have been brought against the Company in the ordinary course of business. The Company intends to defend itself vigorously against those
lawsuits.

NOTE 18:- EQUITY

a. The Ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market in the United States and are traded on the Tel-Aviv Stock
Exchange in Israel.

b. Accumulated other comprehensive loss:

December 31,

2023 2024
Accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments (10,340) (12,140)
Accumulated unrealized gain on derivative instruments, net 26 26
Total other comprehensive loss $ (10,314) $ (12,114)

c. Dividend distribution policy

On August 9, 2017, the Company’s Board of Directors decided to amend the dividend distribution policy announced in 2012. According to the
Company’s amended policy, each year the Company will distribute a dividend of up to 75% of its annual distributable profits. The Company’s Board of
Directors may at its discretion and at any time, change, whether as a result of a one-time decision or a change in policy, the rate of dividend distributions
and/or decide not to distribute a dividend, all at its discretion.

On March 2, 2022, the Company declared a dividend distribution of $0.216 per share ($10,612 in the aggregate) which was paid on April 7, 2022. On
August 11, 2022, the Company declared a dividend distribution of $0.29 per share ($14,237 in the aggregate) which was paid on September 13, 2022.

On March 9, 2023, the Company declared a dividend distribution of $0.3 per share ($14.7 million in the aggregate) which was paid on April 20, 2023. On
August 14, 2023, the Company declared a dividend distribution of $0.327 per share ($16.1 million in the aggregate) which was paid on September 13,
2023.

On May 16, 2024, the Company declared a dividend distribution of $0.204 per share ($10 million in the aggregate) which was paid on July 11, 2024. On

November 18, 2024, the Company declared a dividend distribution of $0.236 per share ($11.6 million in the aggregate) which was paid on January 8,
2025.
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NOTE 19:- INCOME TAX

1)

2)

Corporate tax rate in Israel:

Taxable income of Israeli companies was generally subject to corporate tax at the rate of 23% in 2023 and 2024. Some of our Israeli subsidiaries are
eligible for certain tax benefits, as described below.

Tax benefits under the Israeli Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 (the “Law”):

Amendment 73 to the law:

In December 2016, the Economic Efficiency Law (Legislative Amendments for Applying the Economic Policy for the 2017 and 2018 Budget Years)
2016, which includes Amendment 73 to the Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investments (“the 2017 Amendment”) was published and was
pending the publication of regulations, in May 2017 regulations were promulgated by the Finance Ministry to implement the “Nexus Principles”
based on OECD guidelines published as part of the Base Erosion and Profit Shifting (BEPS) project. Following the publication of the regulations the
2017 Amendment became fully effective. According to the 2017 Amendment, a Preferred Technological Enterprise, as defined in the 2017
Amendment, with total consolidated revenues less than NIS 10 billion, shall be subject to 12% tax rate on income derived from intellectual property
(in development area A—a tax rate of 7.5%). In order to qualify as a Preferred technological enterprise certain criterion must be met, such as a
minimum ratio of annual R&D expenditure and R&D employees, as well as having at least 25% of annual revenues derived from exports.

The 2017 Amendment further provides that a technology company satisfying certain conditions will qualify as a Special Preferred Technology
Enterprise (“SPTE”) (an enterprise for which, among others, total consolidated revenues of its parent company and all subsidiaries is at least NIS 10
billion) and will thereby enjoy a reduced corporate tax rate of 6% on PTI regardless of the company’s geographic location within Israel. In addition, a
SPTE will enjoy a reduced corporate tax rate of 6% on capital gain derived from the sale of certain “Benefited Intangible Assets” to a related foreign
company if the Benefited Intangible Assets were either developed by the Special Preferred Technology Enterprise or acquired from a foreign
company on or after January 1, 2017.

Starting from 2017 under Amendment 73 to the Investment Law, part of the Company’s taxable income in Israel is entitled to a preferred 12% tax
rate. Since 2019, under SPTE the tax rate for part of the Company’s taxable income in Israel has been reduced to a 6% corporate tax rate.

One of Company’s Israeli subsidiaries has elected to apply the new incentives regime under the Amendment to their industrial activity in Israel,
subject to meeting its requirements, starting in 2011.

In 2015, the Company transitioned to the preferred enterprise track entitling it to a preferred 16% tax rate under Amendment 73 to the Investment
Law.

Amendment 74 to the Encouragement Law:

On November 15, 2021, the Economic Efficiency Law (Legislative Amendments for Achieving Budget Targets for the 2021 and 2022 Budget
Years), 2021 (the “Economic Efficiency Law”), was enacted. This Law establishes a temporary order allowing Israeli companies to release tax-
exempt earnings (“trapped earnings” or “accumulated earnings”) accumulated until December 31, 2020, through a mechanism established for a
reduced corporate income tax rate applicable to those earnings (the “Temporary Order”).

In addition to the reduced corporate income tax (CIT) rate, Article 74 to the Encouragement Law was amended whereby effective from August 15,
2021, for any dividend distribution (including a dividend as per Article 51B to the Encouragement Law) by a company which has trapped earnings,
there will be a requirement to allocate a portion of that distribution to the trapped earnings.

The tax-exempt income is attributable to certain Group members’ previous status as “Approved Enterprise” and “Benefited Enterprise”. Such tax-
exempt income cannot be distributed to shareholders without subjecting the Company to payable income taxes. If dividends are distributed from
previous tax-exempt profits, the Company will be liable for income tax at the rate applicable to its profits from the Approved Enterprise in at the tax
rate enacted in the year in which the income was earned.
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NOTE 19:- INCOME TAX (Cont.)

3)

4)

According to the Temporary Order, the reduction of CIT will apply to earnings that are released (with no requirement for an actual distribution)
within a period of one year from the date of enactment of the Temporary Order. The reduction in the CIT is dependent on the proportion of the
trapped earnings that are released in relation to the total trapped earnings, and on the applicable CIT rate in the years the earnings were generated.
Consequently, the larger the proportion of the trapped earnings that are released, the lower the tax in respect of the distribution. The minimum tax
rate is 6%. Further, a company that elects to pay a reduced CIT is required to invest in its industrial enterprise a designated amount in accordance
with the Economic Efficiency Law within a period of five years commencing from the tax year in which the election is made. The designated
investment should be utilized for the acquisition of production assets, and/or investments in research and development and/or compensation to
additional new employees.

In November 2022, the Company elected to benefit from the Temporary Order and filed its application for the Temporary Order and paid the
required reduced CIT as per the provisions of the Economic Efficiency Law in respect of its total accumulated tax-exempt earnings amounting to NIS
25,022 (approximately $7,100), and accordingly recognized a tax expense of NIS 2,502 (approximately $711). As of December 31, 2022, all the
trapped earnings were released.

The Company and its Israeli subsidiaries have received final tax assessments (or assessments that are deemed final) through the year 2019.
Tax benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxes), 1969:

The Company qualifies as an Industrial Company within the meaning of the Law for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxes), 1969 (the “Industrial
Encouragement Law”). The Industrial Encouragement Law defines an “Industrial Company” as a company that is resident in Israel and that derives
at least 90% of its income in any tax year, other than income from defense loans, capital gains, interest and dividends, from an enterprise whose
major activity in a given tax year is industrial production. Under the Industrial Encouragement Law, the Company is entitled to amortization of the
cost of purchased know-how and patents over an eight-year period for tax purposes as well as accelerated depreciation rates on equipment and
buildings.

Eligibility for the benefits under the Industrial Encouragement Law is not subject to receipt of prior approval from any governmental authority.
Foreign Exchange Regulations:

Under the Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Company calculates its tax liability in U.S. dollars according to certain orders. The tax liability, as
calculated in U.S. dollars is translated into NIS according to the exchange rate as of December 31 of each year.

Income tax on non-Israeli subsidiaries:

Non-Israeli subsidiaries are taxed according to the tax laws in their respective domiciles of residence. If earnings are distributed to Israel in the form
of dividends or otherwise, the Company may be subject to additional Israeli income taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and
foreign withholding tax rates.

Neither Israeli income taxes, foreign withholding taxes nor deferred income taxes were provided in relation to undistributed earnings of the non-
Israeli subsidiaries. This is because the Company intends to permanently reinvest undistributed earnings in the foreign subsidiaries in which those
earnings arose. If these earnings were distributed in the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company would be subject to additional Israeli income
taxes (subject to an adjustment for foreign tax credits) and non-Israeli withholding taxes.

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had $36,911 of cash and cash equivalents that are currently held outside of Israel that would be subject to
income taxes if distributed as dividends. However, a determination of the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability for temporary difference
related to those undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries is not practicable due to the complexity of the structure of our group of subsidiaries for
tax purposes and the difficulty of projecting the amount of future tax liability.

F-54




MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 19:- INCOME TAX (Cont.)
5) Net operating loss carried forward:
As of December 31, 2024, some of the Israeli subsidiaries of the Company had operating loss carryforwards of $9,182 (mainly F.T.S Formula
Telecom Solutions, Ltd. which accounts for $8,177), which can be carried forward to offset against taxable income in the future for an indefinite

period.

One of the Company’s subsidiaries in England had estimated total available tax loss carryforwards of $3,589 as of December 31, 2024, which can be
carried forward to offset against future taxable income.

Some of the the Company’s subsidiaries in the U.S. had estimated total available tax loss carryforwards of $8,663 as of December 31, 2024, which
can be carried forward to offset against future taxable income.

6) Presentation of net deferred tax assets and liabilities, in the consolidated statements of financial position:

December 31,

2023 2024
Deferred taxes assets $ 6,729 $ 4,895
Deferred tax liabilities (11,610) (7,848)
$ (4,881) $ (2,953)

7) Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,

2023 2024

Deferred tax liabilities:

Intangible assets $ 13,789 §$ 10,162

Reserves and allowances 530 384

Right-of-use assets 5,169 5,121
Gross deferred tax liabilities $ 19,488 § 15,667
Deferred tax assets:

Carry-forwards losses $ 3,668 $ 2,092

Intangible assets 1,495 494

Reserves and allowances 4,054 4,603

Lease liabilities 5,390 5,525
Gross deferred tax assets $ 14,607 $ 12,714
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (4,881) $ (2’953)

8) Taxes on income are comprised as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Current:
Domestic $ 11,368 § 11,108 § 11,793
Foreign 6,304 5 1,103
17,672 11,113 12,896
Deferred taxes:
Domestic (1,318) (1,588) (2,984)
Foreign (5,216) 409 1,416
(6,534) (1,179) (1,568)
Taxes on income $ 11,138 § 9,934 §$ 11,328
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NOTE 19:- INCOME TAX (Cont.)

9) Theoretical tax:

The following table presents reconciliation between the theoretical tax expense, assuming that all income was taxed at statutory tax rates, and the
actual income tax expense, as recorded in the Company’s consolidated statements of profit or loss:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024

Income before income taxes, as per the statement of operations $ 57417 $ 52,436 $ 54,619
Statutory tax rate in Israel 23% 23% 23%
Tax computed at the statutory tax rate 13,205 12,060 12,562

Tax adjustment in respect of different tax rates (1,756) (1,345) (3,052)
Deferred taxes on losses for which deferred taxes were not created (511) (2,764) (587)
Tax-deductible costs, not included in the accounting costs (2,680) - -
Non-deductible expenses and tax expenses in respect of prior years, net 2,670 534 1,111
Uncertain tax positions and other 210 1,448 1,294
Taxes on income $ 11,138  $ 9,934 § 11,328

10) Pillar Two:

In December 2021, the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development (“OECD”) released the Pillar Two Model Rules (also referred to
as the global minimum tax or Global Anti-Base Erosion (“GloBE”) rules), which aim to ensure that multinational enterprises are subject to a
minimum level of taxation in each jurisdiction where they operate. The rules establish a global minimum tax rate of 15%, calculated on a
jurisdictional basis for companies with revenue exceeding €750 million, and, therefore, they apply to the Asseco Group (and to the Company as a
member of the Asseco Group). Several jurisdictions in which the Company operates have enacted legislation implementing these rules, with an
effective date of January 1, 2024. The Pillar Two Rules did not have an impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2024. The Company will continue to monitor legislative developments and assess the potential impact on its financial
statements.
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NOTE 20:- REVENUE RECOGNITION

Remaining performance obligations represent contract revenue that has not yet been recognized, which includes deferred revenue and amounts that will be
invoiced and recognized as revenue in future periods. The aggregate amount of consideration allocated to performance obligations either not satisfied or
partially unsatisfied was approximately $137.5 million as of December 31, 2024. The Company expects to recognize approximately 88% in 2025 from
remaining performance obligations as of December 31, 2024, and the remainder thereafter. Remaining performance obligations include the remaining non-
cancelable, committed and fixed portion of these contracts for their entire duration; the remaining performance obligations related to professional services
contracts that are on a time and materials basis were excluded, as the Company elected to apply the practical expedient in accordance with IFRS 15.

Contract balances:

The following table provides information about trade receivables, unbilled receivables, contract assets, and contract liabilities (deferred revenues) from
contracts with customers (in thousands):

December 31,

2023 2024
Trade receivables (net of allowance for credit losses of $7,066 and $7,906 at December 31, 2023 and 2024, respectively) $ 108,385 $ 123,133
Unbilled receivables 15,953 11,583
Contract assets 6,760 5,100
Long-term unbilled receivables *) 2,240 1,783
Long-term trade receivables *) 1,029 901
Deferred revenues (short-term contract liabilities) $ 13,537  $ 21,031
*) Included in Other long-term receivables in the consolidated statements of financial position.
An analysis of past due but not impaired trade receivables with reference to reporting date:
Past due trade receivables with aging of
Neither
past Unpaid Allowance Total trade
due nor Up to 30 31-60 61-90 91-120 Over 121 deferred  for credit receivables,
impaired days days days days days Total revenues losses net

December 31, 2023 $ 71,545 8 30,191 § 7,065 $ 3,407 § 1,801 § 15,818 § 129,826 $ (14,375)$ (7,066) $ 108,385

December 31, 2024 $ 83529 % 282958 9,258 § 4,519 § 2,371 $ 14,502 $ 142474 §  (11,435)$ (7,906) § 123,133

Trade receivables are recorded when the right to consideration becomes unconditional, and an invoice is issued to the customer.
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 20:- REVENUE RECOGNITION (Cont.)
Contract balances: (Cont.)

Billing terms and conditions generally vary by contract type. Amounts are billed as work progresses in accordance with agreed-upon contractual terms, either
at periodic intervals (e.g., monthly or quarterly) or upon achievement of contractual milestones.

Unbilled receivables relate to revenue recognized in excess of amounts invoiced as the Company has an unconditional right to invoice and receive payment in
the future related to its fulfilled obligations.

Contract assets relate to unbilled receivables, which represent revenue recognized on arrangements for which billings have not yet been presented to
customers because the amounts were earned but not contractually billable as of the balance sheet date, and the right to consideration is generally subject to
milestone completion, client acceptance or factors other than the passage of time.

Deferred revenues represent contract liabilities, and include unearned amounts received under contracts with customers and not yet recognized as revenues.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recognized $13,537 that was included in deferred revenues (short-term contract liability) balance at
December 31, 2023.

Revenue by timing of revenue recognition was as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Products and services transferred over time $ 533,862 $ 502,358 $ 514,354
Products transferred at a point in time 32,930 32,694 38,166
566,792 535,052 552,520

NOTE 21:- SELECTED STATEMENTS OF INCOME DATA
a. Research and development costs, net:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Total costs $ 13,149 $ 13,511  § 15,960
Less - capitalized software costs (3,059) (3,183) (2,650)
Research and development, net $ 10,000 $ 10,328  § 13,310

b. Selling and marketing expenses:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Salary and related expenses $ 33474 $ 31,188 $ 30,078
Advertising expenses 2,676 2,802 2,778
Cost of share-based payment (56) (225) -
Others 10,763 10,735 9,244
Total selling and marketing expenses $ 46,857 $ 44,500 § 42,100
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 21:- SELECTED STATEMENTS OF INCOME DATA (Cont.)
c. General and administrative expenses:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Salary and related expenses 21492 % 27425 % 21,754
Consultants 5,335 4,726 4,394
Cost of share-based payment 2,135 4,023 1,607
Others 8,590 4,637 14,254
Total general and administrative expenses 37,552 $ 40,811 $ 42,009

d. The following table provides detailed breakdown of the Company’s financial income and expenses:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024
Financial expenses:
Interest expenses on loans and borrowings 1,743 5,039 5,621
Interest expenses attributed to leases 691 964 1,116
Bank charges, negative foreign exchange differences and other financial expenses 2,559 3,224 2,366
4,993 9,227 9,103
Financial income:
Interest income attributed to bank deposits 305 1,166 1,856
Interest income from deposits, positive foreign exchange differences and other financial income 1,087 3,735 1,307
1,392 4,901 3,163
Financial expenses, net $ 3,601 $ 4326 $ 5,940

e. Earnings per share:
The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted net earnings per share for the Company:

Year ended December 31,

2022 2023 2024

Numerator:

Net income attributable to Magic shareholders $ 40,470 $ 37,031 $ 36,883
Denominator:

Basic earnings per share - weighted average shares outstanding 49,089,044 49,095,760 49,099,305
Effect of dilutive securities 42,267 2,660 -
Diluted earnings per share — adjusted weighted average shares outstanding 49,131,311 49,098,420 49,099,305
Basic and diluted net earnings per share 0.82 0.75 0.75
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 22:- REPORTABLE SEGMENTS
a. The Company reports its results on the basis of two reportable business segments: software solutions (which include proprietary and non-proprietary
software technology) and IT professional services. The Company’s chief operating decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer who makes operating

decisions, assesses performance and allocates resources on a consolidated basis.

The Company evaluates segment performance based on revenues and operating income of each segment. The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as those described in the summary of material accounting policies.

Headquarters’ general and administrative costs have not been allocated between the two segments.
Software solutions

The Company develops, markets, sells and supports both proprietary and non-proprietary application platforms, software applications, business and
process integration solutions and related services.

IT professional services

The Company offers advanced and flexible IT services in the areas of infrastructure design and delivery, application development, technology planning
and implementation services, communications services and solutions, as well as supplemental outsourcing services.

There are no significant transactions between the two segments.

b. The following is information about reportable segment results of operation:

IT

Software professional Unallocated

solutions services expense Total
2022
Total revenues $ 99,374 $ 467418 $ - 5 566,792
Expenses 72,115 427,446 5,469 505,030
Operating income (loss) $ 27259 $ 39972 $ (5,469) $ 61,762
Depreciation and amortization $ 10,321  $ 9,102 $ 372 $ 19,795
2023
Total revenues $ 92,906 $ 442,146 $ - % 535,052
Expenses 71,863 400,949 5,132 477,944
Operating income (loss) $ 21,043 $ 41,197 $ (5,132) $ 57,108
Depreciation and amortization $ 9,717 $ 10,432 $ 404 $ 20,553
2024
Total revenues $ 94903 §$ 457,617 $ - $ 552,520
Expenses 69,268 417,746 4,269 491,283
Operating income (loss) $ 25,635 $ 39871  $ (4,269 $ 61,237
Depreciation and amortization $ 8204 § 11,368  $ 1,190 $ 20,762
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands, except share and per share data

NOTE 22:- REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (Cont.)

c. The Company’s business is conducted in the following geographic areas: United States, Israel, Europe, Japan and other regions. Total revenues are

attributed to geographic areas based on the location of the customers.

The following table presents total revenues classified according to geographical destination for the years ended December 31 2022, 2023 and 2024:

Year ended December 31,
2022 2023 2024

United States $ 308,485 $ 250,842 § 229,076
Israel 205,258 214,129 244,520
Europe 39,247 55,180 62,409
Japan 10,121 10,847 12,673
Other 3,681 4,054 3,842
Total revenues $ 566,792 $ 535,052 $ 552,520

d. The Company’s long-lived assets are located as follows:

December 31,

2022 2023 2024
United States $ 82,325 §$ 77,120 $ 83,733
Israel 148,819 158,144 151,591
Europe 7,885 7,596 6,786
Japan 4,696 4,222 4,664
Other 2,905 3,347 3,202

$ 246,630 $ 250,429 $ 249,976

The Company does not allocate its assets or liabilities to its reportable segments; accordingly, asset or liabilities information by reportable segments is not
presented.

In 2023 and 2024, the Company had one major customer, included in the IT professional services segment, which accounted for 11.2% and 8.4% of the
Company revenues, respectively.

NOTE 23:- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

a.

On March 11, 2025, the Company entered a non-binding Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with Matrix LT Ltd., a related party and a leading
Israeli IT services company, regarding a potential merger. Under the proposed transaction, Matrix would acquire 100% of the Company’s share capital
through a reverse triangular merger. Upon completion of the merger, Magic’s shareholders would hold approximately 31.125% and Matrix’s shareholders
approximately 68.875% of the combined company, on a fully diluted basis. The transaction is subject to the completion of due diligence, execution of a
definitive agreement, regulatory approvals, and shareholder approvals, including approval by a special majority of minority shareholders in accordance
with Israeli law. As of the date of approval of these financial statements, the merger has not been completed and there is no certainty that it will be
completed.

On March 11, 2025, in accordance with its dividend distribution policy, Magic’s board of directors declared a semi-annual cash dividend of $0.327 per
ordinary share for a total amount of approximately $16,055. The total cash dividend will be paid on May 7, 2025, which together with prior dividend
distribution declared on November 18, 2024 and paid on January 8, 2025, amount to $27,642, reflecting approximately 75% of Magic’s distributable
profits for the year ended December 31, 2024.

In April 2025, the Company completed a transaction to acquire additional ordinary shares of its Comm-IT subsidiary. Pursuant to the transaction, the
Company’s ownership interest in CommlIT increased from 68.15% to approximately 79.32% on a fully diluted basis. The aggregate cash consideration
paid to the selling shareholders amounted to approximately NIS 50.4 million. Following the transaction, CommIT remains a consolidated subsidiary of
the Company. The transaction will be accounted for as an equity transaction with non-controlling interests in accordance with IFRS 10, and no gain or
loss will be recognized in profit or loss.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Magic Software Japan K. K.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Magic Software Japan K.K. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2023, and
the related statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity, and cash flows and for each of the two years in the period ended December
31, 2023, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”). In our opinion, based on our audits the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the
two years in the period ended December 31, 2023 in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the Company
in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing
procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to
those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Tokyo, Japan
May 13, 2024 /s/ KDA Audit Corporation
KDA Audit Corporation
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SIGNATURES

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it has duly caused and authorized the undersigned
to sign this annual report on its behalf.

MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

By: /s/ Guy Bernstein
Name: Guy Bernstein
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

Dated: May 14, 2025
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
U.S. dollars in thousands

June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
Unaudited
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 89,957 $ 112,779
Short-term bank deposits - 51
Trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of
$8,387 and $7,906 as of June 30, 2025
and December 31, 2024, respectively) 133,039 123,133
Unbilled receivables and contract assets 19,900 16,683
Other accounts receivable and prepaid expenses 22,856 23,553
Total current assets 265,752 276,199
LONG-TERM ASSETS:
Deferred tax assets 5,735 4,895
Right-of-use assets 25,490 24,707
Other long-term receivables 10,179 9,261
Property and equipment, net 8,303 7,467
Intangible assets, net 44,042 45,287
Goodwill 182,151 172,515
Total long-term assets 275,900 264,132
$ 541,652  $ 540,331

TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.



MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

U.S. dollars in thousands

June 30, December 31,
2025 2024
Unaudited
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Short-term debt $ 28,531 $ 23,187
Trade payables 25,358 28,753
Dividend payable to Magic Software shareholders - 11,587
Accrued expenses and other accounts payable 55,973 58,209
Current maturities of lease liabilities 4,537 4,818
Put options for non-controlling interests 22,846 20,066
Liability in respect of business combinations 4,249 2,654
Deferred revenues and customer advances 23,802 21,031
Total current liabilities 165,296 170,305
LONG TERM LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt 41,573 36,107
Long-term lease liabilities 23,326 22,040
Liability in respect of business combinations - 1,781
Deferred tax liabilities 7,847 7,848
Employee benefit liabilities 1,313 1,181
Total long-term liabilities 74,059 68,957
EQUITY:
Magic Software Enterprises Ltd shareholders’ equity:
Share capital:
Ordinary shares of NIS 1 par value - Authorized: 50,000,000 shares as of,
June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024; Issued and Outstanding:
49,099,305 shares as of June 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 1,166 1,166
Additional paid-in capital 169,722 180,336
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,194) (12,114)
Retained earnings 111,143 107,302
Total equity attributable to Magic Software Enterprises Ltd shareholders 278,837 277,190
Non-controlling interests 23,460 23,879
Total equity 302,297 301,069
Total liabilities and equity 541,652 540,331

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.




MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

Six months ended Three months ended Year ended
June 30, June 30, December 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024 2024
Unaudited Unaudited
Revenues:
Software solutions $ 23,325 $ 18,360 $ 12,122 $ 9,238 $ 38,166
Maintenance and technical support 17,957 17,263 9,184 8,002 34,774
Consulting services 257,696 231,347 130,336 119,010 479,580
Cost of revenues:
Software solutions 5,362 5,231 2,513 2,359 10,903
Maintenance and technical support 1,727 1,652 887 802 3,235
Consulting services 208,884 184,545 105,868 94,246 380,555
Total cost of revenues 215,973 191,428 109,268 97,407 394,693
Gross profit 83,005 75,542 42,374 38,843 157,827
Research and development expenses, net 6,672 5,640 3,425 2,847 13,310
Selling and marketing expenses 23,168 20,547 12,376 10,678 42,100
General and administrative expenses 21,778 19,462 10,929 10,157 42,009
Change in valuation of contingent consideration
related to acquisitions - 427 - 121 (829)
Operating income 31,387 29,466 15,644 15,040 61,237
Financial expenses (9,671) (5,729) (5,622) (3,730) (9,103)
Financial income 7,982 3,016 4931 2,547 3,163
Increase in valuation of contingent consideration
related to acquisitions (101) (166) 34) (52) (302)
Company’s share of losses of a company
accounted for at equity, net (292) (149) (166) (85) (376)
Income before taxes on income 29,305 26,438 14,753 13,720 54,619
Taxes on income 6,236 5,769 3,324 3,040 11,328
. S 23,069 20,669 $ 11,429 $ 10,680 $ 43,291
Net income
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 19,396 17,830 9,918 9,033 36,883
Non-controlling interests 3,673 2,839 1,511 1,647 6,408
$ 23,069 20,669 $ 11,429 $ 10,680 $ 43,291
Net earnings per share attributable to equity
holders of the Company
Basic and diluted earnings per share $ 0.40 $ 0.36 $ 020 $ 0.18 $ 0.75

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

Year ended
Six months ended Three months ended December
June 30, June 30, 31,
2025 2024 2025 2024 2024
Unaudited Unaudited

Net income § 23,069 $ 20,669 $ 11,429 $ 10,680 § 43,291
Other comprehensive income (loss) net of tax effect:
Amounts that will be or that have been reclassified to profit or loss when specific conditions are met:
Foreign exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations 11,220 (5,448) 12,713 (2,770) (1,923)
Total other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 11,220 (5,448) 12,713 (2,770) (1,923)
Total comprehensive income 34,289 15,221 24,142 7,910 41,368
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 28,316 13,557 19,686 6,953 35,083
Non-controlling interests 5,973 1,664 4,456 957 6,285

$ 342890 § 15221 § 24,142 $ 7,910

$ 41,368

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.



MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

Balance as of January
1, 2025

Net income
Other comprehensive
loss

Total comprehensive
income

Dividend to Magic
Software shareholders

Dividend to non-
controlling interests in
subsidiaries

Cost of share-based
payment

Excess tax benefit from
share-based payment
recognized in equity

Acquisition of non-
controlling interests

Settlement of put
options over non-
controlling interest

Balance as of June 30,
2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Accumulated
Additional Other Non-

Share Capital paid-in Retained Comprehensive controlling Total

Number Amount capital earnings Income (loss) interests Equity
49,099,305 $ 1,166 $ 180,336 $ 107,802 $ (12,114) $ 23,879 $ 301,069
- - - 19,396 - 3,673 23,069
- - - - 8,920 2,300 11,220
- - - 19,396 8,920 5,973 34,289
- - - (16,055) - - (16,055)
- - - - - (2,446) (2,446)
- - - - - 37 37
- - 787 - - 179 966
- - (10,627) - - (3,195) (13,822)
- - (774) - - (967) (1,741)
49,099,305 § 1,166 $ 169,722 $ 111,143 $ (3,194) § 23,460 $ 302,297




MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

U.S. dollars in thousands (except per share data)

Accumulated
Additional Other Non-
Share Capital paid-in Retained Comprehensive controlling Total
Number Amount capital earnings Income (loss) interests Equity
Balance as of January 1,

2024 49,099,305 $ 1,166 $ 182,607 $ 92,522 $ (10,314) $ 24,963 $ 290,944
Net income - - - 36,883 - 6,408 43,291
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (1,800) (123) (1,923)
Total comprehensive

income - - - 36,883 (1,800) 6,285 41,368
Dividend to Magic

Software shareholders - - - (21,603) - - (21,603)
Dividend to non-

controlling interests in

subsidiaries - - - - - (9,988) (9,988)
Cost of share-based

payment - - - - - 1,607 1,607
Non-controlling interests

arising from initially

consolidated

companies - - - - - 80 80
Initial recognition of non-

controlling interests - - 81 - - 90 171
Acquisition of non-

controlling interests - - - - - (314) (314)
Settlement of put options

over non-controlling

interest - - (2,352) - - 1,156 (1,196)
Balance as of December

31, 2024 49,099,305 $ 1,166 $ 180,336 $ 107,802 $ (12,114) $ 23,879 $ 301,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.



MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
U.S. dollars in thousands

Six months Six months

ended ended Year ended
June 30, June 30, December 31,
2025 2024 2024

Unaudited Unaudited

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income $ 23,069 $ 20,669 $ 43,291
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 10,996 10,106 20,762
Cost of share-based payment 37 1,195 1,607
Change in deferred taxes, net (1,244) (1,559) (1,564)
Payments of contingent consideration related to acquisitions - - (922)
Capital loss on sale of fixed assets 19 - 7
Change in value of financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss 67 - (27)
Effect of exchange rate on of cash and cash equivalents held in
currencies other than the functional currency (1,318) 389 (82)
Changes in value of short-term and long-term loans from banks and
others and deposits, net (591) (1,089) (676)
Working capital adjustments:
Trade receivables (3,980) 100 (4,583)
Accrued expenses and other accounts payable (3,504) 3,794 13,647
Other current and long-term accounts receivable 1,368 (2,071) (4,746)
Trade payables (4,961) 1,941 510
Deferred revenues 1,297 7,904 7,609
21,255 41,379 74,833

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
U.S. dollars in thousands

Six months Six months Year ended
ended June 30, ended June 30, December 31,
2025 2024 2024

Unaudited Unaudited

Cash flows from investing activities:

Capitalized software development costs (988) (1,483) (2,650)
Purchase of property and equipment (827) (618) (1,535)

Cash paid in conjunction with deferred payments and
contingent liabilities related to business combinations (1,828) (7,238) (6,852)
Payments for business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (3,614) (10,248) (12,489)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 47 - 45
Proceeds from sale (purchase) of financial assets, net (532) 968 585
Change in short-term and long-term deposits 44 521 482
Investment in a company accounted for at equity - (123) (198)
(7,698) (18,221) (22,612)

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from sale of non-controlling interest - 174 -
Dividend paid to Magic Software shareholders (27,642) - (10,016)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (5,232) (2,210) (7,870)
Repayment of lease liabilities (3,109) (2,956) (6,029)
Purchase of non-controlling interest (13,822) (314) (314)
Receipt of short-term and long-term loans from banks and
others 26,376 10,707 12,603
Repayment of short-term and long-term loans (18,624) (25,018) (33,695)
Cash paid due to exercise of put option by non-controlling
interests - - 176
Net cash used in financing activities (42,053) (a9,617) (45,145)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 5,674 (1,842) (240)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (22,822) 1,699 6,836
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 112,779 105,943 105,943
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period $ 89,957 § 107,642 § 112,779

accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed interim consolidated financial statements.



MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 1: GENERAL

1)

2)

3)

i

Magic Software Enterprises Ltd., an Israeli company (“the Company” or “Magic”), is a leading global provider of: (i)
proprietary application development and business process integration platforms that accelerate the planning, development,
deployment and integration of on-premise, mobile and cloud business applications (“the Magic Technology™); (ii) selected
packaged vertical software solutions; and (iii) software services and IT outsourcing services.

Magic’s software solutions and software services enable enterprises to accelerate the process of delivering business solutions
that meet current and future needs and allow customers to dramatically improve their business performance and return on
investment. To complement its software products and to increase its traction with customers, the Company also offers a
complete portfolio of software services in the areas of infrastructure design and delivery, application development, technology
planning and implementation services, communications services and solutions, and supplemental IT professional outsourcing
services. The Company reports its results on the basis of two reportable business segments: software solutions (which include
proprietary and non-proprietary software solutions, maintenance and support and related services) and IT professional services
(see Note 3 for further details).

The Company’s principal markets are in the United States, Israel, Europe and Japan.

These financial statements have been prepared in a condensed format as of June 30, 2025, and for the three-month and six-
month periods then ended (“the interim consolidated financial statements”). The interim condensed consolidated financial
statements as of June 30, 2025, include those of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). These condensed interim
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s annual consolidated financial statements
as of December 31, 2024, and for the year then ended, including the accompanying notes (“the annual consolidated financial
statements”).

Our controlling shareholder, Formula Systems (1985) Ltd., (“Formula Systems”) beneficially owns approximately 46.71% of
our outstanding ordinary shares. Asseco Poland S.A., (“Asseco”), a Polish company listed on Warsaw Stock Exchange,
beneficially owns 25.82% of the outstanding shares of Formula Systems.

NOTE 2: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in the condensed interim consolidated financial statements for all
periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

1)

2)

Basis of presentation of the interim consolidated financial statements

The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IAS)
34, Interim Financial Reporting.

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of the interim consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
applied in the preparation of the annual consolidated financial statements.

Accounting pronouncements adopted in the current period or not yet adopted:

o In August 2023, the IASB issued “Amendments to IAS 21: Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21, “The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”)” (“the Amendments™) to clarify how an entity should assess whether a currency
is exchangeable and how it should measure and determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking.

The Amendments set out the requirements for determining the spot exchange rate when a currency lacks exchangeability.
The Amendments require disclosure of information that will enable users of financial statements to understand how a
currency not being exchangeable affects or is expected to affect the entity’s financial performance, financial position and
cash flows.

The Amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.

F-10



MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 2: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont.)

The Amendments did not have a material impact on the interim consolidated financial statements.
e [FRS 18 — Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
In April 2024, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued International Financial Reporting Standard 18

(IFRS 18), Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (hereinafter: “the new standard”), which replaces
International Accounting Standard 1 (IAS 1), Presentation of Financial Statements.

The objective of the new standard is to enhance comparability and transparency in financial statements.

IFRS 18 incorporates existing requirements from IAS 1 as well as introduces new requirements for the presentation in the
statement of profit or loss, including presentation of specified line items and subtotals as required by the new standard,
disclosures regarding management-defined performance measures (MPMs), and new requirements for the aggregation and
disaggregation of financial information.

The new standard does not change the recognition and measurement principles of items in the financial statements.
However, since items in the statement of profit or loss will need to be classified into one of five categories (operating,

investing, financing, income taxes, and discontinued operations), it may affect the entity’s reported operating profit.

In addition, the issuance of IFRS 18 has resulted in limited amendments to other accounting standards, including IAS 7 —
Statement of Cash Flows, and IAS 34 — Interim Financial Reporting.

The new standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027. Early
adoption is permitted, with appropriate disclosure, for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new standard, including the effect of the related amendments to
other accounting standards, on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 3: REPORTABLE SEGMENTS
a. The Company reports its results on the basis of two reportable business segments: software solutions (which include
proprietary and non-proprietary software technology) and IT professional services. The Company’s chief operating

decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer who makes operating decisions, assesses performance and allocates resources
on a consolidated basis.

The Company evaluates segment performance based on revenues and operating income of each segment. The accounting
policies of the reportable segments are the same as those described in the summary of material accounting policies.

Headquarters’ general and administrative costs have not been allocated between the two segments.
Software solutions

The Company develops, markets, sells and supports both proprietary and non-proprietary application platforms, software
applications, business and process integration solutions and related services.

IT professional services
The Company offers advanced and flexible IT services in the areas of infrastructure design and delivery, application
development, technology planning and implementation services, communications services and solutions, as well as

supplemental outsourcing services.

There are no significant transactions between the two segments.



MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 3: REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (Cont.)

b. The following is information about reportable segment results of operation:

IT

Software professional Unallocated

solutions services expense Total
Six months ended June 30, 2025
Total revenues $ 48296 $ 250,682 $ - $§ 298,978
Expenses 35,759 229,057 2,775 267,591
Operating income (loss) $ 12,537 $ 21,625 $ (2,775) $ 31,387
Depreciation and amortization $ 3851 §$ 6,471 $ 674 $ 10,996
Six months ended June 30, 2024
Total revenues $ 48,121 $ 218,849 $ - $ 266970
Expenses 34,196 200,462 2,846 237,504
Operating income (loss) $ 13,925 $ 18,387 $ (2,846) $ 29,466
Depreciation and amortization $ 3968 $ 5,587 $ 551 $ 10,106
Three months ended June 30, 2025
Total revenues $ 24,485 $§ 127,157 $ - $ 151,642
Expenses 17,831 116,665 1,502 135,998
Operating income $ 6,654 $ 10,492 $ (1,502) $ 15,644
Depreciation and amortization $ 1,882 $ 3,492 § 345 $ 5,719
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MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 3:

REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (Cont.)

Three months ended June 30, 2024

Total revenues $ 24,187 $ 112,063 $ -3 136,250
Expenses 17,028 102,828 1,354 121,210
Operating income $ 7,159 § 9,235 § (1,354) $ 15,040
Depreciation and amortization $ 2,089 $ 2,855 § 273 $ 5,217
The year ended December 31, 2024

Total revenues $ 94903 $ 457,617 $ -3 552,520
Expenses 69,268 417,746 4,269 491,283
Operating income $ 25,635 $ 39871 $ (4,269) $ 61,237
Depreciation and amortization $ 8,204 $ 11,368 $ 1,190 $ 20,762
NOTE 4: SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD

On March 11, 2025, the Company entered into a non-binding Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”)
with Matrix I.T Ltd., a related party and a leading Israeli IT services public company (whose shares are
traded on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange), regarding a potential merger. Under the proposed transaction,
Matrix would acquire the entire share capital of the Company through a reverse triangular merger, resulting
in Magic becoming a private company wholly owned by Matrix. Magic's shareholders will receive merger
consideration in Matrix shares. The relative valuations of both companies have been agreed upon at
31.125% for Magic and 68.875% for Matrix. Consequently, following the merger, Magic’s shareholders
will hold 31.125% of the issued and outstanding share capital of Matrix, and the shareholders who held
Matrix's shares prior to the merger will hold 68.875%, both on a fully diluted basis. The transaction is
subject to the completion of due diligence, execution of a definitive agreement, regulatory approvals, and
shareholder approvals, including approval by a special majority of minority shareholders in accordance with
Israeli law. As of the date of approval of these financial statements, the merger has not been completed and
there is no certainty that it will be completed.

On March 11, 2025, in accordance with its dividend distribution policy, Magic’s board of directors declared
a semi-annual cash dividend of $0.327 per ordinary share for a total amount of approximately $16,055. The
total cash dividend was paid on May 7, 2025, which together with prior dividend distribution declared on
November 18, 2024 and paid on January 8, 2025, amounted to $27,642, reflecting approximately 75% of
the Company’s distributable profits for the year ended December 31, 2024.

F-13



MAGIC SOFTWARE ENTERPRISES LTD.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONDENSED INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U.S. dollars in thousands (except share and per share data)

NOTE 4:

NOTE 5:

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont.)

In April 2025, the Company acquired additional ordinary shares of its Comm-IT subsidiary. Pursuant to the
transaction, the Company’s ownership interest in CommlIT increased from 68.15% to
approximately 79.32% on a fully diluted basis. The aggregate cash consideration paid to the selling
shareholders amounted to approximately NIS 50.4 million. Following the transaction, CommIT remains a
consolidated subsidiary of the Company. The transaction was accounted for as an equity transaction with
non-controlling interests in accordance with IFRS 10, and no gain or loss was recognized in profit or loss.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 13,2025, in accordance with its dividend distribution policy, Magic’s board of directors declared
a semi-annual cash dividend of $0.296 per ordinary share for a total amount of approximately $14,500,
reflecting approximately 75% of the Company’s distributable profits for the six-month period ended June
30, 2025. The dividend will be paid on October 22, 2025.

F-14
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Disclaimer

@ We were retained by The Independent Committee of the Board of Directors of Matrix IT Ltd. (hereunder “Client” and “Matrix”) to prepare a Fairness Opinion report (the “Report”) in connection
with the Exchange Ratio in the Merger between Matrix and Magic Software Enterprises (Israel) Ltd (hereunder: “Magic” and together the “Companies”).

@ The Reportintended solely for the internal use of the Client. This Report may not be reproduced, in whole or in part, and the findings of this Report may not be used by a third party for any purpose,
without our expressed written consent. Notwithstanding any of the above, this Report may be included in the Client’s financial statements or the Client’s transaction report.

@ For the purpose of preparing this Report, we relied upon financial and other information including prospective financial information obtained from the Companies and/or the Client and/or anyone
on their behalf (the “Information”). We assumed that the Information is credible and therefore did not perform an independent audit of the information. In addition, nothing suggesting that the
Information may be unreasonable has come to our attention. The Information has not been examined in an independent manner, and therefore this Report does not constitute a verification of the
Information’s correctness, completeness and accuracy. If the case that the Information is not complete nor accurate or credible, the results of this valuation might change. We reserve the right to
update this Report in light of new information which might have not been known to us. We shall not be liable for the manner of the Client’s and/or the Companies presentation of any financial data
guoted in the Report in terms of its accuracy, completeness, accounting compliance and implications of its accounting presentation, as far as any such implications exist.

@ This Report includes prospective information, as defined in the Securities Law, 5728-1968, obtained, among others from the Companies/Client. The realization of this information is not certain. The
information is based in part on data that was known by the Companies prior to preparing this Report, as well as on various assumptions and forecasts as well as many external factors; including the
state of the relevant markets, potential competitors and the general state of the economy. There is no certainty that such assumptions or forecasts will be realized, in whole or in part.

@ Economic evaluations reflect in a reasonable and fair manner a given state of being at a given time, based on known information, while considering the basic assumptions and estimated forecasts.
To remove all doubt, this Report is valid only for its preparation date.

@ This Report does not constitute a due diligence review and is not meant to replace such a review. In addition, this Report is not intended to determine value for a specific investor, and there is
nothing in this Report to constitute a legal advice or opinion.

@ This Report does not include any accounting audit regarding the compliance with accounting rules. We are not liable for the manner in which the Client’s and/or the Companies financial statements
are prepared and audited in connection with the accuracy and completeness of the data presented in these statements and the implications of their accounting presentation, as far as such exist.

@ This Report includes a description of the methodology and main assumptions and analyses used by us. The description does not purport to provide a full and detailed breakdown of all the
procedures that we applied in formulating the Report.

@ We hereby confirm that we are an independent expert, with no personal interest in the Companies and/or the Client, and/or their controlling stakeholders, and/or the outcome of this Report. Our
fee for preparing this Report is not contingent on the outcome of our work.

2N
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Disclaimer

We hereby confirm that we have no personal stake in the Companies and/or the Client and/or their controlling stakeholders.

@ Figures presented in this Report are rounded. Therefore, slight differences may occur upon summing or multiplying of figures presented.

@ Prometheus Financial Advisory Ltd. and any company controlled by it directly and / or indirectly as well as any controlling shareholder, officer and employee in any of such, are not liable for any
damage, loss of profit or expense of any kind and nature, including direct and / or indirect, which might incur to anyone relying on the mentioned in this Report, in whole or in part.

@ Nothingin this report constitutes an offer or recommendation or opinion regarding the profitability of the purchase of securities.
@ The Client shall not be entitled to receive from us, whether due to contract or damages, in accordance with the law or otherwise, any sum due to loss of profits, data or reputation, or due to any
consequential damage, random or indirect, or as special or punitive damages regarding any lawsuits resulting from services provided within this report or which are related in any other way with the

services provided by us within this report. All, whether the likeliness of such loss or damage has been expected or not, in the case where we have not acted with malice.

@ Inaddition, and without detracting from the generality of the aforementioned, as far as we shall be obligated to pay any sum to any third party regarding the execution of the services detailed in this
report, in any legal or other obligating procedures, the Client undertakes to indemnify us for any sum as aforesaid paid by us, immediately upon our first request.

@ Notwithstanding any of the above, we shall cover if the total indemnification amount shall be less than three times our fees under this engagement letter, we shall not be entitled to any
indemnification.

a The provided final and executed version of our work (the “Report”), Shall be the only binding document. No other document shall be considered binding.

34N
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Sources of Information

The main sources of information which have been used in preparing the report are detailed as
follows:

@ Matrix and Magic audited financial statements as of Dec. 31, 2020-2024.
@ Matrix and Magic unaudited Quarterly Financial Statements for 2024 and 2025.

@ Matrix and Magic investor presentations for the fiscal years 2024-2025.

@ Matrix and Magic management forecasts.

@ Background information and market data, obtained from publicly available sources as
mentioned in this Report

@ Capital IQ Database.

@ Additional data provided to us by the companies at our request, such as board presentation,
balance sheet committee minutes, budget booklet, research and analysts reports and ratio
calculation.

@ Discussions with Matrix and Magic CFOs and financial management, as well as with Jefferies.

@ Formula audited financial statements as of Dec. 31, 2024.

.
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Prometheus - Firm Profile

Prometheus is a financial advisory firm that specializes in providing clients with valuations and expert opinions. Our work is usually provided in connection with M&A deals, legal proceedings, accounting

uses and tax disputes.

The Firm is committed to personal service, while providing clients with in-depth value-added advisory services. The Firm’s executives were involved in many of the major transactions in Israel in recent
years and have decades of experience in providing expert opinions for boards of directors, tax and securities authorities, and courts.

Mr. Yuval Zilberstein, CPA, MBA, founding partner and CEO of the firm. Mr. Zilberstein has over 25 years of expertise in valuations, financial report analysis, preparing expert opinions and providing a
diverse range of financial advisory services for companies and businesses.

Yours faithfully,

Prometheus
Financial Advisory Ltd.

2.11.2025
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Fairness Opinion Regarding the Exchange Ratio in the Merger between Matrix and Magic

We were requested to provide our opinion regarding the fairness of the exchange ratio
agreed between Matrix and Magic in connection with their proposed merger.

The exchange ratio agreed between the parties is as follows: 31.125% for Magic

Shareholders and 68.875% for Matrix Shareholders, on a fully diluted basis.

We examined the agreed exchange ratio through a variety of analyses, as detailed below:
1. We analyzed the financial statements of each company over several historical years.

2. We conducted a segmental analysis of the business lines in which each company

operates, as well as a geographic analysis.

3. We assessed the exchange ratio based on each company’s contribution to the
merged entity across several parameters: revenues, EBITDA and operating profit,

enterprise value, market capitalization, and more.

4.  We examined the leverage level of each company and their respective financial debt.

8 i

Prometheus

5.

The exchange ratio was assessed by performing valuations of both companies
using the discounted cash flow (DCF) method, for which we obtained management

forecasts from both companies.

We reviewed the capital market’s reaction to the merger announcement, including
an analysis of both companies’ share performance, as well as analyst reports
covering the transaction and their positions regarding the fairness of the exchange
ratio. Furthermore, the exchange ratio was examined based on the market values
of the companies at various reference dates, including immediately prior to the

announcement of the transaction.

We additionally considered qualitative strategic considerations that could exert a
favorable or adverse effect on the transaction. As presented to us by Matrix, these
gualitative strategic considerations include Magic’s larger share of international
operations, its significant proportion of IP-based business and its higher profit
margins; and certain transaction structure factors such as the absence of financing
costs and amortizations as a result of the expected accounting treatment in the

transaction.
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Fairness Opinion Regarding the Exchange Ratio in the Merger between Matrix and Magic

9

Matrix focuses on providing comprehensive IT services, including consulting, integration,
outsourcing, software solutions, cloud services, engineering, infrastructure and hardware,
and trade and distribution. In contrast, Magic operates under a hybrid model, with the
majority of its revenues derived from professional services such as implementation,
customization, training, and support. Both companies provide software products —
including development platforms, integration solutions, and applications. Nevertheless,

this segment is more core to Magic and represents a significant portion of its revenues.

Geographically, Matrix operates predominantly in Israel (approximately 90% of activity),
whereas Magic’s revenues are split between Israel (¥40%) and primarily the U.S.
notably. Magic’s U.S. presence has been gradually declining in recent years, with a

corresponding increase in Israeli operations.

Prometheus

Matrix operates through four business segments: IT Solutions & Services, Consulting,
and Management in Israel (“Software Services”), Sales, Marketing, and Support of
Software Products (“Software Products”), Cloud and Computing Infrastructure and IT
Solutions & Services in the United States (“US Operations”). Among these, the Software
Services segment generates the highest revenues (~¥58%), operating profit (~53%), and
growth, while the U.S. operations segment exhibits the highest operating profitability
(~15%)*.

Magic operates through two business segments: IT Professional Services and Software
Solutions. The IT Professional Services segment represents the company’s primary
source of revenue, accounting for ~83% of total revenues, and generates the majority
of the company’s operating profit (*61% of total profit). However, the Software
Solution segment is significantly more profitable than the IT Professional (profit margin

of ~27% compared to ~9 %, and ~40% of company operating profit)*.

*Refers to the year 2024.
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Executive Summary

Fairness Opinion Regarding the Exchange Ratio in the Merger between Matrix and Magic

Annual revenues for Matrix total approximately NIS 5.5 billion, compared with Magic’s
approximately NIS 2.0 billion*. Matrix has maintained an average revenues growth
rate** of roughly 9.7%***(2021-2024), while Magic’s revenues growth rate was
approximately 11.3% (2021-2024)****  Both companies have maintained relatively
stable gross and operating margins between 2019-2024. Matrix, averaging ~14.6% and

~7.5% respectively, and Magic averaging ~28.9% and ~10.8% respectively.

The growth rate of EBITDA of Matrix over the years 2021-2024 was 10.56% and Magic
growth rate of EBITDA over the years 2021-2024 was 9.4%.

*Refers to the year 2024.
**Henceforth, the term shall refer to simple average.

***Matrix and Magic reports a portion of its revenues on a net basis in accordance with IFRS. In recent years, Matrix
revenues reported on a net basis has increased. Excluding the net revenue adjustment, revenue growth in 2024
amounted to approximately 10%.

**%*In 2023 one of Magic’s major U.S. customers significantly reduced its business volume.
10 Qe
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Executive Summary

Fairness Opinion Regarding the Exchange Ratio in the Merger between Matrix and Magic

Based on our financial analysis for 2019-2024, we assessed each company’s From a financial debt perspective, as of June 30, 2025 Magic has a relatively low net
contribution to the merged entity relative to the agreed exchange ratio financial debt of approximately NIS 29 million, due to modest leverage and similar cash
(31.125%:68.875%). Our findings*: balances, whereas Matrix has net financial debt of approximately NIS 400 million,

primarily due to loans and bonds.
Revenues: Magic contributes an average of ~26.44% — unfavorable to Matrix.

It should be noted that the valuation of the companies using the multiples method
Operating Profit: Magic contributes an average of ~33.98% — favorable to Matrix.
may not be feasible. This method necessitates an analysis of the multiples of

EBITDA: Magic contributes an average of ¥36.57% — favorable to Matrix. comparable companies. As both companies have identical sets of comparables, the

. ) ) , application of this method would result in the same multiple for each, which is not
Net Profit: Magic contributes an average of ~¥34.98% — favorable to Matrix.

reasonable in light of the differences between the two companies.

Market Capitalization**: Magic contributes an average of ~32.16% — favorable to Matrix.
From a capital markets perspective, the merger was received positively: both

Enterprise Value**: Magic contributes an average of ~29.97% — unfavorable to Matrix. companies’ share prices (as well as parent company Formula’s) rose in the days
Based on the average market value of the previous 6 and 12 months, Magic’s share is following the announcement (March 10, 2025).

~30.25% and ~29.79%, respectively.

*For the sake of simplicity, we presented Magic’s portion, while Matrix’s portion represents the complement.
“Unfavorable” = This implies that the exchange ratio grants Magic more than it actually contributes, to the
detriment of Matrix; “Favorable” = The implication is that the exchange ratio provides Magic with less than its actual

Thus, in certain parameters Magic contributes more than it receives in the transaction, nent a !
contribution, thereby benefiting Matrix.

while in others the reverse is true. **The value as of December 31 in each of the years 2019 through 2024. Based on the current market value (as of

11 September 9, 2025), the implied exchange ratio is 30.4%:69.6%. Market Cap prior MOU date: Magic contributes an
"' average of ~27.99% — unfavorable to Matrix; Market Cap three years prior MOU date: Magic contributes an average
Prometheus of ~32.63% — favorable to Matrix.
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Executive Summary

Fairness Opinion Regarding the Exchange Ratio in the Merger between Matrix and Magic

For the DCF valuation, we relied on management forecasts and organic historical growth We determined discount rates independently in accordance with commonly accepted
(Matrix through 2029 and Magic through 2028). We tested these forecasts against models: 10.7% for Matrix and 11.9% for Magic (see Appendix 1).

historical trends and market benchmarks, held discussions with management, challenged
For terminal growth, we applied permanent growth ranging from 2.5% to 3% for both

assumptions, and conducted sensitivity analyses. .
companies.

We added an additional year to Magic’s forecast, extending the final year of
The model was prepared as of December 31, 2024, and it has been verified and

management’s projections, so that the forecast would cover five years in accordance
confirmed to be current as of the date of this opinion.

with standard methodology.

Under this methodology, the implied exchange ratio ranged between 31.956%-

We note that we received from Matrix a set of projections used by the Independent
33.824% for Magic, and 66.176%-68.044% for Matrix. Accordingly, based on the DCF

Special Committee for negotiating the exchange ratio with Magic. These projections
results, the agreed exchange ratio of 31.125%:68.875% is deemed fair.

assumed growth rates higher than Matrix’s actual average growth in 2022-2024 and
were therefore not used in our fairness analysis. Applying those assumptions would have

resulted in slightly more unfavorable exchange ratio for Matrix.

12 §g8
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Executive Summary

Fairness Opinion Regarding the Exchange Ratio in the Merger between Matrix and Magic

Conclusion

Following our review of the aforementioned documents and the performance of both quantitative and qualitative
procedures, and subject to the limitations in issuing this opinion as detailed above, we conclude, to the best of our

professional judgment, that the exchange ratio is fair and reasonable from a financial point of view of the shareholders of

Matrix.
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Matrix IT Ltd. — Company Overview

Introduction

Matrix IT Ltd. is the largest and leading IT and technology company in Israel, operating
across a wide range of fields including software services, systems integration, consulting,
cloud solutions, cybersecurity, and digital development. The company benefits from a
diversified customer base in both the public and private sectors, along with strategic

partnerships with global technology providers.

")
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Through more than 100 acquisitions, including recent expansions in Israel and the U.S,,
Matrix has built a broad portfolio in IT services, cloud, cybersecurity, digital, Al, and

systems integration.

Matrix owns and operates a wide portfolio of subsidiaries that specialize in diverse areas
of technology and IT services. These companies provide expertise in software

development, cloud and infrastructure solutions, cybersecurity, data and analytics, digital

@ Matrix, founded in 2001 and traded on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange, is one of Israel’s largest
IT and digital transformation companies. Headquartered in Herzliya, with operations in the transformation, enterprise applications, and training services. The broad subsidiary
U.S. and projects delivered in over 50 countries. structure allows Matrix to deliver end-to-end solutions, deepen its presence across
multiple industries, and expand its customer base through both organic growth and
@ Matrix is a key subsidiary of Formula Systems (1985) Ltd., majority-owned by Asseco strategic acquisitions.
Poland.
@ Matrix serves a broad and diversified client base across both the public and private sectors.

Its customers include leading government agencies, financial institutions, healthcare
providers, telecom companies, retail chains, industrial enterprises, and global corporations.
By combining domain expertise with cutting-edge technologies, Matrix has established long-
term relationships with many of Israel’s largest organizations, while also supporting

international clients through its subsidiaries and global delivery network.

\
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Formula Systems (1985) Ltd. — Corporate Overview

Introduction

@ Formula Systems (1985) Ltd. is a publicly traded Israeli holding company specializing in @ In 2010, Asseco Poland S.A., a leading Polish IT conglomerate, acquired a majority stake in
information technology solutions. Established in 1985, the company operates through its Formula Systems, solidifying its position as the controlling shareholder. This strategic
subsidiaries to provide software consulting services, IT infrastructure solutions, and acquisition has facilitated expanded global reach and resource integration within the Asseco
enterprise software products. Its offerings aim to enhance client productivity, streamline Group.

operations, and mitigate business risks in dynamic environments.
@ Formula Systems, along with its subsidiaries, operates in over 50 countries, delivering

Formula
Systems
] I I I ] |
Zap Group
42.7% 69.09% 91% 80% 100% 51%

@ Matrix IT Ltd. (48.21%) — A prominent Israeli IT services provider offering a comprehensive range of solutions, including cloud services, cybersecurity, and digital transformation.

innovative IT solutions to a diverse clientele spanning multiple industries..

| |
l 43.51% | l 48.21% |

*Source: Formula’s financial statements

Key Subsidiaries

@ Magic Software Enterprises Ltd. (46.71%) — Specializes in enterprise application platforms and business integration solutions, serving clients across various industries.

Magic Software and Matrix IT Ltd. are sister companies operating under the umbrella of Formula Systems (1985) Ltd..

@ Sapiens International Corporation (43.51%) — Focuses on providing software solutions for the insurance and financial services sectors, enhancing operational efficiency and compliance. It should be
foted that on August 2025 Sapiens entered into a merger agreement which will result in its shares being delisted from trading. Formula’s ownership stake following the agreement is expected to be

17 gepproximately 19%.
Prometheus




°
C%e

C

matrix©_e

©

Matrix IT Ltd. — Business Segments Overview

Matrix IT Ltd. operates through four primary business segments, each contributing to the

company's diversified portfolio and strategic growth:

IT Solutions & Services in the United States (“US Operations”)

@ IT Solutions & Services, Consulting, and Management in Israel (“Software
Services”)
This segment provides IT services and solutions to clients across the U.S., utilizing a
This segment encompasses a broad range of IT services, including system integration, combination of onshore and offshore resources to deliver cost-effective and high-quality
software development, and consulting, tailored to meet the needs of Israeli enterprises and services.
public sector clients. The Training & Implementation segment has been consolidated into
the Software Services segment (in Israel). Training & Implementation segment offers ® Sales, Marketing, and Support of Software Products (“Software Products”)
hensi - imol . . - o “h th - o . .
comprehensive training and implementation services, equipping organizations with the Engaged in the distribution and support of software products, this segment includes
necessary skills and knowledge to effectively utilize new technologies and systems. . L . . . . . .
licensing, implementation, and ongoing support services, ensuring clients maximize the
. value of their software investments.
@ Cloud and Computing Infrastructure

Focusing on cloud services, this segment offers infrastructure solutions that enable
businesses to scale efficiently, enhance data security, and leverage advanced computing

technologies.

\
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Revenue Breakdown by Segment at Matrix

The following chart presents the revenue distribution across the various business

segments:

2024 Revenue Breakdown by
Segment

M Software Services

B Software Products

Cloud and Computing
Infrastructures

US Operations

The Software Services segment represents the company’s primary source of revenue,

accounting for 58% of total revenues.

*Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2020-2024.

19§48
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Revenue Breakdown by Segment at Matrix

The chart below presents the company’s revenues by segment for the years 2020-2024:

2020-2024 Revenue Breakdown by 2020-2024 Revenue Breakdown by
Segment (Thousands ) Segment (Thousands )
6,000,000 3,500,000
5,000,000 3,000,000 /
4,000,000 000 e —
0o — — B 2,000,000
— E— —— 1,500,000 —
2,000,000 —— B | B BO00000F ———
1,000,000 500,000 = — .
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
m Software Services m Software Products «=@== Software Services ==@==Software Products
Cloud and Computing Infrastructures m US Operations Cloud and Computing Infrastructures US Operations

In recent years, the majority of the company’s revenues have been driven by the Software Services and Software Products segments, both demonstrating an upward

growth trend.

*Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2020-2024.
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Matrix Revenue Breakdown by Geographic Territory

The following chart presents Matrix’s revenue distribution across different geographic

territories:

Total Revenues by Geographical Destination

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10%

0%

2022 2023 2024

M Israel ® United State Europe

The majority of Matrix’s revenue is generated in Israel, followed by the U.S. The
increase in the share of revenue from Israel, compared to other regions, is primarily

driven by organic growth in the company’s operations within Israel.

21 l" *Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2022-2024.
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Operating Profit Breakdown by Segment at Matrix

The following chart presents the operating profit distribution across the various business

segments:

2024 Operating Profit Breakdown by
Segment

B Software Services
M Software Products
Cloud and Computing

Infrastructures

US Operations

The Software Services segment generates the majority of the company's operating

profit, accounting for approximately 53% of total profit.

*Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2024.

22 48
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Operating Profit Margin by Segment at Matrix

The following chart shows the operating profit as a percentage of revenue for each business segment at Matrix for the period 2020-2024:

2020-2024 Revenue Breakdown by Segment

18.0% 17.2%
15.9%
16.0% 14.59 Average Operating Profit
13.9% 13.9% >% & . P &
14.0% margin 2020-2024
11.6% 12.3% Software Services 7.4%
12.0% 10.6% Software Products 11.3%
9.8% 9.7% — :
100% I Cloud and Computing o
o 8.1% 5.9%
7.5% 8.1% pp— e Infrastructures
8.0% i é_‘ 7.5% _— -
i R 7.6% 7.5% 6.8% 7.3% US Operations 14.6%
. (1]
5.2% " 5.7% 6.1%
4.0%
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
e Software Services e Software Products Cloud and Computing Infrastructures US Operations e Total EBIT

The U.S. segment is the most profitable relative to its revenue share, despite representing a significantly smaller portion of total revenues compared to most other segments. The
main drivers of changes in profitability percentages are variations in activity levels, acquisitions, and improvements in operational efficiency. The company’s operating profit margin

increased from 7.5% in 2020 to 8.1% in 2024.

*Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2020-2024.
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Business Segment at Matrix

The following chart presents the distribution of average revenue and average operating

profit across the different business segments for the years 2020-2024:

Average Revenue and Operating Profit 2020-2024

100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%

10% 11%

7%

Revenue Operation Profit Operation Profit margin

B Software Services W Software Products Cloud and Computing Infrastructures US Operations

While the Software Services and Cloud & Computing Infrastructures segments account
for the majority of revenue and profit, the Software Products and US Operations

segments demonstrate a higher profit margin relative to the revenue they generate.

*Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2020-2024.
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Matrix EBITDA Multiple for 2019-2025

The following chart presents MATRIX’s EBITDA multiple for the years 2019-2025. The

EBITDA multiple is calculated as the company’s enterprise value divided by its EBITDA:

EV/Ebitda Matrix The average EBITDA multiple of MATRIX
over the period 2019-2025 is 13.7x and

17.0x

16.0x the median is 14.5x.

iz In 2021, the EBITDA multiple reached its
i highest level in recent vyears at
12.0x approximately 16.6x. At the end of 2021,
11.0x - )

o the company’s value reached a record
9.0x high, driven by strong company
8.0X ¢ : - - ; ; ; | performance and overall market growth.

31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2022 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 30/06/2025

Over the past two and a half years, the
company’s EBITDA multiple has been on

Thousands  31/12/2019 31/12/2020 31/12/2021 31/12/2022 31/12/2023 31/12/2024 30/06/2025 . . .
an upward trend following a decline in

Enterprise

Value 4,876,552 4,911,948 6,427,741 5,129,549 4,719,100 5,663,897 7,872,941 2022_2023

Ebitda LTM 296,498 339,550 387,616 406,623 459,135 506,181 539,483

EV/Ebitda 16.4x 14.5x 16.6x 12.6x 10.3x 11.2x 14.6x

*Source: Matrix’s financial statements from 2019 through June 30, 2025.
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Matrix Market Capitalization Over the Past Five Years

The following chart illustrates Matrix’s market capitalization over the last five years:

Matrix Market Cap (MM ) Highest Market CAP
8,500 09/07/2025, 8,157

8,000
7,200 Transaction
7,000 Announcement
6,500 10/03/2025, 5,622
6,000

5,500

5,000

4,500

4,000 Lowest Market CAP
3,500 18/04/2023, 3,963

30/06/2020 31/12/2020 30/06/2021 31/12/2021 30/06/2022 31/12/2022 30/06/2023 31/12/2023 30/06/2024 31/12/2024 30/06/2025

Matrix’s market capitalization has been on the rise since September 2024, with a significant
increase starting in April 2025 following the publication of the 2024 periodic report. At its peak, the
company’s market capitalization reached approximately 8,157 million NIS.

*Source: Publicly available data from the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange (TASE)
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Matrix Market Capitalization in 2025

The following chart illustrates Matrix’s market capitalization in 2025:

Matrix Market Cap (MM ) Focus on 2025
8,500 09/07/2025, 8,157 19/08/2025, 7,667
8,000
7,500
7,000
6,500
6,000
5,500
5,000 10/03/2025, 5,622 13/05/2025, 6,132
4,500
4,000
3,500
31/12/2024 31/01/2025 28/02/2025 31/03/2025 30/04/2025 31/05/2025 30/06/2025 31/07/2025
10.3.2025 5622 Magic Software and Matrix I.T FoIIowmg the
= ! sign MOU to Consider Merger announcement of the
13.5.2025 6,132 Publication of Q1 2025 Report acquisition, the market
Matrix’s market capitalization reSponded posmvely.
9.7.2025 8,157 .
has reached its peak
27 [ ] *Source: Publicly available data from the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange (TASE)
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SWOT

eStrong brand and reputation — Long-standing experience and financial stability attract large-scale projects, tier 1 in all
STKI categories.

eMarket leadership in Israel — The largest and most recognized IT company in the country.

St re n gt h S eDiversified business lines — Range of technologies, consulting, integration, software development, cloud services,

cybersecurity, training, and more.

eBroad customer base — Serving clients across government, financial services, defense, healthcare, and high-tech
sectors.

eHigh reliance on the domestic market — Majority of revenues are generated in Israel, exposing the company to local
market risks.

eMargin pressure — Intense competition in the IT sector drives down gross and operating margins.

Weaknesses

eInternational expansion — Potential to enter new markets outside of Israel.
O t S t S eMergers and acquisitions — Continuing the strategy of acquiring smaller companies to expand technological expertise.
p p O r u n I I e S eEmerging technologies — Leveraging Al, automation, and data analytics as new growth engines.

*Growing demand for cloud and digital transformation — Accelerated by global trends.

e|ntensified competition — Both from local players (One, Hilan, Malam, TSG) and international IT service providers.
eRapid technological change — Necessitates ongoing investment to remain competitive, also with the entry of Al.

T h re a tS *Macroeconomic risks in Israel — Economic slowdown or budget cuts may reduce IT project spending.

eRegulatory exposure — Significant sensitivity to changes in government and public-sector regulations.

eHuman capital dependency — Loss of key employees may disrupt projects and client relationships.

28 4
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Financial Statement Analysis

The following table presents the non-organic revenue growth, EBIT, and EBITDA growth The following table presents the organic revenue growth for the years 2022-2024:
for the years 2021-2024:

|I\/IM n 2021 2022 2023 2024 Average MM 2022 2023 2024 Average
Revenues | 1313% | 7.47% | 11.97% | 6.64% | 9.73% Organic Growth| g 5000 | 1070% | 6.50% | 8.57%
Growth Rate Rate

EBIT Growth | 13.92% | 6.40% | 12.25% | 14.40% | 11.74%

EBITDA Growth| 14.16% | 4.90% | 12.91% | 10.25% | 10.56%

Overall growth over the years 2021-2024 was positive,
ranging between 6.6% and 13.1% annually, with an
average growth of 9.73%. Organic growth between 2022
and 2024 ranged from 6.5% to 10.7%, with an average
organic growth rate of 8.57%. The average EBIT growth
was 11.74% and the average EBITDA growth was 10.56%.

*Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2021-2024.

30 **Matrix reports a portion of its revenues on a net basis in accordance with IFRS. In recent years, revenues
(|| reported on a net basis has increased. Excluding the net revenue adjustment, revenue growth in 2024
Prometheus amounted to approximately 10%.



Financial Statement Analysis

Revenue growth by Segments for the years 2022-2024 (mm NIS):

Software
Services

Software
Products

Cloud and
Computing
Infrastructures

US Operations

Total Revenues

*Inorganic growth

CX | | |

2022
2,643

Growth Rate:

4.2%

2022
250

Growth Rate:

(3.2%)

2022
1,346

Growth Rate:

11.2%

2022
434

Growth Rate:

22.0%

2022
4,673

Growth Rate:

7.2%

2023
3,029

Growth Rate:

14.6%

2023
294

Growth Rate:

17.8%

2023
1,431

Growth Rate:

6.3%

2023
478

Growth Rate:

10.2%

2023
5,232

Growth Rate:

12.0%

2024
3,228

Growth Rate:

6.6%

2024
426

Growth Rate:

44.8%

2024
1,466

Growth Rate:

2.4%

2024
460

Growth Rate:

(3.8%)

2024
5,580

Growth Rate:

6.6%

3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

o°°

matrix °o°

2022-2024 Revenue Breakdown by Segment

3,029 3,228

2,643

Software
Services

(mm NIS)
1,466
1346 1,431
250 294 460
/V /
Software Cloud and US Operations
Products Computing
Infrastructures

2022 ©2023 wm2024

Excluding U.S. operations, all Matrix segments demonstrated growth in 2024.

**Revenues excluding intercompany transactions

Prometheus ***Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2022-2024.
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Financial Statement Analysis

Revenue growth by Segments (mm NIS) first 6 month of 2025:

30.6.2025
Software % 1,807
Services ’ Growth Rate:
12.2%
30.6.2025
Software 30.6.2024 168
Products 206 Growth Rate:
(18.6%)
Cloud and 30.6.2024 30'2620025
CompUtmg 735 Growth Rate:
Infrastructures 8.9%
30.6.2025
. 30.6.2024 223
US Operations 235 Growth Rate:
(5.3%)
30.6.2025
Total 30.6.2024 2,998
Revenues 2,786 Growth Rate:
7.6%

*Inorganic growth
**Revenues excluding intercompany transactions
32 W

Prometheus ***source: Matrix’s financial statements 30.6.2025.




Financial Statement Analysis

EBIT growth by Segments for the years 2022—-2024 (mm NIS):

Software
Services

Software
Products

Cloud and
Computing
Infrastructures

US Operations

Total EBIT

33 §es

2022
199

Growth Rate:

(2.7%)

2022
24

Growth Rate:

(4.4%)

2022
77

Growth Rate:

24.1%

2022
60

Growth Rate:

46.4%

2022
350

Growth Rate:

8.2%

2023
206

Growth Rate:

3.2%

2023
36

Growth Rate:

49.3%

2023
88

Growth Rate:

14.8%

2023
76

Growth Rate:

26.5%

2023
393

Growth Rate:

12.7%

2024
250

Growth Rate:

21.6%

2024
45

Growth Rate:

25.6%

2024
106

Growth Rate:

21.0%

2024
67

Growth Rate:

(12.2%)

2024
450

Growth Rate:

8.4%

300

250

200

150

100

50

QQ
O °°°
matrix °o°

2022-2024 EBIT Breakdown by Segment (mm

250
199 206
88 106
—. 77 76‘677
45 %
- -om CON 0N
SOFTWARE SERVICES SOFTWARE PRODUCTS CLOUD AND US OPERATIONS
COMPUTING
INFRASTRUCTURES

2022 = 2023 m=2024

Excluding U.S. operations, all Matrix segments demonstrated EBIT growth in 2024.

*Total EBIT is presented net of unallocated expenses.

Prometheus **Source: Matrix’s financial statements 2022-2024.




Financial Statement Analysis

EBIT growth by Segments (mm NIS) first 6 month of 2025:

Software
Services

Software
Products

Cloud and
Computing
Infrastructures

US Operations

Total EBIT

34 08 *Total EBIT is presented net of unallocated expenses.

Prometheus **Source: Matrix’s financial statements 30.6.2025.

30.6.2024

128

30.6.2024

16

30.6.2024

50

30.6.2024

34

30.6.2024

222

30.6.2025
145

Growth Rate:

12.8%

30.6.2025
19

Growth Rate:

13.9%

30.6.2025
61

Growth Rate:

21.2%

30.6.2025
34

Growth Rate:

1.0%

30.6.2025
253

Growth Rate:

13.9%
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Financial Statement Analysis

Revenue Change Analysis

The majority of the growth in the first half of 2025 is attributable to the Software Services The growth rates observed in 2023 were significantly higher than those in previous years.

segment.

@ Acquisitions and Consolidation: In 2023, two additional companies were included in the

@ Acquisitions and Consolidation: In 2025, one additional company was included in the consolidated financial statements: RDT, acquired during Q3 2022, and Zebra, acquired in Q1
consolidated financial statements: GAV, acquired during Q1 2025. 2023.

@ Growth Across Business Segments: The segment experienced an expansion in activity, with @ Divestment: During Q1 2022, Infinity was sold and removed from the consolidated financial
notable growth in data, cyber, digital, core systems, defense systems, and the financial statements. Accordingly, 2023 is the first full year in which the company is not included in
Sector. the consolidated report.

In 2024, the company recorded solid growth of 6.6%. @ Excluding all acquisitions and divestments, Matrix’s organic growth in 2023 was

approximately 10.7%, compared to 12% reported.
@ Acquisitions and Consolidation: In 2024, two additional companies were included in the

consolidated financial statements: Alacer, acquired during Q4 2024, and Ortec, acquired Other Revenue

during Q4 2024. The acquisitions had a minimal impact on revenue growth in 2024.
@ During 2022, other revenue amounting to approximately 150,059 thousand NIS was

@ The growth in 2024 was primarily driven by organic expansion in activity, with a focus on recognized under the 'Other Revenue' line. This income arose from a gain generated from

core systems, expert services, and defense operations. the sale of an equity-held company.

35 ll' *Source: Matrix’s financial statements from 2022 through June 30, 2025.
Prometheus
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Financial Statement Analysis

Balance Sheet Analysis of Key Line Items
MM 31.12.23 31.12.24 30.6.25
Equity 1,107 1,144 1,153 @ Equity - Matrix’s equity remains relatively stable. While the company generates annual
Financial Liabilities 1,057 918 979 profits, it also distributes dividends.
. . bl 1,627 2,020 1,904
Working Capital Liabilities @ Financial Liabilities - Matrix’s main financial liabilities arise from bank loans, bank credit
Other Liabilities 244 397 419 e . . ;o .
facilities, and bonds. The company is not excessively leveraged. The company’s financial
Total Liabilities and Equity 4,035 4,480 4,455
liabilities have been on a declining trend in recent years
Financial Assets 657 686 562
Working Capital Assets 2,011 2,234 2,270 @ Financial Assets - The financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, as well as
Fixed and Intangible Depreciable Assets 194 192 198 investments and loans granted.
Fixed and Intangible non-Depreciable Assets 919 956 994
@ Fixed and Intangible non-Depreciable Asset - Matrix’s goodwill on the financial statements
Other Assets 255 412 431 &
Total Assets 4.035 4.480 4.455 is elevated due to the numerous acquisitions and divestitures the company has carried out

over the years.

36 (] *Source: Matrix’s financial statements from 2023 through June 30, 2025.
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Dividend

Dividend Distribution Policy - Matrix

The company customarily distributes dividends on a quarterly basis, with the record

date typically set close to the release of the quarterly financial statements.

The Company’s dividend policy provides for the distribution of up to 75% of annual

net income, attributable to shareholders.

Most Recent Dividend Distribution - Matrix

On August 12, 2025, Matrix announced a dividend distribution of 0.85 NIS per share.
The record date was set for September 30, 2025, and the payment date is October
20, 2025. The total dividend amount is 54.1 million NIS.

37 48
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Financial Statement Analysis

Cash and Cash Equivalents 640 668 548
Loans and other Investments 17 17 15
Total Financial Assets 657 686 562
MM 31.12.23 31.12.24 30.6.25
404 389 389
;Z?,Z;Debemures ” 81 30 The majority of the net financial debt consists of cash and
Liability in respect of business combinations 0 10 7 cash equivalents offset against short-term credit and
Options for non-controlling interests 34 82 88 | ” as Ion term bOﬂdS
Long-term Loans 108 20 67 0ans, as we g
Long-term Bonds / Debentures 360 295 263
Long-term Options for non-controlling interests 54 25 63
Liability in respect of business combinations 4 8 9
Employee benefit liabilities 9 8 12
Total Financial Liabilities 1,057 918 979

Financial Assets 657 686 562
Financial Liabilities (1,057) (918) (979)
Net Financial (Debt) (400) (233) (416)

38 ] ] ] *Source: Matrix’s financial statements from 2023 through June 30, 2025.
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Financial Statement Analysis

Gross Profit for the Years 2019-2024:

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Average 1-6/2025
ross Profit 517,900 562,991 630,403 672,007 764,180 832,994 663,413 449,757

Operating Profit for the Years 2019-2024:

! e D Average 1-6/2025 Gross margin, operating margin, EBITDA,
Operating Profit 254,743 289,133 329,392 350,488 393,419 450,074 344,542 252,710 .
and net margin as a percentage of

revenues remained stable at similar
levels throughout 2019-2024. In 2022, a

EBITDA for the Years 2019-2024:

Thousands 2019 2020 Average 1-6/2025
EBITDA 296,498 339,550 387,616 406,623 459,135 506,181 399,267 282,428 gain from the sale of a subsidiary

increased the net margin.

Net Profit for the Years 2019-2024:

Thousands 2019 2020 Average 1-6/2025

'\'in;')'wme 166,729 190,850 218,748 **354,481 246,855 288,224 244,315 156,866
39 Les *Source: Matrix’s financial statements from 2019 through June 30, 2025.

Prometheus +x net income was positively impacted by the sale of a subsidiary completed during the year. Excluding the sale, the net profit margin amounted to 4.4% of revenues.
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Magic Software Enterprises Ltd. — Company Overview

General

Introduction

Magic Software Enterprises Ltd. is a global enterprise software company headquartered in
Or Yehuda, Israel. Established in 1983 by David Assia and Yaki Dunietz as a spin-off from
Mashov Computers, the company was initially named Mashov Software Export (MSE). In
1991, it rebranded to Magic Software Enterprises and became the first Israeli software

company to list on NASDAQ

Magic operates under a hybrid model, with the majority of its revenues derived from
professional services such as implementation, customization, training, and support.
Nevertheless, a significant portion (~40%) of Magic’s profitability stems from its software
products - including development platforms, integration, and applications, which generate

exceptionally high margins and complement its service offerings.

Magic Software owns a portfolio of subsidiaries that provide complementary software and

@ In 1998, Magic Software was acquired by Formula Systems (1985) Ltd., a holding company
focused on information technology. In 2010, Formula Systems was majority-owned by IT solutions. These companies focus on application development, business process
Asseco Poland $.A., a leading Polish IT conglomerate . automation, integration platforms, and low-code solutions, enabling organizations to
optimize workflows and digital operations. Collectively, the subsidiaries expand Magic’s
8  Magic Software is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select Market and is also traded on the Tel global reach, enhance its product offerings, and support clients across multiple industries
Aviv Stock Exchange. with end-to-end technology solutions.
@ The company operates globally and its operations span the Americas, Europe, Asia-Pacific,

and the Middle East, supporting sales, marketing, customer service, R&D, and professional

services.

42 488
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Magic Software — Business Segments Overview

According to its financial statements, Magic reports operating through two main business

segments each contributing to its diversified portfolio and global growth.
@ Software Services

This segment focuses on the development, marketing, and support of Magic’s proprietary
software solutions. Key offerings include Application Platform and Integration Platform,
providing organizations with robust tools for application development, process automation,
and business integration. These solutions serve enterprise clients across a variety of

industries, helping them streamline operations and enhance digital capabilities.
@ IT Professional Services

This segment delivers a broad range of IT consulting and professional services, including
infrastructure design and deployment, application development, technology planning, and
implementation. It supports organizations seeking specialized expertise to optimize their IT

environments, improve operational efficiency, and drive business transformation.

43 488
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Revenue Breakdown by Segment at Magic

The following chart presents the revenue distribution across the various business

segments in 2024

2024 Revenue Breakdown by
Segment

M Software
solutions

uIT
professional
services

The IT Professional Services segment represents the company’s primary source of

revenue, accounting for 83% of total revenues.

*Source: Magic’s financial statements 2024.

44 N
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Revenue Breakdown by Segment at Magic

The charts below present the company’s revenues by segment for the years 2020-2024:

2020-2024 Revenue Breakdown by 2020-2024 Revenue Breakdown by
Segment (Thousands $) Segment (Thousands $)

600,000 500,000 —o
500,000 400,000 B
400,000 300.000 !
300,000 o ]
RO0I000 — - 200,000
100,000 100,000 —— g — e & —0

. [ ] [ ] [0 | _

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
m Software mIT =@ Software  e=@m=|T
solutions professional solutions professional
services services

In recent years, the company’s main revenues have been derived from the IT Professional Services segment. Between 2020 and 2022, this segment experienced

growth, while in 2023-2024 revenues remained relatively stable. The Software Solutions segment has maintained relatively steady revenues throughout 2020-2024.

In 2023, IT professional services segment recorded negative growth, primarily due to a cutback in the volume of professional services for a key U.S client.

*Source: Magic’s financial statements 2020-2024.

45 e
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Magic Revenue Breakdown by Geographic Territory

The following chart presents Magic’s revenue distribution across different geographic territories for the

years 2022-2024:

Total Revenues by Geographical Destination

2022-2024
100%

90% 7%
80%
70% 36%

11%

60%
50% ——
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

2022 2023 2024

m United State ™ Israel Europe Other

The majority of Magic’s revenue is generated in US and Israel. The increase in profits from Israel is
driven by higher demand and the consolidation of an acquired company, while the decline in profits

from the U.S. is attributable to a cutback in the volume of professional services for a key U.S client.

*Source: Magic’s financial statements 2022-2024.

46 g8
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Operating Profit by Segment at Magic

The following chart presents the operating profit distribution across the various business

segments:

2024 Operating income Breakdown
by Segment

M Software
solutions

uT
professional
services

The IT Professional Services segment generates the majority of the company’s
operating profit, accounting for approximately 61% of total profit. . The Software
Solutions segment accounted for approximately 39% of operating profit in 2024,
despite representing only about 17% of revenues.

*Source: Magic’s financial statements 2024.
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Operating Profit Breakdown by Segment at Magic

The following chart shows the operating profit as a percentage of revenue for each business segment at Magic for the period 2020-2024:

2020-2024 Operating income Margin Breakdown by Segment

30.0%
27.4% 27.0%
25.0% 25.0% s / \ /
— 1.7% 22.6%
20.0% " "
i Average Operating Profit
15.0% margin 2020-2024
. (]
Software Solutions 24.8%
10.0% 10.9% 10.9% 10.9% 10.7% 11.1% IT Professional Services 9.1%
9.2% 9.6% 8.6% 9.3% 8.7%
5.0%
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
e SOftware e |T e Total EBIT
solutions professional

services

Despite its relatively smaller revenue contribution, the Software Solutions segment consistently delivered higher operating margins than

IT Professional Services. The company’s operating profit margin increased from 10.9% in 2020 to 11.1% in 2024.

*Source: Magic’s financial statements 2020-2024.
48 el
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Revenue and Operating Profit Distribution by
Business Segment at Magic

The following chart presents the distribution of average revenue and average operating profit across the

different business segments for the years 2020-2024:

Average Revenue and Operating Profit 2020-2024

100.00%
90.00% 82.01% 66.68%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00% ——
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00% 17.99%

12.0%

REVENUES OPERATION PROFIT OPERATION PROFIT MARGIN

m Software mIT
solutions professional
services

Although the Software Solution segment account for less than 20% of total revenues, is relative contribution
to the operating profit is significantly higher, reaching nearly 34%.

49 "l *Source: Magic’s financial statements 2020-2024.
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Magic Market Capitalization Over the Past Five Years

The following chart illustrates Magic’s market capitalization over the last five years:

Magic Market Cap (MM )

4,500 Highest Market CAP

14/11/2021, 3,918
4,000 Recent Peak

23/07/2025, 3,564

3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
10/03/2025, 2,186
1,500 Lowest Market CAP Transaction
23/11/2023, 1,565 Announcement
1,000
30/06/2020 31/12/2020 30/06/2021 31/12/2021 30/06/2022 31/12/2022 30/06/2023 31/12/2023 30/06/2024 31/12/2024 30/06/2025

Magic’s market capitalization has been on the rise since December 2023, with a significant increase
starting in April 2025. At the recent peak, the company’s market capitalization reached
approximately 3,564 million NIS on July 23, 2025.

50 *Source: Publicly available data from the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange (TASE)
(]
Prometheus




Magic Market Capitalization in 2025

The following chart illustrates Magic’s market capitalization in 2025:

Magic Market Cap (MM w) Focus on 2025

4,500
4,000
3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
10/03/2025, 2,186

1,500

1,000
31/12/2024 31/01/2025 28/02/2025 31/03/2025 30/04/2025 31/05/2025

19/08/2025, 3,416

30/06/2025 31/07/2025

Magic Software and Matrix I.T

10.3.2025 2,186 sign MOU to Consider Merger

51 ([ ]] *Source: Publicly available data from the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange (TASE)
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Following the
announcement of the
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SWOT

Opportunities
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Strengths

Weaknesses

Threats

*Global presence — Operates in multiple countries and serves a diverse international customer base.
eDiversified portfolio — Application development, integration, business intelligence, IT services, and consulting.
eExtensive experience — Decades of proven track record with enterprise clients.

eHigh-margin IP products - Proprietary solutions that deliver superior profitability and long-term value.
eExperienced management - A proven leadership team driving sustainable growth and execution excellence.

“)‘igf%;
matrix©_e

eReliance on core products portfolio — Dependent on a limited number of core products (dependency becoming lower as time passes).

eRelatively weaker brand recognition — Compared to global competitors.
eLimited revenue from the Israeli market — Local market potential not fully leveraged.

eRising demand for digital transformation — Strong need for integration and data management solutions.

e Artificial Intelligence and automation — Incorporating Al into integration products can drive new growth.
eExpansion into emerging markets — Growth opportunities in Asia, Africa, and Latin America.

eMergers and acquisitions — Potential to broaden product portfolio and strengthen customer base.

eStrong growth in Cloud and Al business - Capitalizing on rapidly expanding technology markets to drive revenue.

eSignificant potential in the Defense sector - Unlocking new high-value contracts and strategic market opportunities.

e|ntense competition — Facing large, well-branded global players with advanced technologies.
*Rapid technological change — Requires ongoing heavy investments in innovation.
eForeign exchange exposure — Currency fluctuations can affect financial performance.
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Financial Statement Analysis ¢

The following table presents the non-organic revenue, EBIT, and EBITDA growth for the
years 2021-2024:

hVIM S 2021 2022 2023 2024 Average
Revenues 480 567 535 553 534
Revenues 0 0 o o o
rowth Rate 29.40% 18.00% (5.60%) 3.26% 11.27%
EBIT Growth 28.42% 18.49% (7.54%) 7.23% 11.65%
EBITDA Growth | 22.83% 15.33% (6.13%) 5.60% 9.41%

The average revenues growth over the years 2021-2024
was 11.27%. The EBIT and EBITDA growth trends were

similar to the revenue growth trend and, except for
2023, have been positive.

54 *Source: Magic’s financial statements 2021-2024.
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Financial Statement Analysis

Revenue growth by Segments for the years 2022-2024 (mm S):

Software
Solutions

IT

Professional
Services

Total
Revenues

SR | ||

*Inorganic growth

2022
99

Growth Rate:

2.1%

2022
467

Growth Rate:

21.5%

2022
567

Growth Rate:

18.0%

2023
93

Growth Rate:

(6.5%)

2023
442

Growth Rate:

(5.4%)

2023
535

Growth Rate:

(5.6%)

Prometheus **Source: Magic’s financial statements 2022-2024.

2024
95
Growth Rate:
4%

2024
458
Growth Rate:
3.5%

2024
552
Growth Rate:
3.3%

500

400

300

200

HOOR ——

., - TR

2022-2024 Revenue Breakdown
by Segment (mmS§)

467 442 458

99 93 95

SOFTWARE IT
SOLUTIONS PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES

2022 = 2023 m2024

In 2022, the IT Services segment recorded significant growth, driven mainly
by the acquisition of new companies.
In 2023, both segments showed negative growth, primarily due to a cutback
in the volume of professional services for a key U.S client.
In 2024, revenues returned to positive growth, supported by increased
demand and the consolidation of a newly acquired company.




Financial Statement Analysis

EBIT growth by Segments for the years 2022-2024 (mm S):

2022-2024 EBIT Breakdown by

2022 2023 2024 Segment (mm
Software 27 21 26 g ( $)
H Growth Rate: Growth Rate: Growth Rate:
45 41
Solutions 31.5% (22.8%) 21.8% e a0 e
35
30 27
IT 2022 2023 2024 .
Professional Growth Rate: Growth Rate: Growth Rate: 15
Services 8.0% 3.1% (3.2%) o
5 —
0
—2252 —223 —Zgi“ SOFTWARE T
SOLUTIONS PROFESSIONAL
TOtal EBIT Growth Rate: Growth Rate: Growth Rate: SERVICES
18.5% (7.54%) 7.23%

*Total EBIT is presented net of unallocated expenses.

2022 = 2023 m2024

While operating profit in the Professional IT Services segment remained
stable, the Software Solutions segment experienced a decline in operating
profit in 2023, driven by lower revenues while expenses remained

unchanged.

56 —— **Source: Magic’s financial statements 2022-2024.
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Financial Statement Analysis

Revenue Change Analysis

The company achieved a growth of 3.3% during 2024. The company achieved significant growth of 18% during 2022.
@ Growth Across Business Segments: strong demand from existing customers in Israel and @ Acquisitions and Consolidation: In 2022, three additional companies were included in the
internationally - particularly within the financial High-Tech and defense sectors. consolidated financial statements: Appush acquired in Q1 2022, The Goodkind Group,

acquired in Q3 2022, and Intrabases SAS, acquired in Q3 2022.
@ Acquisitions and Consolidation: The first full year of consolidation of KMT, acquired in Q2

2023. In 2024, one additional company was included in the consolidated financial

statements: Theoris, acquired during Q2 2024.

The company experienced a negative growth of approximately 5.6% in 2023, Unlike 2022 and
2024.

@ Acquisitions and Consolidation: In 2023, one additional company was included in the

consolidated financial statements: KMT, acquired in Q2 2023.

@ Suspension of a key client relationship: During Q3 of 2023, a key client in the U.S.

suspended its business relationship with Magic without prior notice.

*Source: Magic’s financial statements 2022-2024.
57 44l
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Financial Statement Analysis

Balance Sheet Analysis of Key Line Items
MM $ 31.12.23 31.12.24 30.6.25
Equity 291 301 302 @ Equity - Matrix’s equity remains relatively stable. While the company generates annual
Financial Liabilities 109 97 99 profits, it also distributes dividends.
; ; iahiliti 83 108 105
Working Capital Liabilities @ Financial Liabilities - Matrix’s main financial liabilities arise from bank loans, Short-term
abiliti 39 35 36
Other Liabilities debt, Trade payables and Put options for non-controlling interests. The company is not
Total Liabilities and Equity 522 540 542
leveraged. The company’s financial liabilities have been on a declining trend in recent
Financial Assets 107 113 90
years.
\Working Capital Assets 159 173 186
Z:eisand Intangible Depreciable and non-Depreciable 225 225 234 @ Financial Assets - The financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, as well as
Short-term bank deposits.
Other Assets 32 30 31 P
Total Assets 522 540 542 ) ) ) ] ) ] ]

@ Fixed and Intangible non-Depreciable Asset - Magic’s goodwill on the financial statements
is elevated due to the numerous acquisitions and divestitures the company has carried out
over the years.

*Source: Magic’s financial statements from 2023 through June 30, 2025.
58 Ul
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Financial Statement Analysis

Financial Assets

The majority of the net financial debt consists of cash and
cash equivalents offset against Short-term debt and long-
term debt.

MM $ 31.12.23 31.12.24 30.6.25
Cash and Cash Equivalents 106 113 90
Short-term bank deposits 1 0 0
Total Financial Assets 107 113 90
Financial Liabilities

MM S 31.12.23 31.12.24 30.6.25
Short-term debt 29 23 29
Put options for non-controlling interests 18 20 23
Liability in respect of business combinations 7 3 4
Dividend payable to Magic Software shareholders 0 12 0
Long-term debt 52 36 42
Long-term liability in respect of business combinations 1 2 0
Long-term Put options for non-controlling interests 0 0
Employee benefit liabilities 1 1
Total Financial Liabilities 109 97 99
Net Financial (Debt)

MM $ 31.12.23 31.12.24 30.6.25
Financial Assets 107 113 90
Financial Liabilities (109) (97) (99)
Net Financial (Debt) (2) 16 (9)

SENN | | |
Prometheus

*Source: Magic’s financial statements from 2023 through June 30, 2025.
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Dividend

Dividend Distribution Policy - Magic

The company typically distributes dividends semi-annually, with the dividend
announcement usually made alongside the financial statements for the

corresponding period.

The Company’s dividend policy provides for the distribution of up to 75% of annual

net income, attributable to shareholders.

Most Recent Dividend Distribution - Magic

On August 13, 2025, Magic announced a dividend distribution of 0.296S per share.
The record date was set for October 6, 2025, and the payment date is October 22,

2025. The total dividend amount is 14.5 million USD.

60 44l
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Financial Statement Analysis

Gross Profit for the Years 2019-2024:

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 Average 1-6/2025
ross Profit 102,129 109,592 132,994 155,355 152,987 157,827 135,147 83,005

Operating Profit for the Years 2019-2024:

2019 Average 1-6/2025
Operating Profit 33,652 40,588 52,123 61,762 57,108 61,237 51,078 31,387

EBITDA for the Years 2019-2024:

2019 Average 1-6/2025
EBITDA 47,677 54,527 66,973 77,237 72,502 76,562 65,913 38,482

Net Profit for the Years 2019-2024:

Average 1-6/2025
Net Income 25,598 30,117 35,339 46,279 42,502 43,291 37,188 23,361

Gross margin, operating margin, EBITDA,
and net margin as a percentage of revenues
remained stable at similar levels
throughout 2019-2024, with only minor
fluctuations. In the years 2021-2022 there
was a slight decline in gross profit as a
result of change in revenue mix alongside
higher payroll costs, followed by
stabilization. In 2024, a slight improvement
is observed in EBITDA (and operating profit)
as a result of lower sales & marketing costs,
driven by reduced U.S. activity.

61 *Source: Magic’s financial statements from 2019 through June 30, 2025..
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Our Procedures

We were requested to provide our opinion regarding the fairness of the exchange ratio
agreed between Matrix and Magic in connection with their proposed merger.

The exchange ratio agreed between the parties is as follows: 31.125% for Magic

Shareholders and 68.875% for Matrix Shareholders, on a fully diluted basis.

We examined the agreed exchange ratio through a variety of analyses, as detailed below:
1. We analyzed the financial statements of each company over several historical years.

2. We conducted a segmental analysis of the business lines in which each company

operates, as well as a geographic analysis.

3. We assessed the exchange ratio based on each company’s contribution to the
merged entity across several parameters: revenues, EBITDA and operating profit,

enterprise value, market capitalization, and more.

64§88
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We examined the leverage level of each company and their respective financial

debt.

The exchange ratio was assessed by performing valuations of both companies
using the discounted cash flow (DCF) method, for which we obtained management

forecasts from both companies.

We reviewed the capital market’s reaction to the merger announcement, including
an analysis of both companies’ share performance, as well as analyst reports
covering the transaction and their positions regarding the fairness of the exchange
ratio. Furthermore, the exchange ratio was examined based on the market values
of the companies at various reference dates, including immediately prior to the

announcement of the transaction.

We additionally considered qualitative strategic considerations that could exert a

favorable or adverse effect on the transaction.
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Exchange Ratio

The agreed exchange ratio between the companies is:
Matrix - 68.875%
Magic - 31.125%

65 e
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Analyst Perspectives on the Merger (Mar 2025)

O Midroog’s analysis (24.03.2025, Matrix) : 0 Bank Hapoalim’s analysis (20.03.2025, Matrix) :

According to Midroog’s analysis, the proposed merger is expected to have a According to Bank Hapoalim’s analysis, the merger with Magic is viewed positively,

positive effect on Matrix. With an exchange ratio that gives existing Matrix even though it is a related-party transaction. They see the deal as strategically

shareholders 68.875% and Magic shareholders 31.125% of the combined important for Matrix, offering international - expansion, stronger financial

company, Midroog believes the deal will strengthen Matrix’s business and flexibility, and a healthier balance sheet. Hapoalim highlights the agreed exchange

. 0 . 0 .
financial position by improving profitability and reinforcing its financial profile. ratio of 68.875% for Matrix shareholders and 31.125% for Magic shareholders, and

concludes that the merger carries significant potential benefits for Matrix.

O Bank Leumi’s analysis (13.03.2025, Matrix) :
ysis{ ) 0 William Blair’s analysis (11.03.2025, Magic Software) :

According to Bank Leumi’s analysis, the potential of the transaction and its According to William Blair’s analysis, the merger presents a strategic opportunity
contribution to Matrix are significant, however, the proposed stock exchange for Magic to grow through a larger global presence and broader services. The
ratio is unfair to Matrix shareholders because it undervalues the company. analysts note that after the deal, Matrix shareholders will hold 68.875% and Magic
Although Matrix is expected to contribute about 69% of the merged company’s shareholders 31.125% of the combined company. However, they also point out that
profit and 72-75% of its free cash flow, it is allocated only 68.875% ownership. Magic trades at a discount to peers, and therefore they downgraded the stock to a
Based on these figures, Leumi argues that Matrix shareholders should receive “Market Perform” rating following the merger announcement.

at least a 72% stake.

66 44l
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Analyst Perspectives on the Merger (Aug 2025)

0O Leader’s analysis (12.08.2025, Matrix) : 0 Bank Hapoalim’s analysis (13.08.2025, Matrix):
According to Leader’s analysis, the merger is expected to strengthen the company’s According to Bank Hapoalim’s analysis, the merger with Magic represents a strategic
resilience and have a positive impact on its overall performance. advantage, which is expected to expand Matrix’s presence in international markets,

enhance its business positioning, add complementary activities, and merge it with a

company demonstrating financial strength comparable to that of Matrix itself.
0 Bank Leumi’s analysis (12.08.2025, Matrix) :

According to Bank Leumi’s analysis, the merger is expected to drive significant growth
in Israel, substantially expand international presence, strengthen the balance sheet,
provide accounting advantages, create potential for efficiency gains and margin
improvement, and enhance the company’s market presence — with the capacity to
attract foreign investors and potentially support future trading abroad. Nevertheless, the
determined exchange ratio undervalues Matrix’s current contribution to the merger

and does not fully reflect the future risks embedded in Magic’s business model

67 448
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Revenues of Matrix and Magic by Geographic Region
The following chart presents Matrix’s revenues by geographic region for the years The following chart presents Magic’s revenues by geographic region for the years
2022-2024. 2022-2024.
Matrix - Total Revenues by Magic - Total Revenues by
Geographical Region 2022-2024 Geographical Region 2022-2024

7%

100% 100%

80% 80%

36%
60% 60%

40% 40%

20% 20%

0% 0%

2022 2023 2024 2022 2023 2024

m [srael m United State Europe m United State ™ Israel Europe Other

While the majority of Matrix’s revenues (on average over 90%) are derived from Israel, Magic
generates most of its revenues abroad. However, the share of revenues from Israel in Magic has
increased in recent years, reaching approximately 44% in 2024.

Based on the geographical revenue distribution of both companies, following the merger Matrix’s
share of revenues generated outside of Israel will increase significantly.

68 44l
Prometheus *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the exchange rate of 3.647 as of December 31, 2024
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Stock Price During The Transaction Announcement Period

The following table presents the stock prices of Matrix and Magic during the

transaction announcement period released to the stock exchange:

Stock Price at the Transaction Announcement Period

0,
14.00% 13.48%

12.00%
10.00%
8.00%
6.00%

0,
Y7 2.20% 2.47%

(2.00%) e . 00
(67| oo

(4.00%)
09/03/2025 10/03/2025 11/03/2025 12/03/2025

B Matrix Share Price () ® Magic Share Price ()

*On March 10, 2025, Magic released an announcement on NASDAQ during nighttime
hours.

Following the announcements on the stock
exchanges, the share prices increased. The market

**0On March 11, 2025, Matrix released an announcement regarding the transaction on

the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange. interpreted the transaction as a positive impact for

both companies. An analysis of the exchange ratio

69 Jub implied by market CAP is presented in slides 75-78.
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Exchange Ratio — Revenues Contribution

The following chart illustrates the revenue distribution between Matrix and Magic for

the years 2019-2024:

Revenues 2019-2024 During the years 2019-2024, Matrix’s revenues
s accounted for an average of approximately 73.56% of
e 26.24% [ 55 4% [ 27.40% [ 2. 81% the combined revenues of both companies. On

80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

0%

average, Magic contributes approximately 26.44% of
revenues, compared with a 31.125% share based on
71.06% [l 72.60% the exchange ratio agreed by the parties.

In other words, compared to the exchange ratio based
solely on revenues, the terms are more favorable to

Magic.

i

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

® Matrix Magic

71 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the average exchange rate for each year.
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Exchange Ratio — EBITDA Contribution

The following chart presents the EBITDA distribution of Matrix and Magic for the

years 2019-2024:

EBITDA 2019-2024 During the years 2019-2024, Matrix’s EBITDA’s
100% accounted for an average of approximately 63.43% of
e 35.88% the combined EBITDA of both companies.
iy On average, Magic contributes approximately 36.57%
0% of EBITDA, compared with a 31.125% share based on
40% . .
b 64.44% I 64.19% the exchange ratio agreed by the parties.

20%
078 ——
B0 —— o
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

In other words, the exchange ratio based solely on
EBITDA is favorable to Matrix.

m Matrix Magic

72 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the average exchange rate for each year.
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Exchange Ratio — Operating Profit Contribution

The following chart presents the Operating Profit distribution of Matrix and Magic for
the years 2019-2024:

Operating Profit 2019-2024 During the years 2019-2024, Matrix’s Operating Profit
accounted for an average of approximately 66.02% of

32.54% the combined EBITDA of both companies.
On average, Magic contributes approximately 33.98%

of Operating Profit, compared with a 31.125% share
based on the exchange ratio agreed by the parties.
In other words, the exchange ratio based solely on
Operating Profit is favorable to Matrix.

34.88%
62.83% %

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

® Matrix Magic

73 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the average exchange rate for each year.
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Exchange Ratio — Net Income Contribution

The following chart presents the net income distribution of Matrix and Magic for the

years 2019-2024:

Net Income 2019-2024 During the years 2019-2024, Matrix’s Net Income’s
— accounted for an average of approximately 65.02% of
i 35.16% the combined Net Income of both companies. On
i average, Magic contributes approximately 34.98% of
50% Net Income, compared with a 31.125% share based
O ., o I o0 69.52% 60.28% on the exchange ratio agreed by the parties. In other
S words, Except for 2022, the exchange ratio based

T ot e - - solely on Net Income is favorable to Matrix.

® Matrix Magic

74 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the average exchange rate for each year.
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Exchange Ratio - Market Cap Contribution

The following chart presents the market capitalization distribution of Matrix and

Magic for the end of the years 2019-2024:

Market Cap 2019-2024 (at the end During the years 2019-2024, Matrix’s Market Cap’s

of the years) accounted for an average of approximately 67.84% of

s the combined EBITDA of both companies. On average,
. Magic contributes approximately 32.16% of Market

Cap, compared with a 31.125% share based on the
exchange ratio agreed by the parties. In other words,
- The distribution of market capitalization between
= Matrix and Magic during the years 2019-2024 indicates
that the exchange ratio is favorable to Matrix.

60%
40%
64.46% 64.62%
20%
0560 —— —

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

W Matrix Magic
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Exchange Ratio - Market Cap

The following chart presents the market capitalization distribution of Matrix and Magic

for the years 2020-2025:

Matrix - 68.875%
Magic - 31.125%

matrix

Exchange Ratio According to Market Cap
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Exchange Rate - Market Cap

The following table presents an analysis of the key data in the market capitalization

distribution of Matrix and Magic for the years 2020-2025:

Matrix - 68.875%
Magic - 31.125%

Matrix Max

Matrix Min

Last Trade Date

Average Last Month
Average Last Three Month
Average Last Six Month
Average Last Year
Average 2025-2022
Average 2025-2020
Median

Date
23/11/2023
14/11/2021
07/09/2025

Matrix Market CAP
8,156,917
3,962,507
7,546,877
7,504,592
7,510,215
6,709,949
5,951,167
5,129,318
5,135,410
5,023,599

Magic Market CAP
3,918,391
1,565,087
3,303,963
3,334,534
3,279,109
2,912,992
2,528,925
2,454,368
2,517,663
2,507,172

Matrix Share
74.238%
60.092%
69.551%
69.235%
69.622%
69.751%
70.212%
67.691%
67.197%
67.154%

Magic Share
25.762%
39.908%
30.449%
30.765%
30.378%
30.249%
29.788%
32.309%
32.803%
32.846%

Based on the market CAP of both companies over the past
year, the exchange ratio is favorable to Magic. Conversely,
when viewed over the past three and five years, the
exchange ratio is favorable to Matrix.

AN | | |
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Exchange Rate - Market Cap Prior MOU Date

The following table presents an analysis of the key data in the market capitalization

distribution of Matrix and Magic for the years 2020-2025:

Matrix - 68.875%
Magic - 31.125%

Matrix Max

Matrix Min

Last Trade Date

Average Last Month
Average Last Three Month
Average Last Six Month
Average Last Year
Average 2025-2022
Average 2025-2020
Median

Date
23/11/2023
14/11/2021
10/03/2025

Matrix Market CAP
6,088,370
3,962,507
5,621,704
5,736,736
5,610,359
5,221,771
4,969,584
4,880,899
4,967,806
4,891,418

Magic Market CAP
3,918,391
1,565,087
2,185,623
2,242,258
2,217,679
2,156,468
2,081,416
2,381,766
2,475,190
2,465,080

Matrix Share
74.238%
60.092%
72.005%
71.901%
71.670%
70.679%
70.425%
67.372%
66.929%
66.417%

Magic Share
25.762%
39.908%
27.995%
28.099%
28.330%
29.321%
29.575%
32.628%
33.071%
33.583%

Based on the market CAP of both companies in the prior
MOU year, the exchange ratio is favorable to Magic.

Conversely, when viewed over the past three and five
years, the exchange ratio is favorable to Matrix.
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Exchange Ratio — Net Debt Contribution

The following chart presents the Net Financial Assets (Debt) distribution of Matrix

and Magic for the end of the years 2019-2025 (mm w):

Net Financial Assets (Debt) 2019- The net financial debt of Matrix has consistently been
2025 (at the end of the years) higher than that of Magic, the impact of net financial
200 debt on enterprise value reduces the market value

100

gap between the companies and positively affects
Matrix’s share — favorable to Matrix.

(100)
(200)
(300)
(400)
(500)
(600)

§ &F
(498)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 30.6.2025

®m Matrix Magic

79 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the end of year exchange rate for each year.
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Exchange Ratio - Enterprise Value Contribution

The following chart presents the enterprise value distribution of Matrix and Magic for

the end of years 2019-2024:

Enterprise Value 2019-2024 (at the
end of the years)

100%

IZ233)

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

60%

40%

20%

050 ——

W Matrix Magic
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During the years 2019-2024, Matrix’s Enterprise Value
accounted for an average of approximately 70.03% of
the combined Enterprise Value of both companies. On
average, Magic contributes approximately 29.97% of
Enterprise Value, compared with a 31.125% share
based on the exchange ratio agreed by the parties. In
other words, The distribution of Enterprise Value
between Matrix and Magic during the years 2019-
2024 indicates that the exchange ratios is favorable to
Magic. From the distributions of both enterprise value

and market capitalization, it can be observed that
Matrix’s net financial debt is higher than that of

Magic.

*Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the end of year exchange rate for each year.
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Exchange Ratio — Summary

The following chart presents a summary of the distributions between Matrix and

Magic, based on the average for the years 2021-2024:

100%
90%
80%
70%

2021-2024 average Exchange Rate According to
Financial Report

o
27. 35/) 36.86% 34.84%

60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%

63.14% 65.16%

0%

81 g4

REVENUES ADJUSTED EBITDA  OPERATING NET INCOME MARKET CAP ENTERPRISE
PROFIT (LOSS) VALUE

®m Matrix ® Magic

*Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the average exchange rate for each year.

Prometheus

Matrix - 68.875%

Magic - 31.125% matrlx

Based on the average financial data for
the years 2021-2024, Matrix’s share in
the exchange ratio ranges between
63.14% and 72.65%, while Magic’s share
ranges between 27.35% and 36.86%.
Considering the consolidated distribution
of the financial data, from a financial
perspective, the exchange ratio is within
the range of the calculated ratios for
Matrix’s shareholders.
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Valuations of the Companies

Background and Methodology

Methodology - General Valuation Approaches

There are a number of generally accepted approaches in use for valuing assets, liabilities and Cost Approach: This approach is based on historic costs and/or investment costs incurred in
businesses, none of which is necessarily superior to the others. Rather, it is a question of which the creation of the object being valued. The net asset value ("NAV") method is one of the
approach is best suited to the object being valued. The following discussion summarizes the most commonly used methods under the cost approach. However, it is important to
three most common approaches: distinguish that cost does not necessarily represent value, because this approach ignores

income producing capabilities. However, if costs are incurred in the process of
Income Approach: theoretically, value of an object equates to the present value of its expected

future benefits. Application of this approach requires an identifiable income/expense stream

attributed to the valued object, an economic expected remaining life of the income/expense ] o o ] )
developing or acquitting an asset, it is normally expected that the asset will recover its costs

stream, and a required rate of return (i.e. discount rate) commensurate with the risk associated )
from future cash flows. Thus, the cost approach can sometimes be used as a benchmark for

with its realization.

value
Market Approach: the first objective of the market approach is to identify specific comparable
objects (usually companies) to the object being valued, for which public information exists
pertaining to their value. Thereafter, applying the market multiples of these objects on the The value in this Report was calculated under a DCF method.

object being valued can be used to form a conclusion of market value.

83§48
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Valuations of the Companies - DCF

Assumptions

For the purpose of examining the fairness of the exchange ratio using DCF valuation ,a separate valuation was performed for each company based solely on its organic operations. With respect to

Magic, we have received management forecasts that extend to 2028. Under commonly accepted methodologies, a DCF model should include a five-year forecast, we added the year 2029 to Magic’s
model, extending Magic’s 2028 assumptions by one additional year. We further concluded that the forecasts included in the Magic management forecasts are reasonable and provide an appropriate
basis for determining the value of the companies, and therefore we chose to adopt them. With respect to Matrix, we have prepared a forecast assuming growth during the model years consistent

with the actual average growth of Matrix in 2022-2024.

We note that we have also received from Matrix, a set of projections which was used by the Independent Special Committee solely for the purpose of negotiating the exchange-ratio in the transaction
with Magic. We note that these projections assumed growth during the model years that exceed the actual average growth of Matrix in 2022-2024 and where therefore not used by us for the purpose
of examining the fairness of the exchange ratio. We further note that were we to apply the growth rates that were assumed by Matrix in the projections developed solely for the purposes of the

negotiations, the resulting exchange ratios would be slightly more unfavorable to Matrix.

The examinations we performed are as follows: we held discussions with management, reviewed the forecasts against historical trends and market trends, performed sensitivity analyses, examined

the forecasts against analyst reports, and more.

To complete the forecasts, we calculated the discount rate for each company and determined the permanent growth rate of each company. As detailed in Appendix 1, the discount rate for Matrix is

10.7% and for Magic is 11.9%. In addition, a permanent growth rate ranging from 2.5% to 3% was applied for both companies.

The model was prepared as of December 31, 2024, and it has been verified and confirmed to be current as of the date of this opinion.
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Cash Flow Analysis — Matrix

Matrix Cash Flow: Discount Rate 10.7%, Growth Rate 3%:

Thousands 2021A 2022A 2023A 2024A 2025E 2026E 2027E 2028E 2029E
Revenues 4,360,148 4,672,689 5,232,105 5,579,538 6,057,518 6,576,446 7,139,828 7,751,473 8,415,516 8,667,982
COGs (Net of D&A & other Adjustments) (3,655,381) (3,898,251) (4,339,494) (4,626,053) (5,168,203) (5,609,482) (6,088,024) (6,607,164) (7,170,321) (7,385,431)
Gross Margin (Net of D&A & other Adjustments) 704,767 774,438 892,611 953,485 889,316 966,964 1,051,804 1,144,309 1,245,195 1,282,551
S&M (Net of D&A & other Adjustments) (126,103) (145,629) (162,978) (174,063) (147,724) (160,379) (174,119) (189,035) (205,229) (211,386)
G&A (Net of D&A & other Adjustments) (191,048) (222,186) (270,498) (273,241) (147,724) (160,379) (174,119) (189,035) (205,229) (211,386)
Total OPEX (Net of D&A & other Adjustments) (317,151) (367,815) (433,476) (447,304) (295,449) (320,759) (348,237) (378,070) (410,458) (422,771)
EBITDA 387,616 406,623 459,135 506,181 593,867 646,205 703,566 766,239 834,737 859,780
Subtract: D&A (147,737) (162,225) (203,619) (186,811) (63,867) (61,055) (61,490) (63,959) (62,822) (47,238)
Operating Profit 239,879 244,398 255,516 319,370 530,000 585,150 642,076 702,280 771,916 812,541
Tax Income (Expenses) (65,446) (100,285) (78,331) (94,978) (125,327) (138,532) (152,187) (166,647) (183,374) (186,884)
CAPEX (42,691) (42,565) (44,189) (45,559) (45,862) (47,238)
In (out) flows from change in Working Capital (226,873) (38,664) (40,860) (44,358) (48,156) (18,383)
Cash Flow 198,976 426,443 466,329 509,675 557,345 607,273
Discount Factor
Discounted Cash Flows 189,062 366,030 361,577 356,988 352,645 4,990,070
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Cash Flow Analysis — Matrix

Valuation results: Sensitivity Analysis:
Based on the forecast presented in this analysis, with growth based on the historic The following presents a sensitivity analysis of Matrix’s equity value with respect to
organic growth rate, using a discount rate of 10.7% and a terminal growth rate of 3%, the discount rate and the terminal growth rate.

Matrix's company value as of December 31, 2024, was estimated at approximately

6,384 million.

Weighted average discount rate (WACC)
The Valuation Thousands m MM 6,384 9.7% 10.2% 10.7% 11.2% 11.7%
2.0% 6,632 6,196 5,810 5,466 5,159
Enterprise Value - Model Years Portion 1,626,302 25% Permanent
Growth 2.5% 6,993 6,506 6,079 5,702 5,365
. i . . 0
Enterprise Value - Terminal Year Portion 4,990,070 75% 3.0% 7,408 6,860 6,384 5 966 5596
Enterprise Value 6,616,372 3.5% 7,890 7,267 6,730 6,264 5,855
. . N
Net Financial (Debt) (232,760) 4.0% 8,456 7,739 7,128 6,603 6,147
Total Equity Value 6,383,612
*See slide 38.
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Cash Flow Analysis — Magic

Magic Cash Flow: Discount Rate 11.9%, Growth Rate 3%:

87 oew
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housands $

Revenues

COGs (Net of D&A & other Adjustments)

Gross Margin (Net of D&A & other Adjustments)
S&M (Net of D&A & other Adjustments)

G&A (Net of D&A & other Adjustments)

R&D (Net of D&A & other Adjustments)

Other expenses (Net of D&A & other Adjustments)
Total OPEX (Net of D&A & other Adjustments)
Adjusted EBITDA

Subtract: D&A
Operating Profit

Tax Income (Expenses)

CAPEX

In (out) flows from change in Working Capital
Cash Flow

Discount Factor
Discounted Cash Flows

2021A
480,325

(347,331)

132,994
(38,147)
(16,372)
(8,995)
(2,507)
(66,021)
66,973

(14,850)
52,123

(10,278)

2022A
566,792

(411,437)

155,355
(46,857)
(22,077)
(10,090)
906
(78,118)
77,237

(15,475)
61,762

(11,138)

2023A
535,052

(382,065)
152,987
(44,500)
(25,417)
(10,328)

(240)
(80,485)
72,502

(15,394)
57,108

(9,934)

2024A
552,520

(394,693)
157,827
(42,100)
(26,684)
(13,310)

829

(81,265)

76,562

(15,325)
61,237

(11,328)

2025E
607,155

(433,928)
173,227
(35,988)
(37,243)

(14,647)

(87,878)
85,349

(14,250)
71,099

(15,912)
(1,435)

(6,392)
61,610

58,224

2026E
643,728

(462,686)
181,042
(37,524)
(38,631)

(15,081)

(91,236)
89,806

(14,639)
75,167

(17,146)
(1,478)

(4,278)
66,902

56,502

Matrix - 68.875%
Magic - 31.125%

2027E
675,661

(485,031)
190,630
(38,812)
(39,519)

(15,428)

(93,759)
96,871

(15,038)
81,833

(18,786)
(1,523)

(3,736)
72,827

54,964

2028E 2029E
700,793 726,860
(501,693)  (517,524)
199,100 209,336
(39,697)  (41,174)
(40,325)  (41,825)
(15,721)  (16,306)
(95,743)  (99,305)
103,356 110,031
(11,968) (1,531)
91,388 108,500
(20,906)  (24,821)
(1,568) (1,627)
(2,940) (3,049)
77,942 80,534
52,569 48,541

©%
© o °
matrix °o°

TY
748,666

(533,050)
215,616
(42,409)
(43,080)

(16,795)

(102,284)
113,332

(1,676)
111,656

(25,681)
(1,676)

(2,551)
83,425

564,979
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Cash Flow Analysis — Magic

Valuation results: Valuation results (NIS)*:
. _ . ] The Valuation Thousands %
Based on the forecast presented in this analysis, with growth based on the
) ) ) Enterprise Value - Model Years Portion 987,608 24%
management’s forecast, using a discount rate of 11.9% and a terminal growth rate of
. ) Enterprise Value - Terminal Year Portion 2,060,480 76%
3%, Magic's company value as of December 31, 2024, was estimated at
Enterprise Value 3,048,088
approximately w3,107 million. i
Net Financial (Debt) 59,326
The Valuation Thousands $ % .
Total Equity Value 3,107,414
Enterprise Value - Model Years Portion 270,800 32% L .
Sensitivity Analysis:
Enterprise Value - Terminal Year Portion 564,979 68%
Enterprise Value 835,780 The following presents a sensitivity analysis of Magic’s equity value with respect to
Net Financial (Debt) 16.267** the discount rate and the terminal growth rate.
Total Equity Value 852,047 Weighted average discount rate (WACC)
MM 3,107 10.9% 11.4% 11.9% 12.4% 12.9%
2.0% 3,214 3,048 2,899 2,765 2,642
Permanent
Growth 2.5% 3,342 3,160 2,998 2,852 2,720
3.0% 3,486 3,285 3,107 2,948 2,806
3.5% 3,649 3,426 3,230 3,056 2,900
**See slide 59.
4.0% 3,836 3,586 3,368 3,176 3,006
88 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the exchange rate of 3.647 as of December 31, 2024
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Cash Flow Analysis

Matrix Cash Flow: Discount Rate 10.7%, Growth Rate 3%: Magic Cash Flow: Discount Rate 11.9%, Growth Rate 3%:

Thousands The Valuation Thousands
Enterprise Value - Model Years Portion 1,626,302 25% Enterprise Value - Model Years Portion 987,608 24%
Enterprise Value - Terminal Year Portion 4,990,070 75% Enterprise Value - Terminal Year Portion 2,060,480 76%
Enterprise Value 6,616,372 Enterprise Value 3,048,088
Net Financial (Debt) (232,760) Net Financial (Debt) 59,326
Total Equity Value 6,383,612 Total Equity Value 3,107,414

Thousands Valuation Market Cap 31.12.24 Market Cap 7.9.25
Matrix Total Equity Value 6,383,612 5,431,137 7,546,877
Magic Total Equity Value 3,107,414 2,182,186 3,303,963
Total Equity Value 9,491,026 7,613,323 10,850,840
Matrix Share 67.26% 71.34% 69.55%
Magic Share 32.74% 28.66% 30.45%

89 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the exchange rate of 3.647 as of December 31, 2024
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Cash Flow Analysis

The following sensitivity table presents Magic’s share in the transaction based on the

our cash flow analysis:

Weighted average discount rate (WACC) Under our cash ﬂOW analysis, Magic’s
MATRIX 9.7% 102%  10.7%  112% @ 11.7% share in the exchange rate is 32.741%,
MAGIC 109%  114%  119% @ 124%  12.9% compared to its exchange ratio share of
P‘:r";m‘;“t 2.0% 2.0% 32.6% 33.0% 33.3% 33.6% 33.9% 31.125%. Therefore, under our cash flow
analysis, the exchange ratio is favorable to
2.5% 2.5% 32.3% 32.7% 33.0% 33.3% 33.6% Matrix
3.0% 3.0% 32.0% 32.4% 32.7% 33.1% 33.4% E—
3.5% 3.5% 31.6% 32.0% 32.4% 32.8% 33.1%
4.0% 4.0% 31.2% 31.7% 32.1% 32.5% 32.8%
90 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the exchange rate of 3.647 as of December 31, 2024
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Cash Flow Analysis — Scenarios

The following table presents cash flow analysis for both companies ranging from

2.5% to 3% (Matrix’s discount rate is 10.7%, while Magic’s discount rate is 11.9%):

Thousands W Matrix 3%, Magic 2.5% Matrix 2.5%, Magic 3% . .
Macrix Total Equity Value 6383612 6.079.50¢ Based on the DCF model, under scenarios assuming a
o/__20 1
Magic Total Equity Value 2,967,996 3,107,414 permanent growth rate of 2.5%—-3% and according to the
cash flow analysis, Matrix’s share ranges between

Total Equity Value 9,381,608 9,186,959 . ..
B 66.176% and 68.044%, while the agreed exchange ratio is

Matrix Share 68.044% 66.176% o

Magic Share 31.956% 33.824% 688754

Magic’s share in the exchange ratio under the cash flow
analysis ranges between 31.956% and 33.824%, while
the agreed exchange ratio is set at 31.125%.

91 ([ ] *Magic’s results were converted from USD to ILS based on the exchange rate of 3.647 as of December 31, 2024
Prometheus



OQ
Matrix - 68.875% C

Magic - 31.125% matrix °:0°

Fairness Opinion - Conclusion

Following our review of the aforementioned documents and the performance of both quantitative and qualitative
procedures, and subject to the limitations in issuing this opinion as detailed above, we conclude, to the best of our

professional judgment, that the exchange ratio is fair and reasonable from a financial point of view of the shareholders of

Matrix.
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WACC Calculation - Matrix

Matrix - 68.875%
Magic - 31.125%
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Company Unlevered Beta D/V
Amanet Management &
74 .09
Systems Ltd. 0 0.0%
One Software Technologies 1.05 0.0%
Ltd
Malam - Team Ltd 0.83 9.8%
Hilan Ltd. 0.91 0.0%
TSG IT Advanced Systems 0.23 5.4%
Ltd
Elad Software Systems Ltd
Abra Information o
Technologies Ltd. 0.91 0.0%
Median 0.87 0.0%

The
Annotation Parameter Value Comments
DV Debt to Asset Value i Based on the Median of the comparable
companies
E/V Equity to Asset Value 100.0% (D/V)=1-(E/V)
D/E Debt to Equity - (D/E) = (D/V) / (E/V)

n order to assess the beta, we created a sample of
traded companies (see table above). Since there is
no other company is identical to our subject, we

. chose companies that have similar characteristics
Bu Comparables’ Unlevered Beta 0.87 to those of the subject but differ from each other,
creating a mix that will optimally express the
characteristics of the subject. The beta is calculated
lover a 5 year period with a weekly sample interval.
| fth j f th
Tax Valued Company Long Term Tax Rate 23.0% ong t(?rm taxrate of the subject of the
valuation
BL Valued Company's Levered Beta 0.87 B= Bur*{1+(1-Tax)*(D/E)}
. INominal yield to maturity of an Israeli gov't bond
f 0,
R Risk Free Interest 4.9% for a 15 year period as of November 24.
. The risk premium for the Israeli market is based on
o)
MRP Market Premium 5.2% iDamodaran data as of 2024.
The size premium is based on Kroll data for very big
SRP Specific Risk Premium 1.2% companies for 2024 adapted by us to the Israeli
imarket.
Re Cost of Equity 10.7% RE = Rf+ B * MRP + SRP
Rd The Company's Cost of Debt 4.0% The valuation subject's cost of long term debt
WACC Weighted Average Cost of Capital 10.7% WACC = Re *(E/V) + Rd*(D/V)*(1-TAX)
95 e
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WACC Calculation - Magic

The
Annotation Parameter Value Comments
DV Debt to Asset Value i Based or'7 the Median of the comparable
companies
E/V Equity to Asset Value 100.0% (D/V)=1-(E/V)
D/E Debt to Equity - (D/E) = (D/V) / (E/V)
n order to assess the beta, we created a sample of | dB D/V
traded companies (see table above). Since there is Company Unlevered Beta /
no other company is identical to our subject, we Amanet Management & 0.74 0.0%
BuL Comparables' Unlevered Beta 0.87 chose companies that have similar characteristics Systems Ltd. ) )
P : to those of the subject but differ from each other, One Software Technologies 1.05 0.0%
creating a mix that will optimally express the Ltd ' 0o
characteristics of the subject. The beta is calculated Malam - Team Ltd 0.83 9.8%
lover a 5 year period with a weekly sample interval. Hilan Ltd 0.91 0.0%
Tax Valued Company Long Term Tax Rate 23.0% long term tax rate of the subject of the i ' —
pany 8 U% valuation TSGIT AdvaLn;ed Systems 0.23 5.4%
t
L ' g, L= But*{1+(1- *
B Valued Company's Levered Beta 0.87 B= Bur*{1+(1-Tax)*(D/E)} Elad Software Systems Ltd
INominal yield to maturity of average of israeli and Abra Inf ti
Rf Risk Free Interest 4.9% USA gov't bond for a 15 year period as of rain °rf“a 'on 0.91 0.0%
N Technologies Ltd.
ovember 24. Medi T 0.0%
. The risk premium for the Israeli and US markets are| edian . 07
* 0,
MRP Market Premium 4.6% based on Damodaran data as of 2024.
The size premium is based on Kroll data for big
SRP Specific Risk Premium 2.9% icompanies for 2024 adapted by us to the Israeli
Imarket.
Re Cost of Equity 11.9% RE = Rf+ B * MRP + SRP
Rd The Company's Cost of Debt 7.7% The valuation subject's cost of long term debt
WACC Weighted Average Cost of Capital 11.9% WACC = Re *(E/V) + Rd*(D/V)*(1-TAX)
96 ([ ] *Market premium - Measured based on the average risk between Israel and the U.S.
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